NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Marmion House,
Lichfield Street, Tamworth,
Staffordshire B79 7BZ.

Enquiries: 01827 709 709
Facsimile: 01827 709 271

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

23 January 2014

Dear Councillor

A meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be held in Committee Room 1 -

Marmion House on Thursday, 30th January, 2014 at 6.00 pm. Members of the

Committee are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

AGENDA

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence
2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4)

3 Declarations of Interest



To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-
pecuniary) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting.

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in

respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of
such interest. Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or
non-pecuniary interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.

The Role of the Audit Committee
(Presentation by Grant Thornton (External Auditor))

Grant Certification Report for 2012/13 (Pages 5 - 16)
(Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor))

Audit Progress Report (Pages 17 - 32)
(Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor))

Financial Guidance (Pages 33 - 124)
(Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2013/14 Quarter 3 (Pages 125 - 146)
(Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (Pages 147 - 148)
(Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer)

People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting. We can then endeavour to ensure that any
particular requirements you may have are catered for.

To Councillors: M Couchman, K Gant, M Gant, S Peaple, S Pritchard, P Seekings and M

Thurgood



<
o ‘
PR a2
AT =, \&
S gmnnumJ
/™

32

33

34

35

Agenda ltem 2

3=

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HELD ON 31st OCTOBER 2013

PRESENT: Councillor M Gant (Chair), Councillors M Thurgood, M Couchman,
K Gant and S Peaple

Officers John Wheatley (Executive Director Corporate Services),
Jane Hackett (Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring
Officer) and Angela Struthers (Head of Internal Audit
Services) and Derek Bolton (Corporate Information
Security Manager)

Visitors Joan Barnett (Grant Thornton)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor P Seekings.
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2013 were approved and
signed as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by Councillor M Couchman)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of Interest.

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2012-2013

The Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor) was considered.

RESOLVED: That the Annual Audit Letter for Tamworth Borough Council
be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by Councillor M
Couchman)

1
Page 1



36

37

38

Audit and Governance 31 October 2013
Committee

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S ARRANGEMENTS FOR SECURING FINANCIAL
RESILIENCE 2012/13 - MANAGEMENT RESPONSE & RISK ASSESSMENT

The Report of the Executive Director Corporate Services informing Members of
Management’s responses and timeframes to address the recommendations
contained within the Review of the Council’'s Arrangements for Securing Financial
Resilience report presented by Grant Thornton to the meeting on 26 September
2013 was considered.

RESOLVED:  That the management responses and timeframes to address
the recommendations contained within the Review of the
Council’'s Arrangements for Securing Financial Resilience
report be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by Councillor
M Couchman)

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION UPDATE REPORT

The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services providing Members with an
update of Counter Fraud work completed to date during the financial year
2013/14 was considered.

RESOLVED: That:
1 The updated counter Fraud Work Plan be endorsed,;
2 The Fraud Risk Register be endorsed;
3 The Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement,

Strategy Guidance Notes, be endorsed, and,;

4 The Whistleblowing Policy, subject to the policy being
incorporated into all contracts with external suppliers, be
endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by Councillor S
Peaple)

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT 2013/14 QUARTER 2

The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services reporting on the outcome of
Internal Audit’s review of the internal control, risk management and governance
framework in the 2" quarter of 2013/14 — to provide members with assurance of
the ongoing effective operation of an internal audit function and enable any
particularly significant issues to be brought to the Committee’s attention was
considered.

Page 2



39

40

41

Audit and Governance 31 October 2013
Committee

RESOLVED: That the quarterly report be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor M Couchman and seconded by
Councillor S Peaple)

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2012/13 - UPDATE

The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services seeking to advise the
Committee of the current position regarding “significant and other governance
issues” raised in the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 and
providing an opportunity for members to raise any issues they consider
appropriate was considered.

RESOLVED: That the update on the “significant and other governance
issues” raised from the 2012/13 Annual Governance
Statement be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor M Thurgood and seconded by
Councillor K Gant)

ONE STAFFORDSHIRE DATA SHARING PROTOCOL

The Report of the Director Technology and Corporate Programmes seeking to
advise Audit and Governance Committee on the reasoning and benefits behind
the One Staffordshire Data Sharing Protocol, with a subsequent recommendation
of endorsement for Tamworth Borough Council to become a signed up party was
considered.

RESOLVED:  That the sign up to the One Staffordshire Data Sharing
Protocol by the Council be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by Councillor
M Gant)

REVIEW OF ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY
The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer providing the

Committee with a review of the Council’s key Anti-Money Laundering Policy was
considered.

RESOLVED: That the revised Anti-Money Laundering Policy be endorsed

3
Page 3



42

Audit and Governance 31 October 2013
Committee

and referred to Council for adoption in the Council’'s Policy
Framework.

(Moved by Councillor M Thurgood and seconded by
Councillor K Gant)

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000

The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer informing
Members of the surveillance carried out under the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000 was considered.

RESOLVED: That the quarterly RIPA monitoring report be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by Councillor
M Gant)

Chair

Page 4



Agenda ltem 5

woo 16y n@nauieq w-ueol 3
66€G2eC Lo L

Jabeuepy

jouleg ueor

wo2163n@>009 e 'sawel 3

€veseecicio L
Jo30311q
)00 sawep

€10z Aenuer
€102 YdJe|N L€ papuad Jea)

[OUNO") ysnoiog YIIOMWE], J0J
¢1/210Z 3¥odox uoneoynian)

uojuloy | eI o

[g]

(<8)
(&)

©
ol



01

abed

8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

€1/210 ¥0J PIyNIad SUINIDI PUE SWIL[D JO S[EID(] Y
soorpuaddy

SFOM TONEIYNI JNO JO SINSAY 7

Lrewwns oannooxy |

uoi}oes

SIUIVO)

Page 6



"SUINIOT PUE SWILD SI JO voIssTwqns pue uonendwod o)
303 20¢[d UT SJUOWOSUEIIL POOS JABY 0} SONUNUOD [IPUNO7) Y T,

8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

310M UOI}BDIHILIAD INO JO SHNSAY  “Z0

AFewrwuns 9ARNIIXE]

Aewwins aApn2ax3 Lo

:] UOTIDIIG

Page 7



"AoeInooe

JOJ $n AQ PIMITAIT U SEA [OTYM
W SIFoudg 9U) WOIJ SIS JO JUNSI)
PO[IEI9P 93 JO SWOS JOOIIIPUN JIFEULIA]
s1yauag 9y I, 'sowranb ino 03 Apdwoird
papuodsar ureSe s1o03() "papraoid
ureSe oyom syoded Suryzom pafreIa(

"W 9yl JO onfeA
ot Jo JudIad 2UO JO JTeY Uk SSI ST ST,
S[CTF JO Aprsqns ur UORONPIF PAILWNSI
ue s1 uonedyIenb oy jo 1oedwr oy,
‘uonedyenb 01 109(qns pue ())'gsHF £q
POpPUSWE SEA WL SIJOUd¢] SUISNOF] YT,

SUINIOT PUE SWIE[D JO UONEINIAD PUL
uorssruqns oy 0y 20e[d ur syuSWaSuLIIe
POOS 9ABY 01 SONUNUOD [PUNOT) YT,

Supex

v $93esSOTAl A93[

sroded Supprom
Sunioddng

(suoneogienb

29 SIUDWPUIUIE
Surpnpour)

J0)IpNE I}

0} pPaNIwIqNs SWIoJ
wre Jo A0eInddy

UoneoynIdd
2@ UoIssTuIqng

sjuowRSueIIe
UONEIYNIID
Jo 10adsy

30do¥ 943 JO UOMDIS IXIU Y} UT [ILI9P UT INO 198 PUE MO[2q I[qEI )
UT POSIFEWIWUNS FE JJOM TONEIYNFID JNO WOoKy sadessowr Loy oy T, 'y xipuaddy
1e papraoid st UonedynIad 03 192(qns suINISX pue SWIE [[E JOo Arewums v

sobessaw Aay]

8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

"€10Z ¥quaadog ur [1ouno’) a3 03 Panss Ue[ UORELIYNIOD)
FN0 UT INO 198 9Fom Wirogiad oM yF0om 93 JO 9d0ds o) pue PoA[OAUT sopFed
SNOTFEA U JO SINIIqISUOdSoT PUE $9[0F 9P YFOM UONELIYNID 0 yorordde mo

"UINIDI JO WIEP
oyyads yoes 703 ([D)) BONONFISUT UONEIHNID)) B (AIA STOIPNE SINSS] PUE ‘AOUdTe
30 JuounIedop JUSWUIIAOS JUBAI[DT OB PIIM JFoM 93 JO 9d0ds oy $0013e
UOIYM ‘UOISSIWWO)) NIPNY Y3 Aq paqrrosaxd 93¢ UONEINII O SIUIWITULIFY
uoIjes}i}id9 0} }IX3AJuUod pue yoseoaddy

*SWIE [ENPIAIPUT 01 UONE[OF UT SI91IeW JUBDTUSIS
0] UONUIIIE SMEIP PUE $59003d UONEIHNIID 93 JO 109dSdT UT SJUSWOSULIIE
JUSWIFeULW § [IOUNOT) 93 JO JUIWSSISSE [[BIDA0 JNO SIsLrerrwuns 130dax iy,

“voNIw ¢*'gSF Jo armrpuadxo 03
Supear ¢1 /210 ¥eoA [eULUY 9 JOF SUINIDF PUL SWTE[D 993} PIFNIID ALY I\

“Surpuny 01 JUDWINAUD § [IDUNOY) ) WIFFUO0D 03 $89203d o3 JO
13ed 1ueazodwr Inq Teuy e s100sa3dor pue porrad wre[d oy J9JE SYIUOW UTT O XIS
ooe[d soyer A[[eard£y wopeoynIad STy, *([IOUNOY) a1p3,) [IPUNOY) YSnoiog YIIOMWE],

Aq panrwiqns SUINIDI PUE SWIE 93 JO UTEIFID AJNIod 01 pasmbor ore o
uoi3onpoJjuj

Arelwywuins 9ATINIIXG]

Alewwins aAl}NoaxXTg

Page 8



8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

p10Z Avenue[
dTT1 N voruroyf, uern

'$$9003d UONEIYNIID Y JO ISINOD Y} SuLNP VONELIddO-00 PUE IUEISISSE
FIOU} JOJ SFIOYJO [1ouno’) o yuerd 03 Arumzoddo iy 93l 01 NI P[noM I\
sjudwalbpajmouroy

'$99J [EUONIPPE PUE 1UEIS JO Judwiedor
renuaod pue ‘vorssruqns 3e[ 103 sonfeuad Jo s [enualod oyl 9oNPaT I ST,

‘sopronb o o1 Apdwoid Surpuodsar

sn 03 sxoded Sunyrom payresop Surpraoid .

SUINIOT PUE SWIL SURIWANS o

1UT SBY IT SIUIWISULITE POOS 9} YA dNUNUOD P[NOYS [IDUNOT) YT,
piemio} Aem ayL

Alewwins aAl}NoaxXTg

Page 9



8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

3IOM UOI}BDIHILIBD INO JO S)NSAY  “Z0

3uns9) INO WOIJ PIYNUIPT IO SINSST JULIGTUSIS ON Klewwns aApn2ax3 ‘Lo

YFOM UONEIPNIID JNO JO SIMNSIY 7 UOTIDIG

Page 10



VA 8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

'y xipuaddy e papn{our 9Fe SUINISF PUE SWIE[ [[€ JO UONEIYNIID o3 JO S[IEId(]

"SUINIST PUT SWIE JO
uorssruqns pue uone[rdwod oyl 30§ 93e[d Ul SIUWIFUEIIE POOS 9ABY O SONURUOD
[PUNO7) 93 18U} PIYYSHES UTLWT 9/X\ JULIYTUSIS 939M PIYNUIPI SINSST 9L JO SUON]

"parmbas "UJNI9F 93 JO dN[eA [enIde Iy Uo 1dedwr J0u PIp s Ing wre s1doday [earden)

SIOM IIYIING O3 99[JAF 03 L()]J [PUORIPPE UE JO TOISSIUWO)) IIPNY Y} (A 995 SUISNO] JO SUTOO] 93 UIIIA IPEW JUIWPUIWE SUIdooyosnoy & sem 959y T,
O[E2s 9} 01 TOPELILA B JUISSNOSIP 93¢ oM ‘SIY) JO INSAT & SY 21 /110Z PUe 11/0102
yroq 03 paredwod parmbox Suaq JFOM [BUONIPPE Ut 01 SUIPEI] SUNSI) PI[IeIdp
93e330pUN 01 SN JOJ JudwaINMbax oYy ParaS3Im ¢1 /7107 UT WIE oY) JO anfeA oy,

"pawrepd Aprsqns [€301 JO
1u2032d € JO J[eY 2UO UBYI SSI[ ST YIIYM ())S°C [ F SuI[eIol ‘rews st pawred Aprsqns
uo 1oedwr fenualod oy T, ‘vonedyenb 01 192(qns os[e seA WIEP Y], IUNOWE—]

‘poambar sem Sunsoy poyruury £304 Yoy £q [PUNOY) oy 03 anp Aprsqns oy Surseasour ()'gS ¥ F03 sem JuswpuIwE
11/010Z UI WIED 943 JO 9N[EA 9Y3 03 9NP ey} 10¢F 93 UO paseq sea ST, "00 0/ AU, "W /7 seA UONEIRNIID JOJ PINTWNS WIE]d Y3 JO IN[EA [£103 I, H%v
seA yonedynIad s1drooay [earden) Sursnof Jo Suoo ] 9yl J0J 99 JANEIIPUT O[T, wire
'008'817 S84\ €1/ 10T 303 [PUNOD) 243 305 JJOUR( XE T, [IPUNOT) PUt SUISNO] 9Y3 03 POIE[F SIY ], ‘WONEIYNIND JOJ ﬁBﬁEﬂSTu
99 9[LdS IAREIIPUI Y, "APOq POIIPNT YIED J0F $99F VOREIYNIN [ /(10T UO paseq SWIre[d JO ON[EA [€103 9U} O3 JUIWPUIWE (JULDYIUSISUL) 9UO A[UO PIYRUIPT A\

UODEIIIOD WIE[D JULIS JOJ 99J 9[€IS DANEIIPUT Uk 39S UOISSILIWO,) IIPNY 9T, P ——

S99} uonedlyniay ‘worw ¢'gSF 3o armrpuadxa 03

Sune[r ¢1 /710 ¥4 [BIDULUT oU3 JOJ SUINIDT PUE SWIE 993U} PRI IABY 9\

‘Joyyetu wﬁﬁ ur om.me .\K/Oﬁwﬂ ﬁwﬁ%ﬁo
(o2} mQOUN@G@EEOowH ou ®>._w£ w\X/ .uuc.mumamﬂw wO m@Smwﬁ %GN UC@ jou Mu:u MMO\K/ HSO 2Je mwm.mmmwa .\mom MSO .ow.m& IXou wﬁu uo ﬁwﬁﬂ_quOo 2Je mWGSUG@ Uwﬂduuﬁu MSO
sBuipuyj juesiubig sobessow A3y

JFFOM TONEDNIID JNO JO SINS9Y

%JOM UONEDIJILISD INO JO S)NSay



"W SIY) JO UONBNSIUTWIPE 91 [AIA POAUIPT U2 dABY SUIIVOD
JUELDTJTUSTS OU 1B} PIIJSNES 938 OM UINS SB ‘PUE anssT , Surdooyosnoy, & sem STy ],

“UINIOF O UNPIA PIPN[OUT 9q P[noys $1d12397 95911 95oUM

03 SE STONIAIP Oy ) (] P A[dwod 01 Pa1da1rod sem sIy T, ‘g 10Z [FdY | 23039q
Po33n020 et spesodsip (1Y) Ang 01, 3ySny 031 pares 1eyy surjood 01 100[qns
s1drooa1 [edounrd a8eSirow Jo 77 /89 L F JO UONEIISSE[D 9} PIIDIITOI JUIWPUIWE
9T, "UJNIOF O} JO dN[eA [enIdE 93 TO 10edWT 10U PIP ST INg ‘WIOF UFNIDF
s3d1009y Tearden) Sursnoty Jo SuNOO 913 UTRIA 9P JUDWPUIWE UL SLA IO,

uiny)ay sjdiadsay jeyides Buisnol jo Builjood
“Wrepd SIY) JO UONENSTUTWPE U} [T PIIJRUIPT U2Iq ALY
SUIOJU0D JUBDHTUSIS OU 1B} PIIYSNES 978 oM ([BI0) UT G) STOIID (PRI PIFHUIPT $ISLI

JO JOqUINU [[eWS 913 PUE [IOUNOT) 93 AQ Passa01d $ISEI JO JWN[OA I} UIALL)

"SI} SUTIOPISTOD APUAIIND ST JANCT

‘009147 SeA PUNOJ STOIID JO IN[EA [€I0) U3 SGGCGHEGT sem
pawre[d Aprsqns oY) Jo anfeA Y, *So[nF Y T Fpun pred sodouemO[[e JU2J O] UONE[F

UT PaWIE[D APIsqns 93 JO anfeA 9 JO 0/,G7"() Sunuasardor [[ews AXoA ST JO3I oy T,

"00S‘C 1.7 30 ApIsqns JO WIL[DFIAO PAILWASO WNIITXEU
S} UT Pa3nsa¥ UONEMI[Ed Y, "pauure[d Aprsqns uo 1oeduwr [enuatod wnwrxew o)
22e[Mmoed 03 enwiro e A[dde 01 sn $10931p AN 83 2UO UBYI 9FOUW ST 932U I\

8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

AomOG.N D.Dﬁmkwv TMNQHDKVO MGMMQ 3jouaq O3 MCﬂumoﬁ
JUSWIOIRUDS JO JUSWISSOSSE 93 Ul Pasn SeM 918] Y/ H 19911000 9U] 2JoUM U0 o

{(9g'g7F onfea) predioro Suraq Iyouaq 01 SUIPEI]
JUSWINIAUD JO JUIWSSISSE IUI UT PISN U9 PEY SWOIUT J09IFOOUT IIYM JUO ¢
:PI[rey $95ED 959U} JO OMT, "PIISI) SISED
(0 3T 913 WOJJ SIOIF PULJ 9M UM SISED (jf FOIINJ B 1591 01 SN $1993IP I M (T

‘(117122 Fonres) 21ep Areszoaruue o)
1€ POAOWIDT 10U SeM JOI[9F [EUONISULI) TONIPPE UT JUSWDNRAUD JO JUIWSSISSE I3
ur pasn 3uraq 2383 Y /303 3199330001 93 onp predioao sem 3[JOUIC 210UYM JUO o

(0,799 anJeA) JUSWOPRUD IYIUI] JO JudWSSIsse o3 ul parjdde
SUraq PFESIISIP SSUTUTED 109FF00UT 913 9NP PredioAo Sem JJoUd( dIOUM JUO ¢

:3Unsa) oY) PaIE] SISED OMT, "SISED ()7 1591
Aqrentur 01 pasmbax oxe 94\ suonIP JA( 0F SUTPI00E Sunsa) Mo wirojrad J 4\

u9030d 9UO JO J[BY Ukl $SO] SURUASIIdoT sy VoI

¢',7F 30 pawrep Aprsqns [e301 03 paredwod 93n3 JULIYIUSISUT UL ST SIYT, '00S‘CT T
JO S9OUBMO[[Y U 01 SUNE[F APISqNSs JO WIe F9A0 [eRUa10d € sem 3unsa) Jno

UT PUNOJ SI03I9 § 93 JO 10edWr PaIetwinsd WNWIXeW a3 183 (JA\(]) SUOISUdJ pue

330\ 303 3uawnredo(] ay3 03 pa1rodar o\ "PoIeIs A[ITey sem WIe[d I3 JBYI 9PN[DUOD
0 9[qeun 27oM M JBY) Sutueaw uonedyenb 01 109(qns osfe sem wrep 9y T,

Juewre ay3 01 pred 3gauaq a3 uo 10edwr Ou Sem I T,

"POJIUIPT 9JOM STOIID JOYIO OU PUE SISED JOUIO I PIMIIAII I\ "WIE 9y JO 1red
JeU3 JO anfeA €301 913 dn SUREW SISED ()G 9F9M IO [, “UOREPOWWO0IE Arerodwo)
303 o[qeded s1jouaq JO TONEIYISSE[ISIW JJO-IUO B WOIJ PIINSIT JUIWPUIWE Y T,

‘Junowe
Jeyd £q [IDUNOD) 9Y3 01 dNP APIsqns o) SUTSLIIDUT ()()'§GHf FOJ Sem JUIWPUIWEL
OUL, 'WIC /7 Sem TONEINIID JOJ PANTWNS WIE[d 92 JO aNJeA [8101 YT,

wield jyauag xej [1Idunod pue Buisnoy
sbuipuiy pajejaq

JFFOM TONEDNIID JNO JO SINS9Y

%JOM UONEDIJILISD INO JO S)NSay

Page 12



8)eq | |1ouno) ybnolog ypomwe] 1o} Hodas ¥Jom UoReIINE) | 477 MN uojuioy] Jueis) €10z 0

soorpuaddyy

saolpuaddy

Page 13



0L

ajeq | [ouno) ybnoiog yuomwe] Joj Hodal Yom uoledyue) | 417 MN Uouioy] JuelS £10Z @

sojey onsawoq

ON I'N ON 88'250°99Z°0€3 UON |euoneN
"uinyal 8y} Jo anjeA ey} sydieoay |eude)
uo joedwi oN "Ajuo s||80 usBMIaq JUBWPUBWY ON I'N SOA 2T 1E9'0V.3 Buisnoy jo Buijood
‘pawieo Apisgns
[e10} 0} paJedw0d PUNO} SI0LIS JO BNjeA pue peoj awiayos Jyausag xe |
aseo ay) 0] pasedwoo sbBuipuly uesubisul Al soh 00°8SY3 SOA | 00'SPY0LE 223 [louno) % BuisnoH
sjuswwo) épayijend (3)1 ¢papuawy (3) anjep uinjai 1o wiel
uswpuawy

¢1/2107 ¥0J PayNnI2d SUINIDF PUE SWIE[D JO S[IeI(J -y Xipuaddy

saolpuaddy

Page 14



yNn°092°uojuioy}-jueih

"SJUBI[D O} SBOIAIBS
apIn0Jd JoU S20p [BUOHBUISIU| UOJUIOY] JUBIS) “JAYIOUEB SUO JO
SBIIAIJOB 10 S3DIAIBS BU) J0j B|qISUOdSal JOU e YDIYM ‘Sl Jaquuaw
Aq Apuspuadapul paisljep ale sa01naS “diysiaupied spimpliom

€ J0U SJ& SWII} JoquIsW Y} PUE [BUOKEUISIU| UOJUIOY] JuelS)
'$a.INbaJ 1XSJU0D BU} Se ‘LY JOGUIBL SI0W IO BUO 0} Jajal pue
9jeJsado swly Jaquisl UOJUIOY | JUBIS) S} YIIYM JSpUN puelq ay} 0}
8l UOJUIOY JUBIS), O} SBOUSIBRY (JBUOHEUIBIU| UOJUIOY ] JUBID)
P [BUOHEUISIU| UOUIOY ] JUBIS) JO WLl JOGLISW B S| UOJUIOY ] JUBIS)

“diysseuped Ayjige|
pajwi| B ‘dT7 MN UOJUIOY] JUBIS) SUBSW ,UOJUIOY] JuRlS),

‘paniasal SIYBU (I "d 71 YN uouoy] Juei €10z 0

uojuloy | Juelc) o

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda Item 6

woo 1B )yn®@ppnsjieu 3
leesceec lelo L
Joyipny abieyd uj

ppny 18N

woo 16 )yn@uauleq w-ueol 3
66€G¢cC 1lCclo L

Jabeuel

jauleg ueop

wo9216)N@>009 e 'sawel 3

€yegeecicio L
Jo30a.1q
)009 sawep

¥10¢ Aenuer og
¥10Z yd1e|N L¢ Buipua seap

[OUNO") Y3noio¢ YIFoMwe ], J0J
91epd ) 2913TWWO ) 9DUBUIIAOL) PUE JIPNY

uojuloy | Jueio) °

ge 17

©
ol



-asodmd rotpo Lue ‘105 popuayur 30U 03 paredord

jou sem 330dos sr s 930doT ST JO 1ULIBOD 1) JO SISk ) UO SUNIE WOIJ SUTUTEIJOT T0
‘Bunoe Lxed parp Lue 01 pavorseddo ssof Lue 105 Lqrsuodsor Lue 1dodow Jou Op 9\ IUISTOD
uvonum yorrd 1o Jnoym 3xed ur 70 o[oym ur payonb oq Jou pnoys pue 3R oL 103 A[9[0s

poredord uooq ser 170dor ST, 'S[OFITVOD [BUINUT INOA UT $IssoUNeIM LUB JO SSOUTSN INOA
10933 Aewr YoTYM SYsTF o1} JO [1e Sunzodor 103 nok 0y d[qrsuodsor p[oY 9q JouuEd oM Femonred

ur pue 93ueyd 0] 199(qns 9q ABW YOTYM ‘STILTT JULAD[IT O]} [[E JO PI0IDF 2AISUIYRIdwod

e jou sr)] 'ssadoid Jpne mo jo 1xed se nok 0) payrodar 9q 03 podu 2SI M TOTYM
‘TONUINE INO 0) WD JABY [DIYM SINBW ) 0) A[U0 d)e[3 130doT ST} JO SIU2IWOD oY T,

Page 18



Ll
ol

abed

dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

sanssl Jipne pue BuiuNodYy

uojuloy] els

aouepinb jJuswuianob [BooT]
sjuswdojanap pue sanss| buibiaw]
¥10Z Aenuep je ssaiboid
uonoNpoU|

uol}oag

Silseilielg!

Page 19



dT1 XN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

‘Jodau siyy jo abed isuiy m

ay} uo papiroid ale s|iejap Joejuod Jisy | “Jabeuepy Jipny Jo peaT uswabebug unoA Jayys Joejuod ases|d ‘NoA 0} }salajul JO e Jey} SaNsSsI U0 qy

sojepdn |lews Jejnbal 8AI808.1 0} UOJUIOY | JUelS) YlM Ja)siBal 0} 1] pjnom Jo ‘Buijslig siy) ul swa)l Aue uo uonewlojul Jaypny o)1 pINoM noA j| n@

al
,é,Saljlioyine [eo0] aJe jual|isal Moy :W.Io)S 8y}

BuianIng, ‘,21niny ay) oy Buledald, ‘ epuabe jipne |eulajul Buidojaasp ay ], ‘,sea1Ales olignd jo uonelbiw ay |, ‘,jiulod Buiddi e spiemo], ‘€102
MBIASY 90UBUISAOL) JUSWUISAOL) |20, — Suoljedlignd Jno Jo saidoo peojumop ued noA alsH "10}08s oljgnd 8y} Ul YoM INo 0} pa)}edipap Uol}0es
B 9ABY OM 8J9UM ¥}N’00°UOJUIOY}-JUBIB MMM 8)ISgOM JNO UO [eLiS)ew [Njasn Jaylny pulj Ued 93)lILUWO0YD) 80UBUISAOL) pue JIpny 8y} JO SISqIB|\

"JOPISUOD 0} Ysim Aew aapiwwo)) ay} yoiym sanssi buibiawa asay) Jo joadsal ul suonsanb abus|jeyo Jo Jaquinu e sepnjoul

[10unod ybnoloq e se noA 0} Jueasjal aq Aew jey} sjuswdojaAap pue sanssi |euonjeu buiblaws jo Alewwns e«

:sapnoul os|e Jaded ay |

‘slojipne |eulaxa JnoA se saljljiqisuodsal Jno BulaAlep ul ssaib0.ad uo Jodal B yim 88)IluWLIO)) 82UBUIBAOS) pue }ipny ay) sapinoid Jaded siy |

gononponuy



"}JOM JIpne SJUN022E WILIB)UI

Ino Jo ued se ue|d Jipny Jno Buijelp aq [[IM AN

sjusWwWon

14104

Jaquwiaydes o¢ Aq
panss| 8q 0} anp
uoIsSN[ouod ASUOl

Jo} anje/ pue

SJUNOJJE. S,|IoUN0YD

ay} uo uoiuidp

'710¢

AInp 2 @ouswwod

e/u 01 }ipny

¥10¢ Ydlep
01 Buluuibaq
S)99M OM) 8y} pue

‘v1 0z Menuer 0z
e/u Buluuibaq yeap)

e/u v10C YdIeN /¢

é91v|dwon ajep pauue|d

dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

"uoIsnjouod Asuoly 1oy anje) pasodosd .
SJUNO22E §,|19UN0) 8y} uo uoluido pasodoid
sjuswiaje)s |eloueul} ¢L-¢L0g 84} Jo Jpne .
:Buipnjou

Jipne sjunodJde jeul} y1-€10¢C

"uoISn|ouod Asuol Jo} anje) pasodosd .

Bunse) eAnuelsgns Alles .

sonss| Buipunoooe Buiblawa uo YJom AjJea .
Swia)sAs

[eIOUBUL) 8400 UO S}iodal Jpny [BUJBlU| JO MBIABL

Swa)sAs [eioueuly jo Buipuelsiapun Jno Bunepdn .
JUBWUOUIAUS

|0JJUOD S,|1IoUN0Y) BY} JO MaIAaJ Ino Bunepdn .

:sepnjoul

USIA YJomp|al} WdUI INO }PNE SJUNOIIE WLId)U|

"Sjuswia)e)s |eloueUl)
¥1-€10Z S,|louno) ay) uo uoluido ue aAIb 0y JapJo Ul

yoeolidde pasodo.d ino jno Bumes j1ouno) ayy 0y ueld

Jipne sjunoooe pajie}ep e anss| 0} palinbai ale s\
ue|d }pny sjunoddy y1-€102C

YIOM

+10¢ Arenue( e $S9I307]

Page 21



soA

e/u

sjuswwo) ¢aja|dwo)

dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

‘¥10Z Aenuer g
uo slagquiaw J0} dOYSHIOM SOUBUIBAOS) B papiroid S
10 Aenuer G| uayeuapun AjAnoe 1ay3j0

"99)ILW0)

ay) Jo Bunesw Jaje| e 0} ue|d uonedyusd Jno jussaid
[IIM pUB UOISSIWIWOY PNy 8y} WO} SUoioNIsul
Jayuny Bunieme Ajpualind ate app ‘jood sydieoal

|eydeo Buisnoy sy} 0} UOIINQIIUOD By} pUB ‘uJinjal sajel
SSauISNg 8y} ‘wie|d Jysuag xe |1ouno) pue BuisnoH
ay} AJi11a0 0y palinbai aq |m am jey) aedioiue apn
‘Buipuny ay} Buipinoid

suonesiuebio Juswulanob [esjuad ay} yym uonounfuod
Ul UoISSIWIWOY JIpny 8y} Aq panssi suoijoalp

ay} Jad suinjal pue swieo A1a0 0} palinbal aie ap\
padunouue 8q 01 }J0M JO seale 1ayl0

$82JN0sal [einjeu Jo Juswabeuey -«
Ayanonpoud pue Aousioie Buinoidw) .
sa0Jnosal buisiuoLd

|0JJUOD |BIoUBUIH o

2oueuIBAOb |eloueul{ .

Buiuued jeioueuly o168)eNS

10z Jaqueydag ul aouew.lopad |eloueul) JO siojedlpul Aoy .
uaAIb sI uoisnjouoo :s9s11dWO092 UoISN|OU0D
Aauow 1o} anjep NSA ¥7L/€10Z 98U} WIojul 0} ¥Iom Jno Jo 8doos ay |
ay} |pun BuiobuQ uoisnjouo? (JAA) Asuoy 10 anjep
a)ep pauue|d YIOM

+10¢ Arenue( e $S9I307]

Page 22



dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

¢pajuawaldwi usaq ue|d uoiOe Ue Sey ‘paljjuspl Usaq dABY SBNSS| JBYAN o
ssuonesiuebio
Jejiwis jsuiebe awooul Jo sjaAg| pue Aaljod Buibieyd s,|10unod ay) pamainal (Sa2IAI8S 9)e10di0)) 10j0alIq SAIINOSXT JINOA SBH
¢ Suawalinbal jebs| yum BulAldwod pue saaijoalqo [eioueul s, j1lounod ay) buiioddns aue saioijod
Buibieyo |BoO| Jayoym ssasse 0} J1apio ul Buipuads 0} uonngrLiuod sy pue Buibieys wouy awodul ul sabueyod 10jIUoW SI321}J0 INOA 0 »
¢,8bueyd 1oy} a|gejieae ase suondo Jeypn
¢,.S0A108[qo o1ba)ed)s s,|1ouno) ay) Joddns [3s Aoijod s, [1ouno) ay) seoQq ¢Ad1j0d Buibieyd [e20] SI MaIASI 1SE| [IDUNOD BY) PIP UBUAA
:suonsanb abugjiey)n

., Bunje) ale s|1ounod sayoeosdde ay} asiunnios Ajjnjaied 0y s10j09|e

pue S1o||lounod spulwal pue ‘sadiAlas alignd Buipuny ul sAejd Buibieys ajol juesiiubis ayy syybiybiy Ing ‘peq Jou poob Jayjieu si xXe)
[1oUNOS uey} Buibieyd wol) BWOJUI 8I0W SALIBP SBIPOQ SWOS Jey) Joe) ay | ‘Juswabeuew |eloueul} dibajel)s sjiounod ul sAejd buibieyd ey
9JoJ jJuenodwi ayj puejsiapun djay 0} ‘JUNOIde 0} WBY) P|OY OYM 9SOY} puUe ‘S|Iounod 4o} S|00) pue uonewlojul Buipiroid ale app “saloljod
Buibieyd [Boo| J18Y} }8S S[IDUNOD MOY JO} BJNWIO} ||B-SH}-8ZIS-8UO, OU S| 8J8Y |, PIES ‘UBWIMSN AWaIa ‘UBWIIBYD UOISSIWWOY JIpNY 8y |

‘sabieyo ybnouy) paressusb Buleq usd Jjad /g 0} Z YUM ‘S[IDUNOD JOLISIP
JOJ }Sow paLieA Z1/1 10z ul Buipuads o0} Buibieyo Jo uonnquiuod ay| “sieah Juadal JaA0 asay) 0} sabueyo ay) pue ‘Buipuads aoiAles
0} awooul buibieyo Jo oned ay) ‘sabieyd wouy ajelauab Aay) swodul Jo Junowe ayj JO SWIS) Ul S|IouUN0d usamiaq uoljelieA jealb sialay) .
sybnosoq uopuoT (Juad Jad | Z) 8Al} Ul BUO pUB S[IDUNOD JOLISIP (JUBD Jad Z¢) @aly) Ul BUO Ul XB) [IDUNOD PaPaaIXd
1 |9A9] [BOO] BY} 1B ‘Z1/L LOZ Ul Xe} 1ounod ybnouy) pasiel Junowe ay} ey uey} ssa| sem Buibieyd woly swooul [e)jo) ay) Ajjeuoijeu  «
S|IOUN0J JOUISIP JO JUBD Jad Oz pue ‘ainjipuadxa a2IAISS ||BJOAO S|I9UNOD AJUNOD pue Jal-a|buls Jo uad Jad g papuny ZL/L10g Ul Buibieyo .
:a1om sbBuipuly Aoy

‘seale 92IAI9S PeOIq SSOJIOE S|I0UN0D JO SadA) Jualayip Jo) Spual} 8y} Je SY00|
1| ‘Buipuads a21A18S 0} dpeW }JI UONGLIIUOD By} pue ‘uol||iq Z' 0L 3 Buljeioy ‘Buibieys wody swodul Z1/1 1.0Z ,S|IPunod Jo sisAjeue ue sapinoid
Bulyeuq ayl *,£10¢Z Joquaidag 'sa|iioid N4/\ @Yl Wol) ejep buisn :buibieyd wod) awodu], paysiignd uoissiwwo) JIpny ay) ‘Jaquisidasg uj

Buibieys wou} sawoosu|

aouepinb juswuianob |20

SIUOWdOIAIP PUE SONSST SUTSTOW]

Page 23



dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

is|eadde ajes ssauisng 4o} uoisiaold syl 10} 81ewI}Se }Snqod e apew sey Ajoyine JnoA jey) paisines noA aly .

¢9oe|d ui ueid uooe ue s| .

£S9)el SSaUISN WOoJ) S}08]|0 JI JUNOWE 8y} 8sealdul 0} aye} Ajloyine JnoA pinod sda)s 1eypy  »

ssuonesiuebio Jejiwis 1suiebe Ajioyine JnoA jo aouewlopiad pue s}S00 8y} pamalnal (sadlnleg aielodlo)) J010allig dAIIN0aX] JNOA SeH
:suonsanb abugjieyn

"$}S0D U01309)|00 Buionpal

sojel uo1j09||0o Buinoidwi .

Jalja1 1o} swieo yuajnpnedy Buipjoe} pue bunuanaid .

paau ul }sow sassauisng Bunabuie} ‘Aem aajosaye ue ul jaljal Aleuonalosip Buisn .

Apdwoud anjea s|gesjel e yym saiuadolad ssauisng (e Buljjiq pue Buikjpuspl .

Bale ay) 0} sassauIsng mau Bunoedyie pue [|om op 0} ssauisng Bunysixs buiioddns .

:S9]elJ SSAUISNQ SSIWIXeW 0} ).} p|n0d S|IDuUNnod sdajs Buimoljo) ayy sybiybiy osie uoissiwwod Ipny ay |

"sajel ssauisng Buiyos)||oo
JO S]S0D pue sdjel U0I}09||09 S,|Iounod ysiibug jo sisAjeue ue smoys pue sajijoid (\4/\) ABUO 1o} anje S,UOISSILIWOD 8y} WO} umelp
uaaq sey buyalq syl €10z 1990120 SaJ1}0id N4/ U} WoJ) ejep buisn :Sajel ssauisng, paysiignd uoissiwwod) JIpny ayj 18gqojo0 u|

"ymolb 8y o jey
daay |Im sanoyine ‘smolb awooul 8)el ssauisng Sy ‘jood [euoijeu ay) oul e ) BuiAed ueyy Jayjel J09]|00 A8y} 8wodUl S8)el SsauIsng ay)
JO Jjey doay| 0} 8|ge 8q MOU ||IM 3|OYM B SB SaljlIoyjne [e207] "aWayds Uuoiualal Sajel sSsauisng e paonpoJiul Juswuianob ayy ‘¢ Loz dy u|

uol1}29]|09 djked ssauishg

aouepinb juswuianob |20

SIUOWdOIAIP PUE SONSST SUTSTOW]

Page 24



dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

¢,9oe|d ul ue|d uonjoe ue alayj sI ‘payiuspl saiunyoddo Jo4 .
(VYH ayy ebeuew 0} aoe(d ul sjuswabuelle Juswabeuew
pue [eioueul ‘@dueutanob ay) anosdwi 0y saiiunuoddo ale a1y} Jayaym palapisuod (Sadinieg ajelodion) J0joaliq SAIIN0aXT INOA SeH
&,9ouepinb mau sy} Jo b1 Ul YYH 9yl pamalnal Ajlioyine JnoA seH .
:suonsanb abugjiey)d

‘paJinbau Ajjew.loy jou siI aoueldwoo pue Aloje|nbal-jjas aq 0} paubisap sI 8po9 SIy |

"VYH Jiay) 1o} sylomawel) Juswabeuew
|elouUBUl pue 8oueUIaA0B aAnoaye dojaAsp pue ssasse 0} saiioyine djay os|e ||Im )| “sieAed 8jel pue s|IouNo9 Yjoq 0} suinjal )i anjea
8y} 8seaIoUl pue YK Jisy) Jo 8ouewlouad ay) 8)en|eAs pue |0J)u09 0} A1essadsu S|00) 8y} SaljlioyIne aAIb 0} swie 8poo AJejun|oA ay |

* JUNOJOY
anuaAey DUISNOH paduBUIl-J[8S B J0J 8p0)) AIBJUN|OA, 8y} panssi (H]D) BuisnoH jo ajnysu| palauey) ayl pue 441D 1eqooQ |
JUNO22Y aNUAAdY BuisnoH ay} uo asioeid Jo apon Aiejun|op

aouepinb juswuianob |20

SIUOWdOIAIP PUE SONSST SUTSTOW]

Page 25



ok

dT1 XN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

‘djay p|noo
uojuJIOY | JueIS) MOY 98s 0} Jabeuew Jipne JnoA 0} yje} ‘pned) Juswalnoold Jo/pue sassadold sjuawainoold uo sauanb Aue aney noA |

¢Jauuew aindas pue ajes e ul suololdsns Jiay) Jodal
0} 9|qe aJe Aay) |98} seakojdwa Agasaym ‘Buimolgapsiym Joy wsiueyoasw Buimolgafisiym ayenbape ue uiejuiew Ajioyine JnoAk seoq
¢ paebaibas Auesjo ale sannp alsaym ‘ssaooud juswainoold Buiuonouny Aluadold e aaey Ajuoyine noA seoq .
:suonsanb abuajieyn

,’suonoe Jayjo Aq uo paiinds ale Jnq ‘AlAioe 8y} asijeuoljel Ajuo jou
seakojdwa aiaym ‘pnel} Jo aoueidesoe apim a1n)nNd B Ojul ||[EGMOUS O} [enpiAlpul ue Aq jusapioul Alojelojdxa auo si seye) )l ||e Sewlowos

‘pnel} Juswainoold 1oy smojje yoiym Aouspuodsep Jo aleydsowie ue paaliq Ued — siojoe) BulleAl}ow Jayjo JO JUNOIOE UO JOo Ajjeloueul) Jay)ie

— panjeAsapun Buiga) seakojdw3 ‘|eyA si uieb onsiunuoddo ue Aq paydwa) aie Asy) aiaym uonisod e ul jou ale ajdoad ainsus BuidjaH,

'$SO| JO YSU SIY)

Jo yonw Bunebniw 0y Asy si sseo0.d Juswainooid Buiuonouny Ajyedold e a10je1ay) pue JUNOWe Sy} JO W9/ 83 0} POIUN0IIE JUSWUISA0D
[B00] Ul pnel) Juswalnoold "1eah siy) uge 6|3 Buliebbe)s e payoeal pnelj Jo 1800 8y} “10}08s aljgnd Japim ay) Ul ey} sarewyss Ajloyiny

pnelq [euoneN ay) ‘SMaN JUSWUIBAOL) |00 Ul 8J0JM ‘g7 MM UOUIOY | JuelS) Je SOISualo4 10}0aS 21|gnd JO pesaH ‘sluaws|) sUyD sy

"SjulelISu09 Jayybly Jepun a)esado
pue sjabpnq Jiay) 0} S}ND JayLINy 8)ew 0} SaljlIoyIne padJo) Sey Jawwns siy) JaljJes juswaosunouue punoy Buipuadg s Jojjeoueyd ay |

pneuy Jusawainooud 1o} [eruajod

uojuioy] jueis

SIUOWdO[IAIP PUE SINSST SUTSTOW]

Page 26



H dT11)IN uojuioy] ueln 10z ©

¢91ep 0} dn pue

[eLIS}BW ‘JUBAS|SJ 4B SBINSOJOSIP JBy} 8INSUd 0} 8sI0Jaxa Bula)no-ap e jno pauled (Sa91AIag 9)el0dio)) J0Joaliq dAIIN09XT] JINOA SeH
Aoyine unoA jo aouewlopad |eioueuly 8y} Jo ainoid |[BJaA0 Jeg[o e apinoid sjuawale)s [eloueul) JNoA oQq

Y 1/€10Z 104 Sjuswialels |eloueul) JnoA Jo uoneldedald ay) anoidwi 0} Buiuue|d noA ale MOH

:suonsanb abugjieyn

‘v10Z Aenuer G| uo aoe|d »o0)] sbunesw asay)
JO1S11} 8y "Sjuswale)s [eloueUl 8y} JO ipne Jno pue uoleledald Jiay} ssnosip 0} sn yym sbuisaw Jo salas e pabuelle aney SIa210 JNOA

"MO||0} O} JBISEd YoNUW 8JoMm
pue Z1/1 10z 4o} 8soy} o yibua| ayj Jjey Ajuo aie aiem Jey) €1/Z10Z Ul Sluswa)e)ls [eloueul) Jo 18s e Buionpold ul pepesdons uojuloy| juels)
AQ paypne |10unoo auQ ‘s|eob asay) aAsIyoe 0} saljlloyine [e00] Jo abuel e yum Buiyiom ussq Sey Uojuloy | Juels) Jey} S8jou Weyels)

uiod Buipe)s ay) se sjuswalels [eloueul s Jeak snoinald ay) Buisn spunodoe J1ay) Jayno-ap .
sJeak alnjny Joj SJUSWIB)E]S [BlouUBUIS BY} JO Jipne pue uoljeledald ay) aAoidwi 0} €1,/Z10Z WOJ) SUOSSS| dY} UIed| .

10} @) UBD saljlloyine |eoo| sda)s [eonjoeld 8y} 1IN0 S}os pea |edluyos ] |euoleN S,uojuioy | Juels) ‘|[eppi
weyels ‘uoneolignd eoueul) Ajioyne [e00] BUI-UO 8y} ‘TG W00y Ul 8|oIle J8go}oQ SIY U] “MOU 8Uop 8q Ued Jey) yonw si a1ay) ‘JIoAeMOH

"aloym e se uolssajold Bunjipne pue Buiunoooe ay) wolj apniijie pue ainynd ul abueys papasu yonw e salinbal siy| “sioupne

pue sjunoooe ay) Jo siadedald ‘sianes piepuels BuiajoAul SS820ud BAIBIOgR||02 B SI Bululjueas jJey) MaIA JNo JN0 }8s am ‘asuodsal Ino
U] ‘sjuswale)s |eroueul) Ajuoyine [eoo] Ajlidwis pue auljweal)s 0} MOY UO pajnsuod Ajjuadal aney DYVYSY1/V4dID pue Auinsead] AH yiog
sjuawaje)s |eloueuly Ajioyine [eoaoj jo uoneyuasaid ayj Buluijweays pue bulAyjdwig

sanssi Jipne pue Buiunosoy

SIUOWdOIAIP PUE SONSST SUTSTOW]

Page 27



4

dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

¢oedwl
[enusajod ay) passasse pue apo)d GL/y7L0Z Yl 01 sjuswpuawe pasodolid ay) pamalnal (sa9inIag aielodio)) 1010aU1q dAIIN0aXT] JNOA seH
:uonsenb abusjeyn

‘paiiienb Ajjuaiind ae sjunodY JUBWUIBAOL) JO SJOYAA 8Y) YDIUM IO} BBJe UE S| SIY}
asneoaq Auejnoiued ‘Ajuoud Jo Jajjew e se sjooyas 10) sanssi Buiunoooe ay) Buissalppe Jo aouelodwi ay) pasiseydwa am - S|o0YdS .
"S8I}NOIYIP 8SBY} SWOIBA0 d|aY 0} SBILIOYINE [ed0] pue DVYVSY1/VdID UIM 3IOM 0} paiajjo aAey pue sy} Bulop ul saindiip
[eonoeld ay} asiubooal ap) ‘S}19SSse ainjonJiseldjul 1o) Buinunoooe paseq Sy 4| Jo uondope ay) payuoddns am - S}osse ainoniSesu| .
'Sy 4| Jepun sjunoooe Buliedaud salpoq (e Aq anjea Jiej} Jo uoneoldde
uowwo? e si aiay) Jeyy Juelodwi se U psebal ap) “8|qissod se A|9sojo se € SY4| Jo sojdiould ay) moj|o) pjnoys apoD 8yl - €1 Syl .
:9JOM SMBIA JNO ‘SBNSS| UOIIE}NSU0D A8Y JBY)0 Y} JO BWOS 8} JO J0adsal u|

‘spJepue)s Buijunodoe woly 1xa) Jeadal 0] ¥88s Jou op sjenuew Buijunodoe ay) alaym ‘SHN

ay} ul paydope eyl yum juaisisuod si yoeoludde siy| ‘seAjasway) spiepuels BuiAliepun ayy 0} Ajjoadip Bulilajal saijuoyine [eoo] Yjm apoD
Jaidwis Jaoys yonw e ul }nsal pjnom siy] ‘suonjejaidiaiul o suoljeidepe [ewuo) paiioads ale alay) a1aym uey} Jayjo piepuels Buizunosoe
JUBAS|a] 8Y) MOJ||0} 0} paldinbal ate salpoq ydiym Japun [enuely Buiuodey |eioueul4 ayy ul Ainseal | ay) Aq paydope yoeoudde ay) smoj(o}
a9ljoeld JO 8p0o) ay) 1ey) pajsabbns app "osodind 1oy 1) pue yjbus| ajqeuoseal Jo ‘eAisuayaidwod Si jey} apo) B JoNJSuod 0} }NdIYIp
AlBuiseauoul si J 1ey) suesaw Ajgeynaul (Sy4|) spiepuess Buijodad |eloueul) jeuoieulalul JO AJixa|dwod ay} jey) pajou am asuodsal Jno u|

"1870}0Q Ul p8so|0 GL/#10Z 10} ddN0eId J0 8p0D Bununoody Ajioyiny (8207 8y} UO UOHBYNSUOD S,DVVSY1/V4dID
SL/¥1L0Z 10} 92130R1d JO 8p0oH Buizunosay Ajioyjny |ED0T UO UOIIR}NSUO)

sanssi Jipne pue Buiunosoy

SIUOWdO[IAIP PUE SINSST SUTSTOW]

Page 28



el

dT1 XN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

¢, s4eak aininy ul senssi aoueldwoo-uou ssalppe 0} ade|d ul ind usaq ue|d uoljoe ue sey
pue |eldjewwl si adueldwod-uou Aue 1ey) palsiies noA ale ‘¢1/$ 10z ul 8pod ay} yum Ajiny A[dwod o} ajgeun si Ajloyine JnoA alayppy
éSsjuawalinbal apon ayj Jo syoadse Jayio yym saldwod Alioyine JnoA ainsua
0} ssa00.4d uonen|eA e pajuswajdwl pue apo) +1/€ 10z 94l 0} sebueyo ay) pamairal (S92IAI8S 9)e10dli0)) 10j0aliq SAIINOSXT JINOA SBH
£,91ep jeyl je anjeA Jiej 8y} Buisn paulwlaep aq pjnom ydiym jey}
wouj Ajleliajew Jayip 10U [IM 102 YaJel L€ e uswdinbg pue jueld ‘Aladold Jo junowe BulAlied ayj jeyy ainsus o} Jejnbas Ajuaioyns
sl swwelbold uonenjeaal JnoA ey} palsies SIosIApe [euoissajold INoA pue (sao1Alag a1elodio)) 10joaliq dA1IN0aXT JNOA Yyloq aly
suolsanb abusg|eyn

‘v1L0Z Alenuer G| uo apo) ayy 0} sabueyd ayj Jo 1ybi| ul swwelboid uoneneAal s|IDUNOD BY} SN YJIM PASSNISIP SI821440 JNOA

"Jeak |eloueul} swes 8y} UIY)IIM panjeA aq pjnoys ssejo Jejnoiued

B UIY}IM S)JaSSe ||e ‘9p0D) ay} yum A|[dwoo 0} ey} sisabbns sejep jualajip 18 se sanjeA pue s}S09 Jo ainjxiw e Builiodas pioAe 0} Juswalinbal
S,9p00 9y} Ing ,pouad 1oys e, JO uoniulap ou SI aiay] "ajep 0} dn ydey ale suolenjeaal ay) papinoid pue poliad Uoys e ulyym paajdwod
S| S}9SSE JO SSB[O 8y} JO uoljen|jeAal ay) papirold siseq Buljjos B U0 panjeAal 8q 0} SSe[O aWes 8y} UIYIM S}asse sjiuiad apo) ay) ‘JaAamoH

"S8)EP JUBIBYIP JB SE SaNn|eA pue S)S02 JO ainjXiW B aJe Jey} Sjuswajels |eloueul) 8y} ul syjunowe jo Buipiodal
B} pue S)esSe JO uoljen|eAal aA1j08|8s PIoAR 0} Ajshoaue)nwis panjeaal aq 0} Juswdinba pue jue|d ‘Ajiedoud JO SSe[0 B UIylIM SWall -«
poliad Builiodal sy} Jo pus ay) je anjea Jiej ayy Buisn
paulwlalap 8q PINOM UdIym 1ey) wol) Ajjelisjew Jayip jou saop junowe Bulkiied ay} ey} ainsua 0} Jejnbal Ajuaiolyns aq 0} suollen|eAal .
:Buninbal Agq uondo siy} s1o113S81 MOU 8p0D) +1/€1L0Z dYL "SJeah G Jo wnuwixew e
JBAO siseq Buljjol e uo N0 palled aq 0} suoljenjeA papiwiad apod ay} Ajsnoinald ‘jJuswdinba pue jue|d Auadold Jo suonen|ea 1no ALed o0}
palinbal aie sanuoyine yoiym je Aousanbaly ayj Joj sjuswalinbai ay} sabueyd Buijunodoy Ajuoyiny |e207 UO 8210e1d 40 8p0D +1/£10Z dYL
suoinenjeaas Juawdinba pue jue|d Ajiadolig

sanssi Jipne pue Buiunosoy

SIUOWdO[IAIP PUE SINSST SUTSTOW]

Page 29



14

dT1MN uojuioyL ey y10¢ @

¢NoA 108k M [|Ig PNy [B20T Belq 8y} Japun sjuswabuelle yipne pasodold ay} Moy paiapiSuod noA aneH -«
:uonsenb abusjleyn

‘Jpne 21gnd |eoo| Buiuienob ylomawel) aAle|siba) ay) Bunepdn .

Asuouw Joj anjeA ainoas 0} sjuswabueldle uo Buijiodas .

a1ignd ay) pue Juswelled o} Ajjigeiunoooe buiuoddns .

SaIpoq |[BWS .

SAljeniu| pnel{ |euoljeN ayj .

sjusweabuelle juswjuiodde jipne .

sjuswabuelle Juswaindoid BAIJ09|[0D .

:ale seale 9say | ‘parosdwi Jaypuny 8q ued

119 U} 1By} dA81|8q UOISSILUWOY HPNY 8y} 818yM SEaIE Y} UO MSIA B SB ||oM SE ||Ig Y} UO uolijewlojul punolbyoeq sapiroid Buyaluq ay |

Juaweled ybnouyy
Buiob Apuaiing si |jig 8yl ‘'g ANIGEIUN02dY pue Ipny |20 8y} Uo aj0u buljalq e paysiignd uoissiwwo) Ipny ayj ‘Jaquaidas uj
11'9 A1j1qejuno29y pue jipny |e207 ay) uo Buyaliq oljgnd

sanssi Jipne pue Buiunosoy

SIUOWdO[IAIP PUE SINSST SUTSTOW]

Page 30



)N"09°uojulIOy JuRIS

"SUOISSILLIO JO §)9€ S Jaljjoue

aU0 10} 3|qel| J0U 3Ie pue Jayjoue auo ‘aediqo Jou op pue ‘jo sjuade jou aie

SULIY JaquuaL )l pue 7|15 “Sjusl|d 0} S82IAI8S BPIACId JoU SB0P |15 Sy
Jaquisiu 8Ly Aq palanjap ale seoniag ‘Aijus [eSa| sjeledas e S| WY JaquusLu
yoea pue |15 “diysisupied apIMPUOM B JOU aJe SULIY JaqLIBLL aL) pue 7|15

*(7115) P37 [EUORERLISIU| UOJLIOL | JUBE) JO LY JSGLUBLU B SI 477 Y UoJuIoy | Juels)
"SaliNbaJ JX8JU02 BU} SB ‘SLLIY JAqLUAL 3IOW JO JUO 0} SIajal Jo/pue sJualld

118y} 0} $201Bs AIOSIADE pUR Xe} ‘aJueinsse apinoad Ly JaguuaLl

UOJLIOL]| JUBJS) 3UJ LUDIYM J8pun pueiq au 0} SJajas UOJLIOL | juels),

"PanIasal SIyBu Iy '] N Uolwoy] jueld €102 @

“yimoub 1oj 1ounisul uy

uojuIOoY | JuBIS) °

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEAgenda Item 7

THURSDAY 30 JANUARY 2014

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

FINANCIAL GUIDANCE

EXEMPT INFORMATION

None

PURPOSE
To seek Member endorsement of the recently reviewed Financial Guidance which forms an

important part of the Council’s regulatory framework, and to provide an opportunity for
Members of the Committee to raise any issues they consider appropriate on the subject.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members endorses the Changes to Financial Guidance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As part of the core functions under the terms of reference, this Committee is empowered to
maintain an overview of the Council’s Financial Regulations.

The last review of Financial Guidance was approved by this Committee in September 2012.
No changes to policy or material adjustments have been made during this review. Corporate
Management Team have endorsed the amendments made.

In summary, the main changes made during this review of Financial Guidance are:

—

A relevant contact officer has been identified for each section.

2 The guidance has been aligned to the changes made to the Constitution. (section
1)

3 Updated to reflect the new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. (section 3)

4 EU Directive thresholds amended to the new amounts (6.7.7)

5 Funding to Voluntary & Community Sector Organisations section has been

updated (6.16)
6 The requirements for the setting of fees and charges has been amended to be
aligned with the Constitution.(10.1.1).

The updated version of Financial Guidance is attached as Appendix 1.

Page 33



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers — Head of Internal Audit Services

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Financial Guidance

Page 34



CONTENTS

SECTION A Financial Regulation Policy
Purpose
Controls

SECTION B Financial Regulations

Financial Regulations
Contract Standing Orders

SECTION C Financial Guidance
1 Financial Management

1.1 Introduction

1.2  The Full Council

1.3  The Cabinet

1.4  The Audit & Governance Committee
1.5 The Corporate Scrutiny Committee
1.6 The Statutory Officers

1.7  Scheme of Delegation

1.8  Accounting Policies

2 General Guidance

2.1 Introduction

2.2  Employees Responsibilities

2.3  Miscellaneous

3 Risk Management & Control of Resources
3.1 Risk Management

3.2 Insurances

3.3 Internal Controls

3.4 Internal Audit

3.5  Treasury Management

3.6 Prudential Code

4 Revenues Budgets & Expenditure
41 Introduction

4.2  Incurring Expenditure

4.3  Budget Monitoring & Variances

4.4  Virement

4.5 Income Generation

| Revised Sept-2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/12 1

Page 35

11
11
12
12
14
14
17
17

19
19
20

21
21
22
23
25
26

28
28
28
29
31



5 Capital Budgets & Projects

5.1 Definition of Capital 32
5.2  Leasing/Rental Agreements 32
5.3  Authority to Incur Capital Spend 32
5.4  Monitoring 33
5.5 External Funding 34
5.6 Disposal of Capital Assets 35
6 Procurement & Contracts

6.1 Introduction 36
6.2  Summary of Requirements 39
6.3  Alternative Purchasing Arrangements 43
6.4  Appraisal of Potential Contractors 44
6.5 Supplier Register 45
6.6 Framework Agreements 45
6.7 Tender Procedures 46
6.8  Post Tender & Contracts 53
6.9  Project/Contract Implementation & Payment 55
6.10 Final Account 57
6.11 Post Contract 57
6.12 Partnerships 58
6.13 Orders for Supply from External Sources 59
6.14 Advance Payments 60
6.15 Voluntary & Community Sector Commissioning Framework 61
6.160rders from Internal Suppliers 61
6.17 Some Definitions 61
6.18 Further Advice & Guidance 61
7 Payment of Accounts

7.1 Introduction 62
7.2  Security & Good Practice 63
7.3 Invoice Processing 63
7.4  Electronic Payment Mechanisms 64
8 Payment of Salaries & Allowances

8.1  Salaries 65
8.2 Allowances & Expense Claims 66
8.3 Members Allowances 67

9 Cash Advances, Cash Floats & Petty Cash

9.1  Purpose 68
9.2 Processes 68

| Revised Sept-2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/12 2

Page 36



10 Income, Charging & Debts

10.1 Fees & Charges 69
10.2 Receiving Payment 69
10.3 Postal Payments 71
10.4 Cashing Up Procedures 71
10.5 Depositing Money 71
10.6 Money Laundering 72
10.7 Invoices, Debtors & Other Sums Due 73
10.8 Debt Write Off 73

1 Assets & Equipment

11.1 Responsibilities 74
11.2 Scope 74
11.3 Use 75
11.4 Disposal 75

12 Stocks & Stores

12.1 Responsibilities 76
12.2 Stocktaking 76
12.3 Obsolete & Unserviceable Stock 77
12.4 Intellectual Property 77
13 Security 77
14 Data Quality 79
Appendices

Separation of duties

Retention of documents

Counter Fraud & Corruption Policy Statement, Strategy & Guidance Notes
Whistleblowing Policy

Risk Management Policy

| Revised Sept-2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/12 3

Page 37



SECTION A

Financial
Regulation Policy

Page 38



FINANCIAL REGULATION POLICY
Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

Purpose
The financial regulation framework within the Council aims to:

a) promote best value, service delivery and delivery of the Council’s vision;

b) provide sound arrangements for all the Council’s financial affairs and to be
able to demonstrate that proper controls are in place;

c) safeguard Members and officers by setting out procedures which meet the
Council’s expected standards.

Financial regulations are not intended to inhibit creativity but to provide the
parameters within which creativity may be exercised. They are intended to guide
and support managers and their staff. Financial control at a corporate level is
achieved primarily through transparency and accountability. Managers and
especially Chief Officers and budget holders occupy key roles. Managers are
given appropriate authority to deploy resources in pursuit of agreed objectives.
Their activities are expected to adhere to specified standards and they are required
to report upon and be accountable for their actions. Those engaged in support
functions (for example, Accountancy) do not themselves directly exert control.
Their responsibilities are to support frontline services and to monitor activities.
Where necessary they must act as whistle-blowers (See Whistleblowing Policy).

Controls

The financial regulation framework comprises this policy document, financial
regulations and contract standing orders approved by Council and detailed
guidance issued by the Council’s Executive Director Corporate Services, to support
these documents. They contain a mixture of:

a) responsibilities;

b) instructions;

c) expected standards of behaviour,;
d) discretionary powers.

Instructions and responsibilities are clearly set out. All employees and Members
are required to comply where they are applicable. The expected standard of
behaviour and discretionary powers are guidelines to aid employees and Members
in their day to day activities. They cannot cover all potential circumstances. All
employees and all Members are therefore required at all times when engaged on
Council activities to act reasonably, having regard to this framework, and to act
within the spirit of the framework.

A review of the policy and guidance is to be completed annually.

Section A 5
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 39



SECTION B

Financial
Regulations

Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/16/12 6

Page 40



FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

1

10

11

12

13

All employees and all Members must at all times when engaged on Council
activities act in the interests of the Council as a whole.

All employees and all Members must comply at all times with these
regulations wherever they apply.

All employees and all Members must act reasonably and within the spirit of
the financial regulation framework.

All relevant financial interests must be declared to the Solicitor to the
Council (Monitoring Officer).

All activities must be in accordance with:

a) Legislation;

b) approved service plans or corporate plans;

c) approved service net revenue budgets or capital programmes;
d) relevant Council policies and adopted codes of practice;

Any material departures (actual or potential) must be reported formally to
Members as soon as practicable.

Where practicable all activities should be in accordance with accepted best
practice.

Best value and value for money must be sought in all activities, including
the procurement of goods and services.

Budgets at an appropriate level of detail must be prepared by the start of
each financial year for all activities and units of the Council.

Material changes to financial policy or the distribution of resources must be
referred to Council for approval.

Service managers have primary responsibility for the control and
management of all resources of all kinds made available to them.

All managers must ensure and regularly check that there is a full set of
controls in every system under their management, including an adequate
segregation of duties and an assessment of risk in all activities and
decisions.

All employees must consider the need to seek appropriate views, advice
and guidance before embarking on a course of action and particularly on a
new course of action. This includes seeking advice from managers in other
services, for example consulting the Director, Technology & Corporate
Programmes on the procurement of information technology or the
Executive Director Corporate Services on the arrangement of leases,
rentals or agreements involving the use of assets to or from the
authority.

All managers must ensure that all assets and personnel must be adequately
secured or protected and appropriate insurance arranged where necessary.

Section B 7
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 41



14 Adequate records must be maintained of all transactions in all systems (a
complete audit trail) and unrestricted access must be allowed to all assets
and records for:

a) the Chief Executive;

b) the Executive Director Corporate Services;

c) the Head of Internal Audit Services;

d) External Auditors and other statutory inspectors;
e) Officers designated by any of the above.

Employees must supply information to those officers on request.

15 Managers must routinely monitor all activities under their control and report
on any significant variations from expected standards.

16 Managers must report at regular intervals on performance on planned
activities and on financial performance against approved budgets.

17 All employees and all Members must report any suspected:
a) failure in any system:;
b) failure to comply with financial regulations;
c) suspected criminal act, including fraud or corruption.

The report should normally be made to the line manager. Full guidance is
provided in the Council's Counter Fraud Policy Statement, Strategy &
Guidance Notes.

Any manager who suspects such an occurrence must take any immediate
action necessary to rectify any failure in a control system and report the
position to a relevant senior manager, who may include the Chief Executive,
Executive Director Corporate Services, Monitoring Officer or Head of
Internal Audit Services.

18 The Executive Director Corporate Services shall, with the agreement of the
Chief Executive and Solicitor to the Council (Monitoring Officer), issue
detailed guidance on procedures to be followed in compliance with these
regulations.

19  All employees must comply with any applicable instructions or
responsibilities specified in the guidance. In other respects all employees
must act reasonably, having regard to the guidance and within the spirit of
the guidance.

Section B 8
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 42



CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS
Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

1. All employees must comply with these standing orders, the relevant
regulations relating to Public Contracts and with financial regulations when
procuring goods and services.

2. All Directors have primary responsibility for ensuring compliance within their
service areas.

3. Best value and value for money must be sought in all procurement activities.
Competition must be sought in accordance with issued guidance.

4. Where the value of the goods and services is likely to be £50,000
(cumulative amount) or more the following requirements apply:

a) tenders must be sought from suitably qualified suppliers
b) the supply must be governed by a formal written contract.

The only exception to these requirements shall be where the Cabinet has
given authority in order to achieve best value.

5. Reasonable steps must be taken to manage risk throughout the
procurement process and employees must have regard to the guidance that
is issued for this purpose.

6. All potential suppliers of goods and services must be treated equitably.

7. In all procurement activities, arrangements must be clear regarding:
a) the goods or services to be supplied and the supply mechanisms;
b) the amount to be paid and the payment mechanisms;
c) the rights and responsibilities of all parties.

8. Employees must consider the need to seek appropriate views, advice and
guidance before making a decision or embarking on a course of action
related to procurement.

9. The Executive Director Corporate Services shall, with the agreement of the
Chief Executive and Solicitor to the Council (Monitoring Officer), issue
detailed guidance on procedures to be followed in compliance with these
standing orders. Such guidance shall include procedures for securing
competition, for regulating the manner in which tenders are invited and for
managing risk.

10. Employees must comply with any applicable instructions or responsibilities
specified in the guidance. In other respects employees must act reasonably,
having regard to the guidance and within the spirit of the guidance.

Section B 9
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 43



SECTION C

Financial Guidance

| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 44



1.2

1.21

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Introduction

Financial management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to the
running of the authority, including the policy framework and budget.

The Full Council

The full Council is responsible for:
Only the Council will exercise the following functions:
(a) adopting and changing the Constitution;

(b) approving or adopting the policy framework, the budget and any
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land
Transfer;

(c) subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to Information
Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution, making decisions about any
matter in the discharge of an executive function which is covered by the
policy framework or the budget where the decision maker is minded to make
it in @ manner which would be contrary to the policy framework or contrary
to/or not wholly in accordance with the budget;

(d) appointing the Leader;

(e) agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees,
deciding on their composition and making appointments to them (except
where the appointment to a committee is required to give effect to the
wishes of a political group) and ensuring that, with the exception of the
Mayor, members are appointed to at least two committees (one of which
shall not include the Budget review Joint Scrutiny Committee; except for
executive members who are appointed to one committee:

(f) appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is an
executive function or has been delegated by the Council;

(g) adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.625;

(h) changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary alderman,
Freeman or freedom of the borough;

(i) confirming the appointment or dismissal of the Head of Paid Service;
Monitoring Officer and s151 Officer.

(j) making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal Bills;

(k) approving the Council’'s Code of Conduct;

Section C 11
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 45



(I) approving the Senior Officer Pay Scheme

(m) all local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution which the
Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather than the executive;
and

(in) all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to Council.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.3 The Executive

¢1.3.1 The Executive will carry out all of the local authority’s functions which are
not the responsibility of any other part of the local authority, whether by law or
under the Constitution.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.4 The Audit & Governance Committee

1.41 The Audit & Governance Committee will have the following roles and
functions:

(a) Audit Activity

* Receive, but not direct, internal audit’s strategy and audit plan

« Consider reports dealing with the management and performance of
Internal Audit

* Consider the hHead of Internal Audit's annual report and opinion, and the
level of assurance Internal Audit can give over the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements.

« Consider periodic reports from Internal Audit on the main issues arising
from their work and “high priority” recommendations not implemented within
a reasonable timescale, and seek assurance that action has been taken
where necessary.

* Consider the final external audit Annual Audit and Inspection letter and any
other relevant reports to “those charged with governance”.

(b) Regulatory Framework

» Maintain an overview of the Council’'s Constitution, including Contract
Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Codes of Conduct.
« Consider the internal control environment and the level of assurance that
may be given as to its effectiveness, to include the review of the Statement
Annual Governance Statementen-taternal-Control and the recommendation
to the Council of its adoption.
« Satisfy itself that the authority’s assurance statements, including the

| Annual Governance Statement-en-nternal-Control, properly reflect the risk
environment and any actions required to improve it.
» Monitor the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management
arrangements, including the actions taken to manage risks and to receive
regular reports on risk management.

Section C 12
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 46



» Monitor the effective development and operation of the corporate
governance framework in the Council and to recommend to the Cabinet or
the Council, as appropriate, the actions necessary to ensure compliance
with best practice.

» Monitor the effectiveness of the Council’s policies and arrangements for
anti-fraud and corruption and whistle-blowing, complaints handling, RIPA
and Ombudsman investigations.

(c) Accounts

» Approve the annual statement of accounts, external auditor’s opinion and
reports to members and monitor management action in response to the
issues raised by external audit.

(d) Reports to Council

* Reports in the form of Minutes detailing action taken by the Committee and
recommendations will be submitted to Council_on an annual basis.

(e) {e)- Delegated Powers
* The Committee is empowered to deal with the functions detailed above.

(f)_Standards of Conduct

This Committee shall exercise all the functions of the Council relating to
Codes of Conduct as provided by the Localism Act 2011 except for those
functions which under Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011 may only be
exercised by the full Council.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

HB- <«- - ~ | Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25cm,

N Hanging: 0.25 cm, Bulleted + Level: 1
\ + Aligned at: 2.9 cm + Tab after:

. | 5.11 cm + Indent at: 5.21 cm, Tab

\ | stops: Not at 5.11 cm

\
{Formatted: Bullets and Numbering ]

Section C 13
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 47



1.5 Overview & Scrutiny Committees

1.5.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committees general roles are to :

e Review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with
the discharge of any of the Council’s functions including consideration at each
meeting of the Forward Plan;

e Prepare an annual scrutiny work plan covering two successive periods of six
months and to make reports and/or recommendation bi-annually to the full
Council and/or the executive and/or any policy, joint or area committee in
connection with the discharge of any functions;

o Liaise regularly with each other to ensure that there is no duplication between
them in respect of scrutiny and review activity:

e Consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants;

e Exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet
implemented by the executive and/or any policy or area committees; and

e Appoint Task and Finish Groups as and when required with no more than two
operating at any one time. Normally the Chair and Vice-Chair of the
Committee would Chair these groups and there would be an expectation that
these groups would co-opt external expertise.

In addition to their general role, each Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a
primary scope and specific functions as detailed in the Constitution.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.6 The Statutory Officers
1.6.1 Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive)

The Head of Paid Service will:

e determine and publicise a description of the overall departmental structure
of the Council showing the management structure and deployment of
officers as ser out in part 7 of the Constitution.

e report to full Council on the manner in which the discharge of the
Council’s functions is co-ordinated, the number and grade of officers
required for the discharge of functions and the organisation of officers.

1.6.2 Monitoring Officer (Solicitor to the Council)

The Monitoring Officer will:

emaintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution and will ensure that it is
widely available for consultation by members, staff and the public.

e After consultation with the head of paid service and chief finance officer,
the monitoring officer will report to the full Council or the executive in
relation to an executive function if s/he considers that any proposal,
decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or if any decision or
omission has given rise to maladministration. Such a report will have the
effect of stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the

Section C 14
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 48



report has been considered_ in accordance with the Local Government &
Housing Act 1989.

e Contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of
conduct through provision of support to the relevant committee.

eConduct investigations or take other action into matters referred by the
Standard&Audlt & Governance Commrttee in accordance with the

reguiahen&rema#mg—m—fereecomplamts procedure

eEnsure that executive decisions, together with the reasons for those
decisions and relevant officer reports and background papers are made
publicly available as soon as possible_and will advise upon issues relating
to confidential and exempt information.

e Advise whether decisions of the executive are in accordance with the
budget and policy framework.

*Provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions,
maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy
framework issues to all councillors.

Section C 15
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 49



| 1.6.3 —Chief Finance Officer (Executive Director Corporate Services)

The —Chief Finance Officer has statutory duties in relation to the financial
administration and stewardship of the authority. This statutory
responsibility cannot be overridden. The statutory duties arise from:

eSection 151 of the Local Government Act 1972;

e The Local Government Finance Act 1988;

eThe Local Government and Housing Act 1989;

eThe Accounts and Audit Regulations (Amendment) England 2009;
eSection 73 of the Local Government Act 1985 (c.51);

eThe Local Government Act 2003.

| The —Chief Finance Officer will:

e after consulting with the kHead of pPaid sService and the mMonitoring
oOfficer, report to the full Council or to the executive in relation to an
executive function — and the Council’s external auditor if s/he considers
that any proposal, decision or course o faction will involve incurring
unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to cause a loss or
deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item of account
unlawfully.

eHave responsibility for the administration of the financial affairs of the
Councll

eContribute to the corporate management of the Council, in particular
through the provision of professional financial advice

eProvide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions,
maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy
framework issues to all councillors and will support and advise
councillors and officers in their respective roles

eProvide financial information to the media, members of the public and
the community.

Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the
Executive Director Corporate Services to report to the full Council,
executive and external auditor if the authority or one of its officers:

ehas made, or is about to make, a decision which involves incurring
unlawful expenditure;

ehas taken, or is about to take, an unlawful action which has resulted or
would result in a loss or deficiency to the authority;

eis about to make an unlawful entry in the authority’s accounts.

Section 114 of the 1988 Act also requires:

eThe Executive Director Corporate Services to nominate a properly qualified
member of staff to deputise should he/she be unable to perform the duties
under section 114 personally;

eThe authority to provide the Executive Director Corporate Services with
sufficient staff, accommodation and other resources — including legal
advice where this is necessary — to carry out the duties under section 114.

Section C 16
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 50



CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

Section C 17
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 51



1.7 Scheme of Delegation

1.7.1  The Local Government Act 1972 as amended provides for a Scheme of
Delegation where Council delegates to certain officers powers to undertake
functions and duties on behalf of the authority. This delegation is
completed annually.

1.7.2 4++#2—Chief Officers must ensure that they comply with the approved
Scheme of Delegation.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.8 Accounting Policies

1.8.1 The Executive Director Corporate Services is responsible for the
preparation of the authority’s statement of accounts — including Whole of
Government Accounts, in accordance with proper practices as set out in
the format required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom: (CIPFA/LASAAC) based on International Financial
Reporting Standards, for each financial year ending 31 March.

1.8.2 Key Controls
The key controls for accounting policies are:

a) Systems of internal control are in place that ensure that financial
transactions are lawful;

b) Suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

c) Proper accounting records are maintained;

d) Financial statements are prepared which present fairly the financial
position of the authority and its expenditure and income.

1.8.3 Responsibilities of the Executive Director Corporate Services
To select suitable accounting policies and to ensure that they are
applied consistently. The accounting policies are set out in the
statement of accounts, which is prepared at 31 March each year, and
covers such items as:

a) Separate accounts for capital and revenue transactions;

b) The basis on which debtors and creditors at year end are
included in the accounts;

c) Details on substantial provisions and reserves;

d) Fixed assets;

e) Depreciation;

f) Capital charges;

g) Work in progress;

h) Stocks and stores;

i) Deferred charges;

j) Accounting for value added tax;

k) Government grants;

I) Leasing/pensions.

Section C 18
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 52



1.8.4 Responsibilities of Chief Officers

To adhere to the accounting policies and guidelines approved by the
Executive Director Corporate Services

| CONTACT: Director of Finance

Section C 19
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 53



2. GENERAL GUIDANCE

2.1 Introduction

211 This guidance aims to help employees in their day to day work. Employees
are required to comply at all times with the Council’s financial regulations,
and this guidance will help to ensure they do.

2.1.2 In this guidance there are three levels of requirements:

a) in some cases the guidance states that employees MUST comply
with the requirement and therefore 100% compliance is expected;

b) in other cases employees SHOULD comply, but there will be times
when compliance would not be possible or desirable; and

c) inthe remaining cases it is stated that employees MAY wish to follow
the guidance if it would be helpful, but it is purely at their discretion.

2.1.3 Employees must therefore take careful note whether the wording used in
each section is MUST, SHOULD or MAY.

2.1.4 If the guidance states a requirement MUST be complied with,
employees should consult the Executive Director Corporate Services
if there is particular difficulty. The Executive Director Corporate
Services has authority to waive compliance and limits where
necessary.

2.1.5 Employees needing help to interpret or apply the guidance should contact
their Chief Officer, Head of Internal Audit Services, or Executive Director
Corporate Services.

2.1.6 The review and updating of Financial Regulations, Standing Orders and
Financial Guidance will be completed by the Executive Director Corporate
Services.

2.1.7 Throughout the guidance, reference is made to Chief Officers. A Chief
Officer includes the Chief Executive, Executive Director Corporate
Services, the Solicitor to the Council and Directors.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Services

2.2 Employees Responsibilities

2.2.1 Each Chief Officer must ensure that all his/her employees and any other
agents acting on behalf of the Council are aware of the sections of this
guidance that relate to their areas of work.

2.2.2 Chief Officers may delegate to other employees duties shown in this
guidance, but the Chief Officer retains primary responsibility. Where the
guidance places a duty on an employee, it is the Chief Officer’s

Section C 20
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 54



2.3

2.31

232

233

234

235

2.3.6

2.3.7

2.3.8

2.3.9

responsibility to ensure the existence of adequate procedures,
documentation and supervision.

Miscellaneous

Chief Officers must ensure that lists of officers authorised to certify or
approve orders, payments and records are updated at least on an annual
basis. They must advise the Executive Director Corporate Services of
changes such as authorised signatories leaving and propose new
names, specimen signatures and monetary limits (where needed).

Any employee required to carry out checks such as checks of documents
or calculations must sign/initial and date the relevant document_(or use an
electronic signature on electronic documents). The employee who
prepares the document should also sign or initial, and date it.

Chief Officers must ensure that all financial records are completed
promptly and accurately. Any amendment to a financial record or a
document required in a payment process, including expense claims,
timesheets and official returns must be made in ink. The original entry
should be struck through with a single bold line and the correct entry written
alongside. It must then be initialled and dated. Correction fluid or tape
must never be used.

Chief Officers must ensure that all financial records are kept securely, and
retained for the periods specified in the appendix attached. At the end of
the period the records must be securely disposed of, e.g. by shredding.
Arrangements for the disposal of any obsolete or surplus records, including
unused items, should be agreed with the Executive Director Corporate
Services.

All bank accounts relating to the Authority’s transactions will be controlled
and reconciled by the Executive Director Corporate Services. No other
bank accounts are to be used.

If an employee is requested to give any indemnities, guarantees or
warranties on behalf of the Council he/she must consult the Solicitor to the
Council before taking any action.

Where there is a suspected fraud or other significant criminal act, the
Chief Officer must consult the Head of Internal Audit Services or Executive
Director Corporate Services on whether/when the Police should be
informed. Employees should follow the Council’s advice on fraud and
corruption (Counter Fraud Policy Statement, Strategy & Guidance Notes).

All employees must comply with the Information Security Policy.doc.

«- - - {Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

J

All employees must comply with the Officer's Code of Conduct subject to

any conflict with professional codes, which in such circumstances the
professional obligations subsist over the Officer's Code of Conduct

Section C 21
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 55



2.3.10 In order to comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards,
managers are required to consult on any rentals, leases, use of assets to
or from the authority, prior to entering into an agreement with the
Executive Director Corporate Services, especially where financial/operating
leases are entered into as more advantageous financing could be sort.

CONTACT Director of Finance, Head of Internal Audit Services

Section C 22
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 56



3 RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF
RESOURCES

3.1 Risk Management

3.1.1 Risk Management is the planned and systematic approach to the
identification, evaluation and control of risk. The Cabinet shall approve a
Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy (Risk Management
Policy.doc) for the Council and shall promote a culture of risk management
awareness throughout the Council.

3.1.2 Key decisions taken must include an assessment of the risk.

3.1.3 The Head of Internal Audit Services is the focal point for developing and
| implementing the fRisk mManagement sStrategy throughout the authority.
Her role is to advise others. All staff have a duty to co-operate so that risk is
effectively managed in their areas, ensuring that all issues that they cannot
resolve directly are brought to the attention of their managers.

3.1.4 The Corporate Management Team will be the forum where risk is
performance managed.

3.1.5 Chief Officers are responsible for risk management and must have regard to
advice from the Head of Internal Audit Services and other specialist
employees (e.g. crime prevention, fire prevention, health & safety, cash
handling and internal controls of various types).

3.1.6 Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that regular and appropriate
reviews of risk within their departments are completed and entered onto the
Corporate Risk Register(Covalent). Additional guidance can be sought from
the Head of Internal Audit Services on risk management issues.

3.1.7 The Audit & Governance Committee will review the management of risk
within the Authority.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

3.2 Insurances

3.2.1 The Executive Director Corporate Services is responsible for the
arrangement of appropriate insurance cover through external insurance and
internal funding. He shall, after such consultation as he thinks appropriate
with other employees, settle all claims within individual policy excesses, and
pass on all claims over individual policy excesses to the relevant insurer.

3.2.2 Chief Officers shall:

a) Give prompt notification to the Executive Director Corporate Services of
all new risks, properties, vehicles, activities, functions, or any other
assets which require to be insured and of any alteration affecting existing

Section C 23
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 57



insurances (for example — safe limits being exceeded, loss of safe keys,
temporary disablement of alarms),

b) Promptly notify the Executive Director Corporate Services in writing of
any loss, liability or damage or any event likely to lead to a claim against
the Council together with any information or explanation required by him
or the Council's insurer’s, and inform the police where necessary;

c) Ensure that all appropriate employees of the Council shall be included in
a suitable fidelity guarantee insurance;

d) Consult the Executive Director Corporate Services in respect of any
indemnity which the Council is requested to give;

e) Ensure that employees, or anyone covered by the Council’s insurances,
do not admit liability or make any offer to pay compensation that may
prejudice the assessment of liability in respect of any insurance claim.

3.2.3 ltis the responsibility of the Executive Director Corporate Services to:

a) maintain a register of all insurance arranged by the Council and the
property and risk covered by them;

b) at least annually, furnish Chief Officers with details of all insurances in
force affecting their departments. Each Chief Officer shall review all
such insurances, and any risks not insured against, or inadequately
insured against, shall be notified immediately to the Executive
Director Corporate Services;

c) Ensure the adequacy of all insurances entered into by contractors of
the Council. An employee shall not authorise work to commence by a
Contractor until the Executive Director Corporate Services has
advised such an employee that the appropriate insurances have been
effected to his satisfaction.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

3.3 Internal Controls

3.3.1 The Council accepts that controls and control systems must be in place to
ensure that its financial and other activities are carried out in a secure
environment, in a manner that complies with the law and that fulfils its
stewardship obligations. To achieve this the following key controls and
control objectives and systems shall be in place:

a) Key controls shall be reviewed on a regular basis and the Council shall
make a formal statement annually to the effect that it is satisfied that the
systems of internal control are operating effectively which will feed into
the Annual Governance Statement. Chief Officers are required to
produce an annual statement in respect of the level of assurance on the
adequacy of internal controls within their service areas in accordance
with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2011,

Section C 24
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 58



3.3.2

3.3.3

3.34

b) Managerial control systems, including defining policies, setting objectives
and plans, monitoring financial and other performance and taking
appropriate anticipatory and remedial action. The key objective of these
systems is to promote ownership of the control environment by defining
roles and responsibilities;

c) Financial and operational control systems and procedures, which include
physical safeguards for assets, segregation of duties, authorisation and
approval procedures and information systems;

d) An effective internal audit function that is properly resourced. It should
operate in accordance with the principles contained in the Auditing
Practices Board’s auditing guideline “Guidance for Internal Auditors,
“CIPEAS O  Practics f N g :
UKPublic Sector Internal Audit Standards” and with any other statutory
obligations and regulations and professional standards.

Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that they manage their processes
to ensure that established controls are being adhered to and to evaluate
their effectiveness, in order that they can be confident of the proper use of
resources, achievement of objectives and management of risks.

They should also review existing controls in the light of changes affecting the
authority and establishing and implementing new ones. Chief Officers are
also responsible for removing controls that are unnecessary or not cost or
risk effective — for example, because of duplication.

Chief Officers must ensure that their staff have a clear understanding of the
consequences of lack of control.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

Internal Audit

The requirement for an internal audit function for local authorities is implied
by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires that
authorities “make arrangements for the proper administration of their
financial affairs”. The Accounts & Audit Regulations (Amendment) (England)
2011, regulation 6, more specifically requires that “a relevant body must
undertake an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with
the proper practices in relation to internal control”.

Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance processes.

Internal Audit is independent in its planning and operation. The Head of
Internal Audit Services shall have direct access to the Head of Paid Service,
all levels of management and elected members.

Section C 25
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 59



3.4.4 Internal Audit will comply with the Auditing-Practices Board's-guideline

Cnslenene b e Ao e e oo el e e e Dol o Denc e
forinternal- AuditinLocal- Governmentinthe-UKPublic Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS).

Section C 26
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 60



3.4.5 Internal Auditors have the authority to:

a) enter at all reasonable times any Council establishment;

b) have access to all records, documents, information and
correspondence relating to any financial and other transaction as
considered necessary;

c) evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls designed
to secure assets and data to assist management in preventing and
deterring fraud;

d) request explanations as considered necessary to satisfy themselves
as to the correctness of any matter under examination;

e) require any employee of the Council to produce cash, materials or
any other Council property in their possession or under their control;

f) access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors or
partners, when required and appropriate;

g) directly access the Chief Executive and members.

3.4.6 The Head of Internal Audit Services will prepare the strategic and
operational audit plans, which will take account of the relative risks of the
audit areas and present this to the Audit & Governance Committee for
approval.

3.4.7 Chief Officers have the responsibility:

a) of reporting any circumstances which may suggest the possibility of
irregularity affecting cash, stocks or other property of the Council and any
fraud or corrupt activities to the Executive Director Corporate Services.
Further guidance can be found in the Counter Fraud & Corruption Policy
Statement, Strategy and Guidance Notes;

b) for ensuring that internal auditors are given access at all reasonable
times to premises, personnel, documents and assets that the auditors
consider necessary for the purpose of their work;

c) for ensuring that auditors are provided with any information and
explanations that they seek in the course of their work;

d) to consider and respond promptly to recommendations in audit reports;

and

e) for ensuring that any agreed actions arising from audit recommendations
are carried out in a timely and efficient fashion.

3.4.8

the-Audit- & Governance-Committee-The Head of Internal Audit Services will
develop and maintain a Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme
(QAIP) that covers al aspects of the internal audit activity and is designed to
evaluate conformance with the PSIAS definition of Internal Audit and Code

Section C 27
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 61



of Ethics. The QAIP must be internal on-going assessments reported to the
Audit & Governance Committee with an external assessment to be
completed in accordance with the frequency as determined by the Audit &
Governance Committee (minimum at least every 5 years).

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

Section C 28
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 62



3.6 Treasury Management

3.5.1 The Council will conduct its Treasury Management Activities in accordance
with the provisions laid down in statute and specifically as contained within
the Local Government Act 2003.

CIPFA recommends that all public service organisations adopt, as part
of their standing orders, financial regulations, or other formal policy
documents appropriate to their circumstances, the following four
clauses.

1. This organisation will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for
effective treasury management:

« a ftreasury management policy statement, stating the policies,
objectives and approach to risk management of its treasury
management activities;

. suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the
manner in which the organisation will seek to achieve those policies
and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those
activities.

e The content of the policy statement and TMPs will follow the
recommendations contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code,
subject only to amendment where necessary to reflect the particular
circumstances of this organisation. Such amendments will not result
in the organisation materially deviating from the Code’s key
principles.

2. This organisation (i.e. full Council) will receive reports on its treasury
management policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum,
an annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year review
and an annual report after its close, in the form prescribed in its TMPs.

3. This organisation delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices to
full Council and for the execution and administration of treasury
management decisions to the Executive Director Corporate Services,
who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy statement and
TMPs and, if he/she is a CIPFA member, CIPFA’'s Standard of
Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

4. This organisation nominates Audit and Governance Committee to be
responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management
strategy and policies.

3.5.2 The Executive Director Corporate Services may report to Council at any
time, as he considers necessary, upon matters relating to treasury
management activities.

3.5.3 The Executive Director Corporate Services shall ensure that all treasury
management transactions are recorded and that there is an effective division
of duties between operations.

Section C 29
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 63



3.5.4 All securities which are the property of or in the name of the Council or its

3.5.5

nominees shall be held in the custody of the Solicitor to the Council, except
in the case of externally managed funds which shall be held by an
independent custodian approved by the Executive Director Corporate
Services.

Loans must not be made to third parties and interests must not be acquired
in companies, joint ventures or other enterprises without the approval of the
Cabinet, following consultation with the Executive Director Corporate
Services.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

3.6.5

Prudential Code

Interlinked with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management
is the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities which
plays a key role in capital finance to support Local Authorities in taking
their decisions.

The Council is required by regulation to have regard to the said code
when carrying out its duties under part 1 of the Local Government Act
2003.

The Prudential Code sets out a clear governance procedure for the
setting and revising of prudential indicators. This is done by the full
Council.

The Executive Director Corporate Services will be responsible for
ensuring that all matters required to be taken into account are reported
to the full Council for consideration, and for establishing procedures to
monitor performance.

In setting or revising their prudential indicators, the Council is required
to have regard to the following matters:

»  affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax / housing rents,
including consideration of the impact for all resources (capital
and ongoing revenue costs);

»  prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external
borrowing and whole life costing;

»  value for money / potential ‘spend to save’ schemes, option
appraisal,

stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning;

service objectives, e.g. strategic planning;

vV V V

risk and uncertainty needs to be considered,

»  practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan.

Section C 30
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 64



3.6.6 The Executive Director Corporate Services is required to establish
procedures to monitor both performance against all forward looking
prudential indicators and the requirement that Council has adopted the
CIPFA ‘Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of practice
and Cross-Sectional Guidance Notes'. The Executive Director
Corporate Services also needs to establish a measurement and
reporting process that highlights significant deviations from
expectations.

3.6.7 When considering capital spending Chief Officers must have regard to
the capital process guidance, which includes the requirement to
complete a capital appraisal. This appraisal ensures that consideration
is given to:

»  Full capital cost, including regard to external funding
considerations;

»  The revenue implications associated with the project — including
costs and any additional income generation;

\4

Any implications with regard to the prudential code / use of
prudential borrowing (including payback periods etc.);

Staffing implications;
Alternatives which could be considered e.g. leasing;
Consultation with other officers / organisations;

vV V V V

Project management and planning in order to ensure delivery in
line with approved timescales;

\4

Evaluation of the project outcomes;

\4

An assessment of the risks associated with the project — a full
Risk assessment is required;

»  The contribution the project makes towards the achievement of
the Council's corporate priorities, corporate capital strategy
objectives and Government priorities.

3.6.8 In order to ensure that over the medium term, net borrowing will only
be for capital purposes, the Council should ensure that net external
borrowing does not, except in the short-term, exceed the total of the
capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates
of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next
two financial years.

3.6.9 The Council shall set and monitor against the specified prudential
indicators for capital expenditure, external debt and treasury
management in accordance with the due processes to be followed, the
matters required to be taken into account, affordability, prudence and
in accordance with the definitions specified.

CONTACT.: Director of Finance

Section C 31
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 65



4. REVENUE BUDGETS AND EXPENDITURE

4.1 Introduction
The key controls for budgets and medium-term planning are:

a) specific budget approval for all expenditure;

b) budget managers/Heads of Service to be consulted in the preparation
of the budgets for which they will be held responsible and accept
accountability within delegations set by the executive for their budgets
and the level of service to be delivered;

c) a monitoring process is in place to review regularly the effectiveness
and operation of budget preparation and to ensure that any corrective
action is taken.

4.2 Incurring Expenditure

421 Chief Officers and Heads of Service are authorised to incur expenditure:
a) in accordance with approved Council and service policies;
and

b) in line with the service net revenue budget.

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are authorised to make budget
changes.

4.3 Budget Monitoring and Variances

4.3.1 The service net revenue budget is the key point for budget monitoring and
reporting. The detail contained within the budget book is mainly to assist
budget holders manage their budgets. Strict compliance with the detailed
budget is not necessarily expected. The main requirement is that Chief
Officers and Heads of Service must seek approval for any change in
approved service policy, standards or delivery, or other material
departure from the service plan.

4.3.2 Chief Officers and Heads of Service must monitor their budgets regularly
| throughout the year. The Exeeutive-Director Cerporate-Servicesof Finance
and Accountants will provide suitable regular reports giving details of actual
expenditure and income compared to the budget. He/she will notify the
Chief Officer/Head of Service of any significant variance which appears to
require further attention.

4.3.3 The Chief Officer or Head of Service is responsible for dealing with actual
or likely variances from budget and must take appropriate action. For
example, he/she may decide to:

a) freeze spending on a discretionary item such as furniture and
equipment to deal with a net overspend; or

| b) meet an overspend under one expenditure heading from one or more
actual or planned underspends elsewhere (see below); or

Section C 32
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 66



c) meet an overspend from increased income (within limits set below); or
d) do nothing in the case of a windfall increase in income.

In the case of b) & c) the manager should consider whether to adjust the
budget through a virement (see below).

4.3.4 There is no limit for budget transfers within individual expenditure headings
(cost centres) if there is no change in service policy, no detriment to service
standards or delivery and no material departure from the service plan.

4.3.5 Where a significant variance is expected (even after taking appropriate
action) the Chief Officer or Head of Service must report the circumstances
formally to Members as soon as practicable. The report should indicate the
options open to Members and their implications. For example in the case
of an overspend it might suggest:

a) reducing activity levels, with an impact on service standards, to
reduce expenditure; or

b) increasing activity on income-generating services or increasing prices
to increase income; or

c) providing additional resources from an alternative source, e.g.
balances.

4.3.6 The report should take into account the likely position in future years as
well as the current year.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

4.4 Virement

441 A virement is defined as “the planned transfer of a budget approved for one
purpose for use on a different purpose to that originally intended or
approved”. A virement does not create additional budget; it changes the
purpose for which the budget will be used compared to that originally
intended.

442 A Chief Officer or Head of Service may authorise the transfer of up to
£30,000 of budget (this is a cumulative amount i.e. in total for each cost
centre for the year and not per transaction) to or from any individual
expenditure heading (cost centre) within their service. The Director can
approve virement (up to £30,000) across budgets within service activities
within their Directorate and between Directorates with the approval of the
Executive Director Corporate Services. The Chief Officer or Head of
Service must notify the Executive Director Corporate Services in writing of
all virements. No further approval is needed if there is no change in
service policy, no detriment to service standards or delivery, and no
material departure from the service plan.

443 The Executive Director Corporate Services also has authority to approve
virements in excess of the above £30,000 limit — up to a total virement of
£50,000 (this is a cumulative amount i.e. in total for each cost centre for the
year and not per transaction).

Section C 33
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 67



444 Virements can only be applied to direct expenditure & not to support
service costs, capital charges and indirect income (i.e. recharges).

445 Vi

rements which fall outside of the above criteria will require Cabinet

approval.

446 Specific Contingency Budget

Where a budget is identified as contingency and is intended for allocation
during the year, its allocation will not be treated as a virement, provided
that:

a)

b)

c)

The amount is used in accordance with the purposes for which it has
been established.

The Cabinet has approved the basis and the terms, including financial
limits, on which it will be allocated. Individual allocations in excess of
the financial limits must be authorised by Cabinet.

The release of funding for specific identified contingency items is
delegated to the Corporate Management Team in consultation with the
Leader of the Council (Scheme of Delegation log).

The release of the contingency is approved by the S.151
Officer(Executive Director Corporate Services).

4 4.7 Capital Contingency Budget (Block Allocation)

a)

c)

Where amounts are required for transfer from Specific Contingency/
General Contingency then Cabinet approval must be obtained, including
approval of a capital appraisal form detailing the financial and
organisational impact of the scheme.

Please note that the impact of drawing from this contingency budget has
to be highlighted to members in order for them to make an informed
decision.

These reports will also require S.151 Officer (Executive Director
Corporate Services) sign off (due to their impact on the 5-year budget /
balances / forecast).

CONTACT: Director of Finance

Section C

34

| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 68



4.5 Income Generation

451 Income may be received above the budget level in a number of
circumstances. The potential uses for the extra income (within the limits
set below) depend on the situation:

a) Pure windfall income, which is received without any additional service
activity or conditions is not available for use by the Chief Officer or
Head of Service and he/she should not normally authorise any
additional expenditure from that windfall. The main exception would
be to meet an unavoidable overspend. In other cases the excess
income would return to Council balances.

b)  Where an increase in demand results in increased service workload,
additional income may be used to offset the impact of the extra
workload. For example the manager may appoint temporary
employees or purchase additional or improved equipment to improve
efficiency or working conditions.

c)  Where the Chief Officer or Head of Service expects an increase in
income to result from increased activity, the Chief Officer or Head of
Service may approve additional expenditure where it will generate
enough income to cover the costs.

d)  Where ‘ring fenced’ grant income is received which requires specific
actions/spending, the Chief Officer or Head of Service may approve
additional expenditure, where there is no net additional cost to the
Council.

452 The maximum permitted extra expenditure is £30,000 per service per
annum.

45.3 Chief Officers/Heads of Service have authority to approve budget
adjustments for excess income up to a limit of £30,000 (this is a cumulative
amount i.e. in total for the year and not per transaction) for individual
expenditure headings (cost centres) within their service. The excess
income and additional expenditure must be reported explicitly within the
monthly budget monitoring variance analysis.

454 The Executive Director Corporate Services also has authority to approve
budget adjustments in excess of the above £30,000 limit — up to a total
budget adjustment of £50,000.

455 Any budget adjustments above this amount will require Chief Officers and
Heads of Service to ask Members for formal budget adjustment to reflect
the revised position.

| CONTACT: Director of Finance

Section C 35
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 69



| 512

513

CAPITAL BUDGETS AND PROJECTS

Definition of Capital

Capital projects include the purchase or construction of assets such as
buildings, vehicles and computer equipment and major
repairs/refurbishment, which extend the life of an asset or increase its
value. In each case the Council must get the benefit from the new or
refurbished asset over more than one year. The total cost of the project
must also exceed £10,000. This figure includes amounts spent on design
and supervision and other fees for professional services (whether provided
by Council employees or external contractors). Spending of up to £10,000
on a single project should be treated simply as revenue (except where it
forms part of a minor works programme which exceeds £10,000).

The Corporate Capital Strategy - link cerp-capital-strategy
2003.docCorporate Capital Strategy 2008-13.

The Capital Process Guidance is included within the Corporate Capital
Strategy and can be found on the intranet.

‘ CONTACT: Director of Finance

5.2

521

522

523

Leasing/Rental Agreements

Chief Officers and Heads of Service must consult the Executive Director
Corporate Services before entering into any leasing or rental agreement to
or from the authority in order to comply with the International Financial
Reporting Standards.

All lease agreements must be signed by the Executive Director Corporate
Services.

Obtaining an asset through a finance lease is regarded as capital
expenditure and as such it must be included in the capital programme.

CONTACT: Director Finance

5.3

5.3.1

532

Authority to Incur Capital Spend

The law requires councils to treat capital spending differently from revenue
so different authorisation procedures are used. Chief Officers and Heads
of Service are authorised to spend money on a capital project only if the
project is included in the capital programme, or for minor projects, they
have sufficient revenue funds. In either case special rules apply.

The Executive Director Corporate Services is responsible for ensuring that
a capital programme is prepared on an annual basis for consideration of
the full council’s policy framework.

Section C 36
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 70



533

5.3.4

53.5

53.6

5.3.7

53.8

All capital projects and spending must comply with the guidance on
Procurement and Contracts. Expenditure must be in line with the approved
scheme (Capital Programme) as agreed by Council and will require an
adequately detailed Capital Appraisal Form including any revenue
implications arising from the scheme. The Appraisal Form should identify
any key processes/deliverables to be incurred with appropriate financial
information (i.e. sub projects within the main programme). The detail of
projects above £50,000 must comply with the Procurement PelieyStrateqgy.
In the event that as part of an approved scheme, there is a contingency
amount in excess of £20k, then prior approval must be obtained from
Cabinet for the spend to go ahead. Chief Officers or Heads of Service
must then notify the relevant portfolio holder of the preferred tenderer. The
Procurement and Contracts Section gives further guidance.

If a Chief Officer or Head of Service wishes to incur minor new capital
spend (ie. between £10,000 and £30,000) from a revenue budget the
Executive Director Corporate Services must first be informed in writing and
there must be no change in service policy, or detriment to service
standards or delivery. If these conditions are not met, Council must be
asked to add the project to the capital programme.

Council have delegated authority to Cabinet to approve/add new capital
schemes to the capital programme where grant funding is received and
there is no net additional cost to the Council.

Some Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for several
capital projects at the same time. Where any single scheme needs up to
£30,000 above its capital allocation to complete it, the Chief Officer or Head
of Service may approve a virement for the additional spend provided other
schemes within his/her control will under-spend by at least that amount.

A Chief Officer or Head of Service may authorise the virement of up to
£30,000 of budget (this is a cumulative amount i.e. in total for each capital
scheme for the year and not per transaction) to or from any individual
scheme within their service. The Director can approve virement (up to
£50,000) across budgets within service activities within their Directorate &
between Directorates with the approval of the Executive Director Corporate
Services. The Chief Officer or Head of Service must notify the Executive
Director Corporate Services in writing of all virements. No further
approval is needed if there is no change in service policy, no
detriment to service standards or delivery, and no material departure
from the service plan.

Where ‘ring fenced’ grant income is received for an existing scheme which
requires specific actions/spending, the Chief Officer or Head of Service
may approve additional expenditure up to £30,000 (with a further £20,000
only with the Executive Director Corporate Services approval)-—, where
there is no net additional cost to the Council. - Spending of grant which fall
outside of the above criteria will require Cabinet approval.

| CONTACT: Director of Finance

Section C 37
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 71



5.4

541

542

543

544

545

546

Monitoring

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for delivering capital
projects within agreed timescales and within budget. Chief Officers and
Heads of Service must therefore continuously monitor both the progress of
projects and spend against budget.

The Executive Director Corporate Services and Service Accountants will
provide suitable regular reports giving details of actual expenditure and
income compared to the budget. He/she will notify the Chief Officer and
Heads of Service of any significant variance which appears to require
further attention.

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for dealing with actual
or likely variances from budget or from the project delivery plan.

Where a significant variance is expected (even after taking appropriate
action) the Chief Officer and Heads of Service must report the
circumstances formally to Members as soon as practicable. The report
should indicate the options open to Members and their implications. For
example in the case of a projected overspend it might suggest amending
the specification to come within budget.

Outstanding expenditure relating to the previous financial year should be
notified to the Executive Director Corporate Services as soon as possible
after 315 March in line with the timetable determined by the Executive
Director Corporate Services.

A requirement of the Capital Process is for a Post Implementation Review
to be completed. A Post Implementation Review is an essential stage in
the capital process. Results of the review should be circulated to CMT and
BRG and, if appropriate Cabinet and/or Scrutiny Committees. More
detailed guidance on the Post Implementation Review process can be
found in the Capital Process Guidance.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

5.5

5.561

55.2

External Funding

External funding is potentially a very important source of income, but
funding conditions need to be carefully considered to ensure that they are
compatible with the aims and objectives of the authority. Local authorities
are increasingly encouraged to provide seamless service delivery through
working closely with other agencies and private service providers. Funds
from external agencies such as the National Lottery provide additional
resources to enable the authority to deliver services to the local community.
However, in some instances, although the scope for external funding has
increased, such funding is linked to tight specifications and may not be
flexible enough to link to the authority’s overall plan.

Where external funding may be available for a project in the capital
programme the Chief Officer or Head of Service is responsible for
submitting any bid required. Consultation with the Executive Director
Corporate Services is required before submission.

Section C 38
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 72



553

554

555

556

55.7

55.8

55.9

5.5.10

5.5.11

Any bid must match the capital programme approval in all material
respects. If the bid differs materially from the capital programme or the
project is not in the capital programme, Council approval must be received
before the bid is submitted.

Where a project relies on external funding, it must not commence until final
written confirmation has been received that the external funding will be
provided.

If the external funding approval differs materially from the bid, Council
approval must be received before any spending on the project is
committed. The Chief Officer or Head of Service should seek advice from
the Executive Director Corporate Services as to whether any difference
should be regarded as material.

Council has delegated authority to Cabinet to approve/add new capital
schemes onto the capital programme where grant funding is received and
there is no net additional cost to the Council.

Claims for payment must be made as soon as practicable. The budget
manager who submitted the bid is responsible for submitting the claim, by
the due date unless otherwise agreed with the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

The Chief Officer or Head of Service should ensure that the project
progresses in accordance with the agreed project delivery plan and that all
expenditure is properly incurred and recorded.

Copies of all documentation such as bids, approvals, claims and
correspondence must be sent immediately to the Executive Director
Corporate Services to ensure that all funding notified by external bodies is
received and properly recorded in the authority’s accounts and to ensure
that audit requirements are met.

The Chief Officer or Head of Service must ensure that the key conditions of
funding and any statutory requirements are complied with and the
responsibilities of the accountable body are clearly understood. Funds
should only be acquired to meet the priorities approved in the policy
framework by the full council. Any match-funding requirements should be
given due consideration prior to entering into long-term agreements and
future revenue budgets should reflect these requirements.

Further details on external funding can be found in the External Funding
Strategy.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

5.6 Disposal of Capital Assets

5.6.1 Disposals require the same level of approval as capital spend. Chief
Officers and Heads of Service should therefore propose any necessary
capital disposals for inclusion in the capital programme. All disposals are
required to be approved by the Budget Review Group and Cabinet.

Section C 39

| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 73



5.6.2 Chief Officers and Heads of Service must obtain the best possible price for
disposals, in accordance with section 123 of the Local Government Act
1972(where relevant), which will normally be the market value. Chief
Officers and Heads of Service must consult with the relevant specialist
officer before commencing a disposal, e.g. the Director — Assets and
Environment for land or buildings and the Director, Technology & Corporate
Programmes for IT equipment. In most cases the specialist manager
should assume responsibility for the disposal.

5.6.3 The disposal of low value items is dealt within the Assets and Equipment
chapter.

| CONTACT: Director of Finance

Section C 40
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 74



6. PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTS
6.1 Introduction

6.1.1 This section supplements the Council’s contract standing orders and
Procurement Strategy and Procurement Guidance and Procedures on the
Intranet (which provide more detailed guidance and requirements on
purchasing, procurement and contracting processes).

6.1.2 Each Chief Officer/Head of Service is under a duty to “Promote greater
efficiency and value for money. in all activities including the procurement of
goods and services” (Fin. Reg. 7).

6.1.3 The essence of the system, which must be maintained by all Chief
Officers/Heads of Service is to demonstrate that:

a) Best value for public money spent is achieved,

b)  no favouritism is shown to any potential supplier; “brand names” or
any potential discriminatory requirements/standards are not used,

c) the highest standards of integrity are consistently applied;

d) there is compliance to legal requirements;

e) non-commercial considerations do not influence any contracting
decision;

f) corporate and departmental aims and policies are supported:;

g) compliance with the Procurement Strategy is maintained; and

h) the arrangements for supply and payment are clear to all parties.

6.1.4 This guidance applies to all procurement and purchasing activities
undertaken for, or by, the Council including cases where the Council either
acts as an agent (e.g. work for Staffs. County Council) or employs an agent
such as an external architect or clerk of works, or acts on behalf of other
organisation and bodies working in partnership with (for example the Local
Strategic Partnership and Crime and Disorder Partnership).

6.1.5 Values quoted in this guidance should be considered as the estimated
spend on an item, service, or material for the period over which the known
requirements exists, or the total value of a one-off supply. This is often
referred to as the “whole life cost”. In some cases, it is clear that a grouping
together of items is both sensible and within the spirit of the regulations. For
example, it is appropriate to consider the purchase of desks and chairs as
office furniture rather than as individual items. The guidance applies to both
revenue and capital items. For more significant items of expenditure it is
reasonable to consider the sum total of the Council’s requirements for works,
services and supplies across Directorates when assessing the estimated
value and whole life costs of these requirements.

6.1.6 AllIT purchases (software and hardware) must be approved by the Director
Technology & Corporate Programmes.

6.1.7 All potential contracts and partnership agreements (whether formal or
informal) which utilise the handling of the Council’s data/information (paper
based or electronic) by a third party must ensure formal, contractual

Section C 41
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 75



provision is made outlining the obligations placed on that third party. The
Procurement Team must be consulted in any such case at the outset of the
process.

6.1.8 All proposals, developments, capital works, contracts and changes affecting
the information we use, hold and process must have the agreement of the
Director, Technology & Corporate Programmes or deputy, and, where
appropriate, be monitored for compliance.

6.1.9 All suppliers, partners, third-party organisations and contractors with whom
we have/will have a relationship by which they have access to or process (as
defined by the Data Protection Act 1998) personal or commercially sensitive
information belonging to or under the control of the Council will be required
to provide their compliance with ISO27001 either by production of
certification or by submission of a statement of compliance. In addition, they
must acknowledge and agree their responsibilities and obligations to the
Council in relation to Principle 7 of the Data Protection Act (1998) in relation
to Information Security. Any request to waive these requirements requires
the agreement of both the Security Management Group and Cabinet.
Implementation of these arrangements is immediate in relation to all
contracts not yet let, Invitation to Tenders not yet published, agreements not
yet implemented, or proposed contract extensions. At the end of the
contract, all information used by the contractor but belonging to the Council
will be returned to the Council. Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring
that the contractor provides assurance that they do not hold any personal or
commercially sensitive information - either manually or electronically, that
belongs to the Council. Advice can be obtained from the Corporate
Information Security Manager.

6.1.10 Any consultants, agents, contractual partners used by the Council shall be
appointed in accordance with the requirements of Contract Standing Orders
and Financial Guidance. Where the Council uses consultants to act on its
behalf in relation to any procurement, the Chief Officer shall ensure that the
consultants also comply with these requirements. No consultant shall make
any decision on whether to award a contract or who a contract should be
awarded to. The Chief Officer shall ensure that the consultant’s
performance is monitored.

6.1.11 Some definitions of terms used and a list of officers who can provide
assistance are shown at 6.17 and 6.18.

6.1.12 With effect from 1 April 2009 all tenders (namely £10,000 or over) whether
above or below EU thresholds for works, services, supplies, utilities and
design contracts will be tendered electronically through the e-tendering
system, from which point traditional “paper based” tender exercises will
cease unless a waiver to financial regulations is obtained from Cabinet. All
transactions associated with such tenders will be conducted via the e-
tendering system from the initial advertisement, expressions of interest, pre-
qualification of suppliers, invitation to tender or negotiate, submission of
tenders, tender opening contract award and subsequent contract
management. The Procurement Team must be notified in writing at least six

Section C 42
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 76



months before the commencement of any tendering exercise with an
expected value of £50k or over and will give direction as to the procurement
route to be followed. This notification will include information for both capital
and revenue expenditure proposals as is required under the capital appraisal
process, so that an accurate assessment of the requirements can be made.
Where the procurement is likely to exceed EU thresholds the period of notice
will be at least six months in order to allow compliance with EU timescales.

6.1.13 With effect from April 2012 all quotations and tenders between £2,000 and
£10,000 for works, services, supplies, utilities and design contracts will be
tendered electronically through the e-tendering system (and from which point
traditional “paper based” quotation exercises will cease unless agreed in
writing by the Director of Finance and the Executive Director Corporate
Services). The quotation process will be used mainly where price is the sole
criteria for determining the award of contract. All transactions associated
with quotations will be conducted via the e-tendering system from the initial
advertisement/request to quote, pre-qualification of suppliers where
necessary, invitation to quote, submission of quotations, quotation opening,
contract award and subsequent contract management.

6.1.14 With effect from April 2010 the e-tendering system will be extended to
provide electronic or e-auctions and this facility will be made available to
service areas by agreement with the Director of Finance. E-auctions can be
a useful way of securing savings and efficiencies and are best applied where
the product or service is capable of being specified accurately and can be
provided by a range of suppliers with a common understanding of what the
requirement is, for example, paper, IT hardware and consumables, and
utilities. E-bidding is another variant, where “once only” bids are sought
electronically.

6.1.15 The e-tendering/quotation system includes a browser based supplier website
where any supplier wishing to register an interest in doing business with the
Council can do so electronically, with a password protected, secure area of
the website for them to fill out their company details (this includes
information on their company, address, contact points, business types,
banking, insurance, certificates, accreditation and other details. The
information on the supplier website also includes an electronic version of a
pre-qualification questionnaire to express interest in tenders/quotations,
which when completed can be used and updated whenever the company
wishes to express an interest in a new business opportunity). This, together
with the introduction of corporate contracts, and partnering arrangements
with suppliers, supersedes the practice of having and maintaining an
“Approved Supplier” list or lists.

6.1.16 Chief Officers should ensure that current and potential suppliers register
their company details on the supplier website which can be found at the
following internet site https://in-tendhost.co.ok/tamworthbc. From June
2012, relevant suppliers will also be able to use Constructionline to maintain
and update key Pre Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) information.

Section C 43
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 77



6.1.17 New business opportunities are to be advertised on the website via the
Procurement Team and therefore must be notified in accordance with the
timescales noted above.

6.1.18 Where Tamworth BC is conducting a tendering or quotation exercise in
partnership with another public or private body (for example joint
procurement of services) then the e-tendering system can be used as part of
the normal procurement processes followed by the Council by agreement
with the Director of Finance.

6.1.19 Where the Council is funding/assisting a body such as the Local Strategic
Partnership or the Crime and Disorder Partnership and there is an
expectation on the part of the Council to ensure probity in the use of monies
on projects which are publicly funded/routed via Tamworth BC then the e-
tendering system can be used as part of the assistance provided by the
Council by agreement with the Director of Finance.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

6.2 Summary of Requirements

6.2.1 The following table shows the action needed at differing values. Further
detail follows. Please refer to the timetable for implementing electronic
tendering and quotation exercises referred to in section 6.1. Before initiating
any tender / quote process officers should review the Contract Register to
see if there are any comparable contracts or agreements in place which
must be used unless there is an auditable reason not to.

Section C 44
| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 78



6.2.2

Process for Obtaining Prices
Value Contact Other Officers Supply
Contract Issues Process
£0- Should contact Procurement Should obtain at least 3 No requirement for | Must be via
£1,999 Team if similar expenditure is quotations or estimates - these formal written official order
likely to be incurred by others may be verbal. Up to £1,999is | contract. Standard | generated by
to check if a corporate contract | cumulative within the financial form may be General
is in place or desirable year considered in some | Ledger or as
cases and an per contract.
annual supply
arrangement may
be appropriate.
£2,000 - | Should contact Procurement Tendering must be considered, | No requirement for | Must be via
£9,999 Team if further similar alternatively, written quotations contract but use of | official order
expenditure is likely to be must be obtained using Quick standard quotation | generated by
incurred by self and/or others Quote on the Intend system documents must be | General
to check if a corporate contract | using the correct invitation to used especially Ledger or as
is in place or desirable quote template. where access to per contract.
personal /
confidential
information is
involved or
warranties or
indemnities are
given/received
£10,000 | Must consult the Procurement | After consultation with the Depending on the Must be via
- Team to seek guidance as to Procurement Team - either complexity, risk and | printed official
£19,999 | the appropriate procurement tenders or written quotations value, a written order
route to follow must be requested via the contract must be generated by
Intend system using the correct | considered subject | General
Invitation to Tender or Invitation | to consultation with | Ledger or as
to Quote templates. the Procurement per contract.
The Tender Authorisation Form | Team and Legal.
must be completed and
returned to the Procurement
team.
£20,000 | Must consult the Procurement | Advice from Procurement and Must be formal As specified in
- Team to seek guidance as to Legal must first be obtained written contract formal contract
£49,999 | the appropriate procurement Tendering must be considered, | which can be
route to follow and must use the standard signed by the
quotation / tender documents. relevant CMT
The Tender Authorisation Form | member. Consult
must be completed and with Procurement
returned to the Procurement team as to the
team. relevant type of
contract.
£50,000 | Must advise Procurement Member endorsement of Must be a formal As specified in
and Team in writing as soon as the | contract brief required. Use of written contract formal contract
over spend requirement is identified | the Invitation to Tender duly approved by
—this is at least a 6 month Documentation must be used. the Solicitor to the
period and where spend is The Tender Authorisation Form | Council and
going to exceed the EU must be completed and executed as a
threshold, a longer period of returned to the Procurement Deed under Seal.
notice would be expected — the | team.
Procurement Team must be
contacted for guidance as to
the appropriate procurement
route to follow. The
Procurement Team may direct
and/or administer the whole
process
Section C 45

| Revised Sept2042Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 79




6.2.3 Any of the guidance may be applied for purchases at a lesser value. For
example, it may be appropriate for certain low value requirements to be
purchased by inviting tenders. Similar procedures to those outlined should then
be followed. (The guidance does not necessarily cover such situations in full).

6.2.4 If there is an existing contract available for the required goods, services or works,
it must be used in the first instance. Some contracts let by other public
authorities may also be available (see 6.3.1).

6.2.5 A list of corporate contracts can be found in the Contracts Register, stored on the
S Drive. Ifitis intended not to use a corporate contract, the Procurement Team
must be consulted at the outset.

6.2.6 A suitable contract specification must be completed in all cases. The level of
detail required within the specification will be commensurate with the complexity,
risk and value of the purchase.

See the following section on Alternative Suppliers. Advice in either case is
available from the Procurement Team.

6.2.7 Chief Officers should maintain a register to record all quotations and estimates
(including verbal estimates) up to £1,999. Copies of written versions should be
securely retained, and entries should be signed and dated by both the recording
officer and the authorising officer. The details contained in any quotation or
estimate must not be made known to any other party. All quotations and
estimates received should be retained in the register until the Accounts have
been signed off for that financial year. The Quick-Quote register for purchases
of £2,000 or over, or the Contract Register, as appropriate should be used to
record details of tenders/contracts awarded.

6.2.8 The most economically advantageous tender must be accepted. Advice on how
to determine this can be sought from the Procurement Team.

| CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Further Guidance

6.2.9 Under £2,000

Different practices will apply at different levels:

e The petty cash procedure may be used for very minor items. See the section
on cash advances, etc.

e The three estimates for a supply up to £1,999 may come from telephone
contact with companies advertising in the local paper, trade journal or yellow
pages.

e Verbal quotations/estimates may only be sought for goods/services up to a
cumulative value of £1,999 within the financial year.

6.2.10£2,000 - £9,999
o The Chief Officer should contact the Procurement Team if further similar
expenditure is also likely to be incurred by themselves or others to check if a
corporate contract is in place or is desirable. Tendering must be considered
and the Procurement team will advise on the suitability of tendering.
Alternatively, written quotations must be obtained by using the Quick Quote
on the Intend system using the correct Invitation To Quote template.

Section C 46
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 80



6.2.11 The standard form of contract is particularly recommended in situations where
protection against a poorly performing supplier is important or where the
procurement carries particular risks e.g. where the supplier would have access to
confidential/personal information, or where price is not the only criteria being
considered.

6.2.12 £10,000 - £19,999
The Chief Officer should appoint a Project Officer with overall responsibility for
the procurement. The Procurement Team must be advised in writing in all cases
and guidance sought on the appropriate procurement route to be followed.
Tendering must be considered and the Procurement Team will advise where
tendering is not necessary. Alternatively, written quotations must be obtained
using the Quick Quote on the Intend system using the correct Invitation To Quote
template. The Tender Authorisation Form must be completed and returned to
the Procurement Team. A written specification must be included in the
Invitation To Quote document. Formal Terms and Conditions of Contract must
be used.

6.2.13£20,000 - £49,999
The Chief Officer should appoint a Project Officer with overall responsibility for
the procurement. The Procurement Team must be advised in writing in all cases
and guidance sought on the appropriate procurement route to be followed.
Tendering must be considered and the Procurement Team will advise where
tendering is not necessary. In exceptional circumstances, written quotations
must be obtained using the Quick Quote on the Intend system using the correct
Invitation To Quote template and standard quotation/tender documents. The
Tender Authorisation Form must be completed and returned to the Procurement
Team. A written specification must be included in the Invitation To Quote
document. Formal Terms and Conditions of Contract must be used.

6.2.14 £50,000 plus
The Chief Officer must appoint a Project Officer with overall responsibility for the

procurement. The Procurement Team must be advised in writing in all cases, at
the initiation of the project, and guidance sought on the appropriate procurement
route to follow. This is to enable an assessment of whether or not the European
Union regulations come into play and to ensure the most appropriate
procurement solutions are sought. Where the EU threshold is expected to be
exceeded, the Procurement Team should be contacted in the first instance. A
supply for an individual Service area may be below the threshold, but similar
needs in another Service area may mean EU aggregation rules apply. EU
procedures must be followed if they apply, and, due to their complexity, the
Procurement Team must be involved in such projects. A formal tender exercise
is compulsory, as is a formal written contract.

The Solicitor to the Council must have a minimum of 2 weeks notice to consider
the draft contract before engrossment.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Section C 47
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 81



6.3 Alternative Purchasing Arrangements

6.3.1 Other organisations in the public sector are also under a duty to secure value for
money in terms of purchasing. In the right circumstances and where provision
has been made for the agreement to be used by other authorities, i.e. where it
will provide best value and is consistent with other key requirements such as on
contract terms and conditions, managers may use their purchasing
arrangements.

6.3.2 These other organisations may include Government Procurement Services,
ESPO, Central Government (via their G-Cat and S-Cat, and L-Cat processes),
local authorities such as Staffs. County Council and bodies such as the National
Health Service. Chief Officers/Heads of Service may contract directly with such
suppliers but should consult with/involve the Procurement Team because of
potential issues such as the requirement to conduct a mini-competition under a
framework agreement, delivery charges, minimum order levels and so on..

6.3.3 Goods or services may also be procured jointly with other such organisations to
obtain best value and meet the requirements of the Council’s own rules on
procurement.

6.3.4 Other variations of procurement may be considered but officers must approach
the Procurement Team for guidance before the commencement of alternative
procurement routes.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Section C 48
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 82



6.4 6-4——Appraisal of Potential Contractors

6.4.1 ltis important that potential suppliers are able to meet the Council’s needs.
Suppliers should, therefore, be vetted in financial and performance terms
(including health and safety) to various levels commensurate with the criticality
and risk of the purchase/supply, prior to any firm commitment (Company Profile
Questionnaire Notes). This process must be followed for all participants in a
tender exercise.

6.4.2 The financial appraisal checks that the supplier operates on a sound financial
footing by assessing profit levels, the ability to pay bills and so on. It will also
assess the supplier’'s capacity to deliver a contract without incurring
unreasonable financial risk and recommend a maximum value contract that
should be considered in order to protect the contractor from becoming too reliant
on the Council for its business. The Executive Director Corporate Services will
undertake or arrange these appraisals on receipt of the last two years audited
accounts. The appropriate Chief Officer is responsible for ensuring that all
relevant documents are submitted to the Executive Director Corporate Services
in a timely manner. The Chief Officer must advise the Executive Director
Corporate Services if the contract value exceeds £100,000, since a higher level
appraisal is then required.

6.4.3 In addition to the financial details submitted, the contractor is also required to
submit details of Employers Liability, Public Liability Insurance and Professional
Indemnity cover which must be appropriate to the contract type, size and the
nature of the contract, copies of which should be submitted along with the
financial details to the Executive Director Corporate Services. The Chief Officer
must check that the certificates are valid for the period of work. If they expire
during the period the Chief Officer must check before expiry that they have been
renewed. Further advice and guidance can be sought from the Director of
Finance.

6.4.4 In terms of performance appraisal, the Chief Officer needs to satisfy him/herself
that the contractor has a history of sound performance of similar supplies in the
recent past. The Chief Officer should therefore request bank references, trade
references and make other enquiries deemed necessary to become satisfied.

6.4.5 Some contractors are required to hold a valid tax exemption certificate.
Certificates should be checked prior to the start of the contract and a copy of the
certificate should be forwarded to the Executive Director Corporate Services.
The Chief Officer must check that the certificate is valid for the period of work. If
it expires during the period the Chief Officer must check before expiry that it has
been renewed. Further guidance is available from the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

Section C 49
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 83



| 6.4.6 6.4.6—In addition to the specific issues referred to within this section, the Chief
Officer must ensure that appropriate steps are taken in all cases to assess the
suitability of prospective suppliers. The risks involved in the procurement should
advise the necessary level of assessment. For instance, even for lower value
purchases Chief Officer should still consider the need to obtain assurance that a

business is bona fide, or has appropriate health and safety arrangements and
insurance cover

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Section C 50
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 84



6.5 Supplier Register

6.5.1 The names of contractors who have expressed an interest in doing work for the
Council are retained on a supplier register within the e-tendering system (Intend).
Any contractor who expresses an interest to be included is automatically added
to the Supplier Register. There is no pre-set requirement for contractors when
signing up to the register. Appraisal criteria / pre-qualification questionnaires
should be considered at the start of the tendering / quotation stage.

6.5.2 All Supplier Registers shall be maintained in an open, fair and transparent
manner and be open to public inspection.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

6.6 Framework Agreements

6.6.1 The term of a Framework Agreement must not exceed four years and, while an
agreement may be entered into with one provider, where an agreement is
concluded with several organisations, there must be at least three in number.

6.6.2 Contracts based on Framework Agreements may be awarded by either:

e Applying the terms laid down in the Framework Agreement (where such
terms are sufficiently precise to cover the particular call-off) and where value
for money can be clearly determined without reopening competition, or

o Where the terms laid down in the Framework Agreement are not precise
enough to complete for the particular call off, by holding a mini competition in
accordance with the following procedure:

o Inviting the organisations within the Framework
Agreement that are capable of executing the subject
of the contract to submit written tenders

o Fixing a time limit which is sufficiently long to allow
Tenders for each specific contract to be submitted,
taking into account factors such as the complexity of
the subject of the contract

o Awarding each contract to the tenderer who has
submitted the best Tender on the basis of the award
criteria set out in the specifications of the Framework
Agreement.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Section C 51
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 85



6.7 Tender Procedures

6.7.1 For contracts over £50,000 Chief Officers must advise the Procurement Team in
writing at the outset. An Invitation to Tender advert or PQQ is placed to invite
potential contractors or suppliers to register their interest in tendering for the
relevant requirement.

6.7.2 The Invitation to Tender should contain details of the principal elements of the
procurement requirement in order that it primarily attracts those contractors who
are in a position to satisfy these requirements. It should therefore contain as a

minimum:

° a sufficiently detailed requirement or specification for the type of goods,
services or works required;

o a price schedule;

standard conditions of contract that will apply in the event of a contract being

awarded;

° instructions to tenderers including the date of commencement of the

contract and possible duration; technical and financial information; the closing
date for tender submissions, and a list of the evaluation criteria and sub-criterion
together with the weightings to be used.

6.7.3 The evaluation criteria together with the weightings must be referred to in the
Invitation to Tender and must not be altered after the Invitation to Tender has
been issued. All criteria chosen to be used in the evaluation of tenders must be
relevant to the service and/or goods required.

6.7.4 The Chief Officer must set a detailed evaluation methodology prior to inviting
tenders. He/she should set out explicitly how price and quality elements will be
balanced in the final decision in order to help demonstrate selection of the most
economically advantageous tender. Appropriate and sufficient information must
be requested for inclusion in the supplier's tender submission to enable all
criteria to be evaluated. Advice is available from the Procurement Team.

6.7.5 Large contracts may require the tenderers to submit a schedule of rates. To
compare them properly and allow the total cost to be assessed, the Chief Officer
should construct a model of work likely to be required over a set period, for
example, one year. This model must be set before tenders are invited, and must
be issued with the Invitation to Tender.

6.7.6 Contracts awarded will be required to be published in accordance with the
Government’s Transparency agenda.

European Union Procurement Procedures

6.7.7 The relevant EU Directives on procurement must be adhered to when awarding
a contract where the anticipated value is close to or exceeds the thresholds
indicated below.

Thresholds Supplies (£) Services (£) Works (£)
| Contract Value 1732,93514 1732,93514 | 4,34328,35012
Section C 52

| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 86



6.7.8 These figures apply from 1 January 2012. The Procurement Team must be
advised in writing at least six months in advance of the supply and guidance
sought as to the appropriate values and procedures are used. Further
information on EU Procurement Procedures and guidance on the use of the
open, restricted, competitive dialogue and negotiated procurement routes,
together with design contests and works concessions, should be obtained from
the Procurement Team. The Procurement team must be involved in all
procurement projects under EU regulations due to the complexities and legal
implications involved.

6.7.9 In appropriate cases, Chief Officers may engage with the market prior to initiating
the tendering process in order to make use of innovative approaches to
achieving best value in the provision of a supply or service. This could involve
consulting with stakeholders including customers, potential suppliers and interest
groups. The Director of Finance must be fully consulted and involved in any
such proposals, which must comply with corporate guidance and EU
Procurement Procedures.

Development of Contract Brief

6.7.10 Where there is a variation from the agreed budget each Chief Officer must seek
Cabinet endorsement prior to tendering. The report should comment upon:

a) the detailed proposals for the scheme, including objectives, targets,
milestones, design details and its contribution to the corporate and service
plans;

b) the financial appraisal of the revenue and capital implications, prepared in
conjunction with the Executive Director Corporate Services, and compared to
budgets;

c) risk associated with the scheme;

d) the tender evaluation mechanism and the decision criteria.

6.7.11 Approval at this stage will normally include authority to invite tenders and to
accept the most economically advantageous tender.

6.7.12 Chief Officers should consult the Director of Finance and the Solicitor to the
Council for advice.

6.7.13 Arrangements have been made for submission and control of tenders and
quotations by electronic means, and for e-auctions, in accordance with any
| process approved by the Director of Finance, ; Executive Director Corporate
Services and the Solicitor to the Council and guidance provided by the Council.
Such processes provide an increased level of security, transparency,
accountability and fairness to the prescribed “paper-based” tendering process.

Extension to Tender Period

6.7.14 The Solicitor to the Council or Executive Director Corporate Services ( or his
nominated deputy) only can approve the extension of a tender period. All
potential tenderers must be informed of the extension to the tendering period.

Section C 53
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 87



Amendments to Tenders (by Contractors)

6.7.15 Any amendment a contractor wishes to make to a submitted tender must be
received before the closing date and time for tender responses. In-tend will
provide this facility to tenderers.

Tender opening — Electronic

6.7.16 All tenders for an individual contract must be opened at the same time by at least
2 officers. This should include a representative from Legal Services for
purchases that are subject to EU procedures.

6.7.17 A tender received after the specified time may be only opened and considered at
the discretion of the Solicitor to the Council.

Sub-Contractors and Nominated Suppliers

6.7.18 Nominated sub-contractors and suppliers must not be used where this would be
anti-competitive, discriminatory or in breach of procurement regulations.

6.7.191f a Chief Officer wishes to nominate a specific sub-contractor or supplier a
written request must be sent to and be approved by the Director of Finance who
will assess any risks involved. The request must show how this will give best
value/value for money.

Section C 54
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 88



Amendments to Tender Documents (by the Authority)

6.7.20 Minor corrections and amendments to any part of the Invitation to Tender may be
required during the tender period. Chief Officers must consult with Procurement,
and where appropriate the Director of Finance, and if necessary the Solicitor to
the Council on such matters, and all tenderers must be advised of all agreed
amendments in writing at the same time. Acknowledgement of receipt of the
amendments will be recorded on the electronic tendering system. In responding
to clarifications and queries, the response should be addressed to all tendering
organisations, and issued at the same time via the Intend system. Al
correspondence will be sent electronically.

6.7.21 The Invitation to Tender amendments must not contain anything which may
materially affect the tender process or unduly affect open and fair competition.
No fundamental changes to the Invitation to Tender documentation should be
made by the information contained within the tender amendment.

6.7.22 A record is retained electronically by In-tend of all correspondence with
Tenderers throughout the tender process (including e-mails).

Tender Evaluation

6.7.23 Chief Officers should ensure that at least two people carry out the evaluation of
tenders. For major contracts involving a project team, the manager should
consider involving the whole team. All tender evaluation carried out should be
evidenced.

6.7.24 From May/June 2012, tender evaluation will be conducted electronically on the
In-Tend system where appropriate. The Procurement Team should be contacted
to provide advice and guidance.

6.7.25 Tenders should be checked to ensure they are complete and that all price
calculations are correct. They must be evaluated objectively in line with the
specified evaluation model, ensuring fair and equitable treatment for each
tender.

6.7.26 If an arithmetical error is discovered in the financial submission, the Chief Officer
should consult the Executive Director Corporate Services. The contractor must
be notified in order to enable him/her to:

a) agree the amendment; or
b) allow the original figure to stand; or
c) withdraw the tender.

6.7.27 If a Tenderer notifies the Council of an error/amendment which materially affects
the submission, the Chief Officer must consult with appropriate officers, for
example, the Corporate Procurement Officer, Director of Finance, the Solicitor to
the Council or Executive Director Corporate Services and should normally
implement one of the following options:

a) all other Tenderers are allowed to retender (in the case of the Council’'s
error); or
b) the Tenderer is required to stand by the original Tender; or

Section C 55
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 89



c) the Tenderer withdraws the Tender, or

d) (where an error is found before completion of tender evaluation) to
correct an error which can be corrected simply by confirming which of
two conflicting figures (e.g. a multiplier or product, or carried forward or
brought forward) is right, or

e) (where the error is found before completion of tender evaluation) to
correct an obvious omission (e.g. a failure to insert any price where a
space for a price is provided).

6.7.28 During the evaluation process, clarification may be sought on any of the tenders
received. The questions and answers should always be submitted via the In-
Tend system and incorporated into the tender documentation.

6.7.29 There must be no fundamental change to the contract specification or award
criteria. Amendments to the specification or terms of the supply, which do not
distort competition or are not considered material changes or fundamental to the
contract can be made, and shall be put to all Tenderers prior to the submission
deadline and in good time for them to make any necessary changes to their
tender. Guidance is available from the Director of Finance or Solicitor to the
Council.

6.7.30 At the conclusion of the evaluation process, the Chief Officer should be able to,
and is expected to select the tender which is the most economically
advantageous to the Council, as indicated by the evaluation model.

Post Tender Negotiation & Clarification

6.7.31 After the tenders have been returned and evaluated, further clarification from
tenderers, in relation to the tender bid may be required. Clarifying information
can include the following:

price

specification

delivery date/start date
payment terms
software licences

6.7.32 All tender bids which are covered by the EU Directives are subject to the more
restrictive approach specified by the European Union, which states all
negotiations with Tenderers on fundamental aspects of contracts, variations of
which are likely to distort competition and in particular on price, shall be ruled
out. However, discussions with Tenderers may be held, only for the purpose of
clarifying or supplementing the content of their tenders or the requirements of the
contracting authorities, and provided this does not involve discrimination. There
must be no fundamental change to the contract specification or contract award
criteria.

6.7.33 The spirit of the above EU interpretation on post tender negotiation should also
be followed for tenders under the EU threshold.

6.7.34 Where a tender return is unclear or there are minor sections which have been
omitted with no explanation included, it is recommended that the tendering
organisation is contacted for clarification, this must be done via the electronic
tendering system. In the case of numerous or sizable omissions, guidance must
be sought from the Director of Finance and Procurement before clarification is
requested.

Section C 56
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 90



6.7.35 All tendering organisations must be treated fairly and equally in all
circumstances.

6.7.36 An electronic record will be kept of any query on a tender on In-Tend and any
information supplied by the company must be confirmed via the electronic
tendering system.

6.7.37 Where it is necessary to meet Tenderers to discuss their submission further, at
least two authorised officers must be present and minutes taken. In all
instances, the Procurement Team must be consulted.

6.7.38 In some cases it may be necessary to vary, by agreement, some minor details of
the work required. Consultation wit the Procurement Team and the Solicitor to
the Council must be made prior to any agreement being made.

6.7.39 Advice should always be sought from the Procurement Team, Director of
Finance or the Solicitor to the Council before entering into negotiations.

.6.7.40 Chief Officers must not enter into negotiations except:

a) with the preferred tenderer(s) under the evaluation
model and after all unsuccessful tenderers have been
informed; or

b) when using the negotiated procedure under EU rules, in
which case those procedures must be followed.

The Chief Officer must ensure that:

c) negotiations are carried out by at least two authorised
officers, and guidance on separation of duties is
followed:;

d) the decisions taken at relevant meetings are
documented;

e) changes in specification and price are agreed by both
parties;

and

f) all records are incorporated into contract documents.

6.7.41 Where post tender negotiation results in a fundamental change to the
specification (or contract terms) the contract must not be awarded but re-
tendered.

Tender Acceptance

6.7.42 A Chief Officer may accept the winning tender after evaluation if it meets all
material aspects of the specification and is within the budget provision. If the
amount is higher than budgetary provision, the guidance on Budgets must be
followed._If only one tender is received, advice and guidance MUST be obtained
from the Solicitor to the Council and the Director of Finance of the process to be
followed.

Section C 57
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 91



6.7.43 When requesting approval to procure contracts, officers must ensure that
approval is obtained from Cabinet to award the contract to the successful
tenderer (in compliance with delegated procedures). With all income generating
projects i.e. the disposal of material operating assets/activities. Cabinet must
approve the preferred tenderer.

6.7.44 Where the procurement is conducted under EU procedures, advice MUST be
sought from the Director of Finance or the Procurement Team prior to any
notification of an award of contract being issued. All tenderers shall
simultaneously be provided with a written standstill notice of the Authority’s
intention to award the contract to the successful tenderer. The standstill notice
must be issued electronically to tenderers (i.e. e-mail, in-tend) who must be
provided with a period of 10 calendar days to review, and, if considered
necessary, to challenge the decision before the contract is awarded. Day one of
the period shall commence on the day following issue of the standstill notice.
The tenth day must fall on a working day and the 10 day standstill period should
be extended, where necessary, to ensure that this happens. If the decision is
challenged, then the contract shall not be awarded and advice must immediately
be sought from the Solicitor to the Council and the Procurement team.

6.7.45 The standstill notice must contain a precise statement of when the 10 day
standstill period will end i.e. midnight at the end of (date) together with the
following information:

the criteria for the award of the contract;

reasons for the decision including the characteristics and
relative advantages of the successful tenderer;

in conjunction with the above, the score of the unsuccessful
tenderer (including criterion and sub-criterion) and that of the
successful tenderer to be awarded the contract;;

the reasons why (if any) the unsuccessful tenderer did not
meet the technical specifications;;

the name of the successful tenderer to be awarded the
contract.

The standstill notice must always be prepared in consultation with the
Procurement team.

6.7.46 6-7-46———Where the tender price exceeds the available
resourcesestimated budget by the lower of £10,000 or 5% the Executive
Director Corporate Services mustMUST be informed and has the
discretion to authorise that the tender be accepted and a contract entered
into.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Section C 58
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 92



6.8 Post Tender and Contracts

Preparation of Contract

6.8.1 Where a tender has been subject to EU procedures and the standstill period has
been completed without a challenge, then all tenderers must be informed once
the contract has been awarded. More generally, having decided to accept a
tender/quotation the Chief Officer must advise tenderers of the outcome of the
process and must finalise a contract. This might involve simple acceptance of a
standard form of contract, minor amendment agreed via correspondence or it
might require meetings with the successful tenderer. Where an industry
standard form of contract and terms and conditions are available, eg JCT or ICE
contracts, they should be used in place of the Council’'s standard forms (and
should be specified in the Invitation to Tender documents). All agreed
amendments must be recorded in writing and formally incorporated into the
contract. Advice should be sought from the Procurement Team, and where
necessary, the Solicitor to the Council.

6.8.2 The Chief Officer should ensure that all approvals that remain outstanding (such
as planning permission) are obtained prior to the completion of the contract
documents.

6.8.3 In addition, every relevant contract over £50,000 must also state clearly as a
minimum:

Prices and/or rates together with any adjustment mechanisms that shall
apply during the term of the contract;

Invoice procedures;

Performance indicators and/or service levels required;

Conditions of contract that shall include:

e That the contractor may not assign or sub-contract without prior
written consent

Insurance requirements

Health and safety requirements

Ombudsman requirements

Data protection requirements, if relevant

Charter standards are to be meet, if relevant

Equalities & Diversity Policy requirements

Children & Vulnerable Adults Policy requirements, if relevant
Conflict of Interests requirements

Freedom of Information Act requirements

Bribery Act requirements

Right of access to relevant documentation and records of the
contractor for monitoring and audit purposes if relevant.

Where agents are used to let contracts, agents must comply with the
council’s contract procedures rules.

Section C 59
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 93



Insurance

6.8.4 Chief Officers must ensure that the contractor has Employers Liability and Public
Liability insurance, normally to a minimum value of £10 million and £5 million
respectively; and should seek the advice of the Executive Director Corporate
Services wherever there is doubt. Other insurances, for example, professional
indemnity may be desirable.

6.8.5 The responsibility for obtaining contractor insurance details including renewals
lies with the appropriate Chief Officer. The Chief Officer should ensure that all
insurance details are passed to the Executive Director Corporate Services
without delay.

Bonds and Parent Companies Guarantees

6.8.6 The officer must consult the Executive Director Corporate Services about
whether a Parent Company Guarantee is necessary when a contractor is a
subsidiary of the parent company and:

the total value exceeds £250,000, or
the award is based on evaluation of the parent company, or

there is some concern about the stability of the contractor.

6.8.7 The Officer must consult the Executive Director Corporate Services about
whether a bond is needed:

where the total value exceeds £1,000,000, or

where it is proposed to make stage or other payments in
advance of receiving the whole of the subject matter of the
contract and there is concern about the stability of the
contractor.

Signing of Contracts

6.8.8 The Solicitor to the Council should check and endorse contracts before
engrossment valued at £50,000 or above for signature. Contracts below
£50,000 should be signed by the relevant member of the Corporate Management
Team(CMT). If, in the latter case, a number of members of CMT are involved,
then the contract should be signed by the main user.

6.8.9 The officer signing the contract must notify all interested managers it has taken
place. The Director of Finance must be notified in every case.

Site Possession

6.8.10 On completion of the contract documents the Chief Officer should where relevant
arrange a site possession date. Chief Officers must not allow entry onto the
Council’s land or commencement of work prior to the completion of a written
contract. In exceptional circumstances, this may be authorised by the Chief
Executive.

Section C 60
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 94



6.8.11

|6.8.12

Document Retention (all formal contracts)

Chief Officers must ensure the original copies of all formal contracts are placed
in the Council’s strong room for all contracts over 12 months/over £50,000.
Where a consultant has been engaged to manage the contract on the Council’s
behalf, it must be ensured that both the contractor and Chief Officer have
necessary access to contract documents to enable their functions to be
performed.

Contract Amendments

6-8-12Contracts may need amending after signing. The circumstances will
dictate the level of approval needed for the change. The relevant Chief Officer
should seek appropriate advice, for example, from the Solicitor to the Council,
before proceeding.

[CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer, Operations Accountant

6.9

6.9.1

6.9.2

6.9.3

6.9.4

6.9.5

Secti

Project/Contract Implementation & Payment
A separate file should be maintained by the relevant Chief Officer for each
project, including copies of such contracts making up the project. The file should
contain the following information: -

a) arecord of instalments due and paid;

b) the working papers substantiating payments; and

c) the details of payments to consultants, internal fees & other payments.

Chief Officers must only authorise payments that conform to the terms of the
contract.

The Chief Officer must only make payments to contractors for Buildings &
Engineering works on the basis of a valuation certificate detailing:
(a) the total value of the contract;

(b) the value of work executed to date;
(c) the amount paid to date;

(d) the amount now certified:;

(e) any retention monies;

(

f)  whether the work is subject to VAT or Liquidated and Ascertained
Damages (together with details of the calculation of damages).

Where the work is subject to VAT the Chief Officer must ensure that either a VAT
invoice or receipt is obtained in order to substantiate the VAT reclaimed.

Where liquidated and ascertained damages are to be deducted, the Chief Officer
must ensure that the contractor is notified as soon as possible and given details
of the basis of calculation. Any liquidated damages applied at any stage of a
contract must be deducted from any subsequent valuation certificate before any
payment is made.

onC 61

| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 95



Contract Monitoring and Variations (including claims)

6.9.6 The Chief Officer must monitor expenditure under a contract and take action
where appropriate to ensure the final contract sum or the level of expense
incurred in any financial year does not exceed the approved budget/available
resources.

During the life of the contract, the officer must monitor in respect of:

performance

compliance with specification and contract
cost

any Value for Money requirements

user satisfaction and risk management.

Contracts of a high value or high risk should be subject to formal monthly review
with the contractor.

For contracts over £50,000, contract managers must:
maintain a risk register during the contract period
undertake appropriate risk assessments and for identified risks
ensure contingency measures are in place.

6.9.7 Subject to the provisions of the contract, every extra cost or variation should be
authorised in writing by the Chief Officer. Copies of the approved delegated
decision that permits officers to authorise variations or extra costs should be
forwarded to the Executive Director — Corporate Services by the Chief Officer or
the delegated officer.

6.9.8 If the revised project cost exceeds the budget/available resources, the guidance
on capital budgets and projects must be followed.

6.9.9 Where a contract requires a contractor to meet specified outcomes or service
levels (e.g. in a partnering —type arrangement) appropriate arrangements must
be made by the Chief Officer to ensure that the expected outcomes/service
levels are provided or that clear processes exist for reporting and approving any
variations from these outcomes/service levels and their financial effect. Any
proposals to provide financial incentives or profit sharing arrangements with
partners must be subject to appropriate approval and budget processes. Such
arrangements must provide appropriate levels of probity and transparency.

6.9.10 Where payment under a partnering arrangement is based upon an agreement of
target prices between the Council and the external partner then written evidence
shall be provided to demonstrate that the target price represents value for
money.

6.9.11 Where a consultant is contracted to monitor a contract on the Council’s behalf,
the Chief Officer must ensure that the consultant contractor complies with this
financial guidance.

CONTACT: Director of Finance, Head of Internal Audit Services

Section C 62
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 96



Section C 63
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 97



6.10 Final Account

6.10.1 Payment of the final account (where relevant) effectively closes the contract and
it must be correct. The Chief Officer must ensure that adequate checks are
carried out to ensure the final account/payment is correct and has been
accurately calculated. He/she must also ensure there is adequate separation of
duties in preparing and agreeing the final account. Management within the
relevant Directorate will, on an annual basis review the Contracts Register
maintained by the Executive Director Corporate Services and sample test a
number of payments (this process should be adequately evidenced).

6.10.2 For building and engineering work the relevant project manager must prepare a
detailed statement of account before a final certificate (where required) is issued
showing variations against the original contract price, payments made to date
and any further payments due. It should be sent to the client Chief Officer within
one month of the issue of the certificate of practical completion.

6.10.3 The client Chief Officer should approve and agree the contract final account within
the retention period and ensure the final payment and certificate are sent to the
contractor by the due date. In case of difficulty, advice should be sought from
relevant officers, for example, the Solicitor to the Council or Executive Director
Corporate Services.

6.10.4 Final account outturn should be reported in accordance with the Corporate Capital
Strategy.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

6.11 Post Contract

6.11.1 Claims from the contractor in respect of matters not clearly within the terms of
any existing contract should be referred to the Solicitor to the Council for
consideration of the authority's legal liability.

|CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

Section C 64
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 98



6.12 Partnerships

6.12.1 Partnerships have a key role in delivering community strategies and in helping to
promote and improve the well-being of the area. The authority is and will be
increasingly working with others — public agencies, private companies,
community groups and voluntary organisations.

6.12.2 The main reasons for entering into partnerships are:

The desire to find new ways to share risk

The ability to access new resources

To provide new and better ways to deliver services
To forge new relationships.

6.12.3 A partner is either:
e An organisation (either private or public) undertaking, part funding or
participating as a beneficiary in a project; or
e A body whose nature or status gives it a right or obligation to support the
project.

6.12.4 Partners participate by:

e Acting as a project deliverer or sponsor, solely or in connection with others;
e Acting as a project funder or part funder;
e Being the beneficiary group of the activity undertaken in a project.

6.12.5 Partners have common responsibilities:

e To be willing to take on a role in the broader programme appropriate to the
skills and resources of the partner organisation;

e To act in good faith at all times and in the best interest of the partnership’s
aims and objectives;

e To be open about any conflict of interest that may arise;

To encourage joint working and promote the sharing of information,
resources and skills between the public, private and community sectors;

e To hold confidentially any information received as a result of the partnership
activities or duties that is of a confidential or commercially sensitive nature;

e To act wherever possible as ambassadors for the project.

6.12.6 Chief Officers should be aware of:

e Their responsibilities with regard to the authority’s financial regulations and
contract standing orders;

e The requirement for them to identify and evaluate all known risks associated
with the partner arrangements, and take action deemed appropriate to deal
with these risks;

e Ensuring that project appraisal techniques are in place to assess the viability
of the project in terms of resources, staffing and expertise;

e Their role in agreeing and accepting formally the roles and responsibilities of
each of the partners involved before the commencement of the project;

e Their need to communicate regularly throughout the project so that problems
can be identified and shared to achieve their successful resolution.

Section C 65

| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/12

Page 99



6.12.7

6.12.8

Managers should ensure that:

e Potential partners are assessed for the financial viability in the same way as
contractors;

e Internal audit roles and responsibilities are documented within the contract
documentation;

e Partners and contractors are made aware of the Authorities Whistleblowing
and Counter Fraud & Corruption policies;

e Arrangements for ownership after the project has ended are identified and
documented;

e Partnership agreements and arrangements are appropriately authorised and
documented and do not impact adversely upon the services provided by the
authority;

e Appropriate information is provided to the Executive Director Corporate
Services to enable a note to be entered into the authority’s statement of
accounts concerning material matters;

e There are robust and transparent arrangements for partnership governance
which comply in all material respects with the Council’s own rules on such
matters;

e There are sound arrangements for monitoring, reviewing and reporting upon
the activities and performance of the partnership;

e They refer to the indemnity and conduct/conflict of interest issues.
e They maintain and update the partnership database for their significant
partnerships.

Corporate processes for approving, reviewing and reporting upon partnership
arrangements and commitments under these must be complied with.

| CONTACT: Head of Partnerships & Commissioning

6.13

6.13.1

6.13.2

6.13.3

Orders for Supply from External Sources

Official orders must be issued for all work, goods or services to be supplied to
the Council except:

7.3.5where a contract specifies otherwise;

7.3.5supplies of public utility services;

7.3.5payments such as rent or rates;

7.3.5petty cash purchases; or

7.3.50ther exceptions approved by the Executive Director Corporate Services.

Individuals must not use official orders to obtain goods or services for their
private use.

Official orders to suppliers for goods and services must be raised on the EFins
Finance System and promptly issued to the supplier/contractor. This ensures
that the commitment is raised on the financial system and so aids the control and
monitoring of budgets.

Section C 66
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 100



6.13.4 Verbal orders should only be given in urgent cases, and any such order must be
confirmed by an official order and endorsed "Confirmation Order". All authorised
signatories together with any restricting financial limits must be notified to the
Executive Director Corporate Services.

6.13.5 Orders must detail the work/goods/services ordered, refer to appropriate terms
and conditions be priced in accordance with estimates, quotations and so on,
and contain the delivery address which must be a Council property. Expenditure
must be coded to the correct detailed budget heading, even if there is no budget
under that heading or it has been committed including those required by statute
or court order.

6.13.6 Before authorising an order the authorising officer must be satisfied that best
value has been achieved, goods/services are appropriate to the service and
genuinely required, appropriate quotations/tenders have been received and that
there is appropriate budget provision. For guidance where there is insufficient
budget provision, refer to the section on Budgets.

[CONTACT: Director of Finance

6.14 Receiving goods and services

Deliveries

6.14.1 Any employee who accepts deliveries of goods must obtain a delivery note,
which should be signed by the supplier and receiver at the time. The Chief
Officer who ordered the supplies must ensure they are checked as to quantity,
quality and compliance with specification at the time of delivery, or as soon as
possible thereafter. Where it is not possible to carry out this check at the time of
the delivery, the employee should ensure this is made clear on the delivery note.

Goods receipting

|6.14.2 6-14-2—As soon after delivery as possible, the financial system must be updated
to show that the goods have been received (refer to the Guidance on Separation
of Duties - separation of duties.doc). Receipting goods on the financial system,
ensures that expenditure is accrued. This enables managers to monitor and
control their budgets more effectively. The employee recording goods receipt on
the financial system must be satisfied that the quality, quantity and specification of
the goods/services delivered is as ordered.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services, Operations Accountant

6.15 Advance Payments

6.15.1 Advance payments should only be used for minor supplies such as course fees,
seminars and publications. Chief Officers should consult the Executive Director
Corporate Services for advice if in doubt. Where advance payment is made then
the whole cost, including VAT, must be charged to the expenditure code. The
Chief Officer must request an authenticated VAT receipt and send it to the
Executive Director Corporate Services to correct the accounting entries.

Section C 67
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 101



CONTACT: Director of Finance

Section C 68
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 102



6.16 Funding to Voluntary and Community Sector Organsiations

Funding to voluntary and community sector organisations can be paid in
advance (where appropriate). Where the provision of services on behalf of
Tamworth Borough Council is to be delivered in partnerships between a
voluntary and community sector organisation and a private sector organisation
then subject to an appropriate partnership agreement being in place funding can
be paid in advance. Performance management arrangements must be
stipulated in each funding agreement_or contract in accordance with the
Voluntary and Community Sector Commissioning Framework. Evidence must be
obtained for expenditure incurred.

CONTACT: Head of Partnerships & Commissioning

6.16 Orders from Internal Suppliers

6.16.1 The same principles apply to orders from internal suppliers and they should, as
far as possible, be treated the same as other orders.

[CONTACT: Operations Accountant

6.17 Some Definitions

6.17.1 The following table gives the definition for terms used in this guidance.

Word Definition

Quotation A value for the supply of a service, goods or materials which must be
held for a period of time.

Estimate A value for the supply of a service, goods or materials which may be
varied following the supply. This is appropriate where it is not possible
to give a precise quotation prior to the supply.

| CONTACT: Operations Accountant

6.18 Further Advice and Guidance

6.18.1 The Council employs a number of officers who have responsibilities in a variety
of areas connected with procurement and purchasing. The following table is a
quick reference guide.

Issue Contact Comments

Significant departure | Executive Director Corporate

(either actual or Services, Director of Finance

potential) from this

guidance

Procurement and Director of Finance Chief Officers must not enter

purchasing - General into any arrangement for

procedures/EU procuring works, goods or

procedures/joint services over the £50,000

procurement and tender threshold without

partnerships seeking guidance from the
Director of Finance at least six
months in advance of the

Section C 69
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 103



proposed supply. The
Procurement team can
provide relevant advice and
guidance, including standard
forms and procedure details.

Section C 70
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 104



Issue Contact Comments

Advice on control Head of Internal Audit Services

systems and

administration

The law and legal Solicitor to the Council

opinion and sealing

and retention of

documents

Printing requirements | Senior-Public-refations Chief Officers must not

OfficerCommunications commit to purchase external
Manager printing supplies without

consulting with the Senier
Public-relations
©OffieerCommunications
Manager

Information Director, Technology & Chief Officers must not

technology Corporate Programmes commit to purchase IT
supplies (hardware and
software) without consulting
the Director, Technology &
Corporate Programmes.

Coding, budgets, Executive Director Corporate

insurance, VAT, Resources

general ledger issues

and financial

appraisals

CONTACT: Director of Finance

7 PAYMENT OF ACCOUNTS

7.1 Introduction

7.1.1 One of the main requirements of a sound system of expenditure control is that at
any point in time, a budget holder knows:

(a) what has been ordered, including the likely cost;
(b) what has been received, and is therefore due for payment; and
(c) what has been paid.

-~ ~

7.1.2 Small transactions can be dealt with from petty cash (see the section on Cash
Advances, etc), and in some situations, payments can be made via direct debit
or other electronic means — the Executive Director Corporate Services will advise
on these processes. This section of the guidance deals with the most common
form of payment, i.e. payment by BACS or cheque drawn on the Council’'s bank
account.

7.1.3 All officers must encourage suppliers of goods and services to receive payment
by BACs — this is the most economical means for the authority.

7.1.4 Corporate credit cards can be used in the day to day business of the Authority
and are intended to facilitate transactions only in limited circumstances.
Corporate credit cards are to be used chiefly to provide an alternative means of
sourcing and paying for goods/services in connection with official business of the
Authority, and may be used for purchases to obtain benefit of discount, payment

Section C 71
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 105



via the Internet, etc. . The Corporate Credit Card Procedures must be
followed..

7.1.5 All requests for direct debits against the authority’s bank account should be
made via the Accountancy section.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

7.2 Security and Good Practice

7.2.1 The Council’s creditor payment system is set up so that the 3 stages of order,
goods receipt and payment to be separately processed with password input and
authorisation controls in line with the appendix on Separation of Duties.
Passwords are often used in place of actual initials and signatures and must not
be made known to any other person. (See also the Information Security

Policy.doc).

7.2.2 Each Chief Officer must inform the Executive Director Corporate Services, in
writing, of the names of employees permitted to undertake each of the stages, to
input orders, authorise orders and confirm goods receipt. The Manager must
promptly notify the Executive Director Corporate Services of any changes, for
example, resignations. The Executive Director Corporate Services should
annually prompt each Chief Officer to review the named employees.

7.2.3 Chief Officers may also wish to limit the values input or authorised by some
employees, and/or restrict the expenditure codes which some employees can
access. This information should also be passed to the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

7.2.4 The Executive Director Corporate Services must ensure that the payments

system:
(a) conforms with the controls contained in the Appendix on Separation of
Duties;
and

(b) checks budget availability.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

7.3 Invoice Processing

7.3.7 Each Chief Officer must ensure that the receipt of any service, material or item of
goods is promptly recorded on the payment system, and that, where applicable,
stock records and inventories are updated immediately.

7.3.7 Each Chief Officer must ensure that invoices received are promptly passed to
Corporate Services Directorate for processing. Any disputed invoices should be
notified to the Executive Director Corporate Services immediately to aid
performance monitoring.

7.3.2 Before any order is goods receipted, the officer receiving the goods/services
must satisfy him/herself that the payment is properly due, and that the work,
goods or services have been received and/or carried out in accordance with the
order/contract/schedule of rates and this has been evidenced.

Section C 72
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 106



7.3.3 Officers must ensure that in respect of charges for gas, electricity, water, etc.
adequate records are be maintained to ensure the charges are correct and the
following checks are undertaken:

i) any standing charges are correct,

i)  consumption is charged on the correct tariff,

i) that the consumption recorded is reasonable in light of current and
previous readings;

7.3.7  Officers should ensure that all credit notes are immediately claimed against
invoices or a cheque reimbursement should be requested;

| 7.3.5 733 The Accountancy section will check the payee, prices, quantities, trade
discounts, other allowances, credits and tax are correct; not previously paid,
properly incurred and within the budget provision. They will also check any
copy/facsimile invoices to ensure that they have not been previously paid and
that payments are not made against suppliers’ statement of accounts.

| 7.3.46 The Accountancy section will ensure that where the invoice includes VAT, it is
correctly calculated. Where a VAT invoice is not supplied, the full cost of the
invoice including the VAT must be charged to the budget code. The Chief
Officer must ensure that an authenticated VAT receipt is subsequently
obtained to support this payment is passed to the —Accountancy section
immediately on receipt so that the accounting entry can be adjusted;

7.3.7 The controls over invoice processing also applies to work done on our behalf
by partners.

Amendments

7.3.8 VAT invoices must not be amended. If an incorrect VAT invoice is
received, the supplier must be asked to send:

(a) acorrected invoice, or
(b) acredit note.

7.3.9 Any amendment to a non-VAT invoice must be made in ink and initialled by the
officer making it, stating reasons briefly where they are not self-evident.

Year End

7.3.10 Each Chief Officer must ensure that where goods and services (goods,
materials, services and works, including electricity, gas water etc) have been
received by 31 March, that commitment orders and goods receipt notes have
been processed within the financial system.

7.3.11 Each Chief Officer must, as soon as possible after 31%' March and not later than
15" April in each year notify the Executive Director Corporate Services of all
outstanding expenditure relating to the previous financial year. Outstanding
expenditure consists of the value of all goods, materials, services and works
(including electricity, gas, water etc.) that has been received at 31 March, but
has not yet been paid.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

Section C 73
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 107



7.4 Electronic Payment Mechanisms

7.4.1 Payments to suppliers must be completed by BACs transfer, as it is the most
cost effective payment method. Payments will be made by cheques in
exceptional circumstances.

7.4.2 Information relating to suppliers bank details should be directed to the Executive
Director Corporate Services.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

8. PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND ALLOWANCES

8.1. Salaries

8.1.1 Salaries and other reimbursements are paid by the — Director Transformation &
Corporate Performance on behalf of each Chief Officer. The Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance is responsible for maintaining the
establishment list of the Authority, and for the details of standing payments to
make. All forms of payment must conform with Council policy and Chief Officers
should consult with the Director Transformation & Corporate Performance if
change is sought.

8.1.2 ltis the responsibility of Chief Officers to ensure that adequate and effective
systems and procedures are operated so that:

a) payments are only authorised to bona fide employees;

b) payments are only made where there is a valid entitlement;

c) conditions and contracts of employment are correctly applied;

d) employees names listed on the payroll are checked at regular
intervals to verify accuracy and completeness.

8.1.3 Each Chief Officer must tell the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance immediately of any changes to his’lher employees or the basis upon
which they are employed. The Chief Officer is accountable for any losses to the
Council or hardships incurred by an employee resulting from a failure to notify
changes promptly.

Examples are:
i. appointments, resignations, dismissals, suspensions, secondments and
transfers;
ii. sickness and other absences apart from approved leave with pay;
iii. changes in pay etc, other than normal increments and general pay
awards.
iv.  Any changes that may affect pensions of employees/former employees.

8.1.4 Chief Officers must ensure that all forms used to generate payments are either
as supplied by the —Director Transformation & Corporate Performance or are
reviewed and sent annually for approval to the —Director Transformation &
Corporate Performance. They must ensure that completed forms are checked,

Section C 74
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 108



calculations confirmed and payments properly authorised. Otherwise payment
will not be made.

8.1.5 In exceptional circumstances, for example, if likely to suffer severe hardship, an
employee may request his/her Chief Officer for an advance of salary. The Chief
Officer may wish to seek advice from the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance or Executive Director Corporate Services. If the request is
supported, the Chief Officer should ask the —Director Transformation &
Corporate Performance to make the arrangements. The —Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance should ensure that any advance is
recovered from the next payment due.

8.1.6 A Chief Officer may certify payment of overtime to officers on spinal column point
35 and above only where prior written approval is obtained from a member of the
Corporate Management Team. This would normally be in exceptional
circumstances for work of a specific nature such as in covering for a long-term
vacancy.

8.1.7 Chief Officers may request additional payments such as honoraria for additional
responsibility incurred by employees. These must be approved by the Chief
Executive for a period of up to six months who should inform the —Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance of the basis for such payments.

8.1.8 All payroll transactions should be processed through the payroll system. Chief
Officers should give careful consideration to the employment status of
individuals employed on a self-employed consultant or subcontract basis. All
such matters should be referred the —Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance for guidance.

| 8.1.9 The —Director Transformation & Corporate Performance must be notified of
details of any employee benefits in kind, to enable full and complete reporting
within the income tax self assessment system.

CONTACT: Payroll Manager

8.2 Allowances and Expense Claims

8.2.1 Employees must submit expense claims in the pay period after which they were
incurred in order to assist budget monitoring. Because of the difficulty in
verifying old claims, claims more than four pay periods old, will not be considered
unless approval is made by the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance or the Executive Director Corporate Services. Claims that do not
meet pay deadlines (as advised by the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance) may not be paid until the following pay period. All car allowance
claims must be supported with a VAT invoice for the fuel used.

8.2.2 Managers must only authorise claims they can certify as being correct — ie.
Journeys were authorised, expenses necessarily incurred and claims are
properly payable by the Council. The accuracy of any mileage claimed and any
calculations must be checked. Therefore, it is essential that all car allowance
claim forms must show details of the trip undertaken, the duties carried out, both
the opening and closing odometer readings and the deduction of any “ordinary
commuting miles”(if applicable). Managers must also ensure that officers

Section C 75
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 109



claiming both casual and essential allowances have appropriate and up to date
documents to include a valid driving licence, certificate of motor insurance that
covers business use, valid MOT and vehicle registration document.

8.2.3 Chief Officers should ensure that the most appropriate means of travel in terms
of cost and benefit is used. For example, long journeys may be better
undertaken by train, for example, to reduce the length of the working day or allow
the employee to work during the journey. (see guidance in Subsistence Policy).

8.2.4 Where subsistence and other associated travel expenses are claimed, they must
be supported by VAT receipts. The Council will not reimburse any expenditure
relating to alcohol. Guidance on subsistence rates that can be claimed can be
found in the Subsistence Policy which is appended to this guidance. The
maximum limits will be updated on an annual basis in line with the RPI.

8.2.5 Claims relating to Post Entry Training must be sent to the Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance to authorise the claim. The Chief
Officer must ensure the scheme is authorised and an agreement has been
signed by the employee. Where the scheme provides for the repayment of
expenses, the Director Transformation & Corporate Performance must arrange
recovery of any sums due before the employee leaves. The Organisational
Development Unit will supply guidance on amounts that can be claimed on an
annual basis.

8.2.6 Personal expenses incurred in entertaining guests will not be reimbursed without
the prior approval of the Executive Director Corporate Services.

CONTACT: Payroll Manager

8.3 Members Allowances

8.3.1 The Solicitor to the Council must check and certify claims submitted by

| Members. He/she must give the —Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance details of regular payments, such as responsibility allowances, and
must immediately notify any changes. Expenses claims must be submitted
monthly to aid budget monitoring. Expenses claim forms must be completed in
full e.g. detailing journeys made, opening and closing milometer readings and
any other expenses claimed. Claims can only be made for approved duties as
defined in the Constitution. All car allowance claims must be supported with a
VAT invoice for the fuel used. Claims in excess of four months will not be
considered unless approved by the Executive Director Corporate Services or the
Chief Executive.

8.3.2 Members wishing to attend a conference, etc must advise the Solicitor to the
Council, after consultation with the Cabinet if necessary, may approve the
payment of the cost of attendance at Conferences and training events and the
payment of travelling, subsistence and attendance allowance(s) in the rates
prescribed by the Secretary of State.

8.3.3 Wherever possible the Chief Officer should arrange overnight conference
accommodation on behalf of Members and ensure invoices are sent direct to the
Council.

Section C 76
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 110



CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

9. CASH ADVANCES, CASH FLOATS AND PETTY CASH

9.1 Purpose
9.1.1 Small amounts of cash currently need to be held in service units to:
a) provide a cash float in tills;

b)  pay minor expenses.

9.2 Processes

9.2.1 A Chief Officer needing a cash advance must send a written request to the
Executive Director Corporate Services. The manager receiving the cash
advance must sign for the receipt of all cash advances. A copy of the receipt
must be forwarded to the Finance section for accounting purposes. He/she is
responsible for the security of the cash and may be held responsible for making
good any shortages.

9.2.2 Only minor items of expenditure may be paid out of petty cash. Petty cash must
not be used to carry out recurring purchases of a similar nature. Chief Officers
must not authorise any individual payment over £100 without the agreement of

| the Executive Director Corporate Services or the Director of Finance. Where
reimbursement of expenditure exceeds £100, this should be processed through
the payroll system. Claims for expenses should be completed using the
expenses claim form. VAT receipts for all expenses must be attached.
Expenses will be reimbursed through the Payroll system with salary payments.

9.2.3 Payments out of petty cash must be supported by a receipt or other voucher.
Wherever possible a VAT receipt should be obtained. Income received must not
be paid into a petty cash account.

9.2.4 The Chief Officer must keep full records of all transactions. Records must be
kept fully up-to-date, showing the current balance in the account. The
expenditure details and receipts/vouchers must be sent to the Executive Director
Corporate Services with the claim for reimbursement.

Section C 77
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 111



9.2.5 The Chief Officer must ensure that the balance is checked at least monthly by an
officer without other responsibilities for petty cash. All checks made should be
evidenced. Any discrepancies must be investigated and reported as necessary.

9.2.6 At 31 March each year the officer carrying out the check must send written
confirmation to the Executive Director Corporate Services of the balance held
and an explanation of any discrepancy.

9.2.7 No float should be used to cash personal cheques or make personal loans. The
only payments in to the account are for the reimbursement of the float and any
change relating to purchase where an advance has been made.

9.2.8 Any transfers of floats between officers should be evidenced by signature of both
parties involved and a copy retained by the transferor. A copy should be sent to
the Executive Director Corporate Services to ensure that records remain up to
date.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

10. INCOME, CHARGING AND DEBTS
10.1 Fees and Charges

40-44The setting and reviewing of

altherthrouan NHro na-e aliTaVa IiViTa nNarae—o
o GHaPR POV g-td cHACuUd - Ge,—O

relatestoand-exactly-how-charges-willbe-set.fees, charges and other income
sources must be authorised in accordance with the detail set out in the
Constitution and the Scheme of Delegation.

10.1.1 - - {Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

)

“ ‘[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.27 cm

)

10.1.2 Chief Officers must ensure that all relevant charges are clearly displayed at
service payment points. Employees must charge all people using the service
the approved amounts.

10.1.3 All VAT due should be correctly identified and accounted for.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

10.2 Receiving Payment

10.2.1 The Council accepts payment by—chequeby cheque, debit card, credit card and
cash (cash is only accepted at certain locations). Officers handling payments
must follow the procedures below and any local procedures, including those
needed for computerised systems. They must complete all records fully and
accurately at the time. Chief Officers must ensure adequate local procedures
are in place at all stages, having sought necessary advice from the Executive
Director Corporate Services.

Section C 78
Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/46/12

Page 112



10.2.2 Ideally, subject to adequate controls, income should be received in advance or
at the time of service provision.

10.2.3 Where possible, a forged note detector should be used.
10.2.4 Cash drawers should be closed in between transactions.

10.2.5 Supervisory keys for cash registers should be held by supervising officer and
not by cashiers.

10.2.6 All voids, refunds and exceptions should be reviewed by the supervising officer
and this review should be evidenced.

All Methods

10.2.7 The officer must immediately issue an official receipt or ticket. Change may
only be given for payment by cash.

10.2.8 All official receipts should be properly controlled and accounted for.

10.2.9 All official receipts should be in a format approved by the Executive Director
Corporate Services

10.2.10 Transfers of cash between staff must be evidenced by signature of both staff
involved and a copy retained by the transferor.

Cheque Payment Against An Invoice/Account

10.2.11 The officer must ensure the cheque is:

a) made payable to “Tamworth Borough Council” (and should be crossed
account payee only);

b) dated correctly;

c) the correct amount;

d) signed;

and the officer must:

e) record on the back of the cheque the receipt number (and location if
necessary) and payment/invoice reference.

Cheque — Other Payment

10.2.12 As well as the above requirements the officer must ensure:
a) the cheque is signed at the counter;

b) acheque card is presented with
e the same signature,
e the same code number as the cheque,
e avalid expiry date,
e a limit sufficient to cover the cheque;
and the officer must:

Section C 79
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 113



c) record the card number on the back of the cheque.

Debit and Credit Cards

10.2.13 For payments in person the officer must ensure:
a) the card has not expired,;
b) the receipt signature matches the card signature;

c) the card is not on a current stop listing (or if so, follow the
instructions with the listing);

d) the receipt number is recorded against the transaction;
e) the credit card surcharge is recovered in line with approved policy

10.2.14 For telephone payments the officer must ensure:

a) that payments are processed at the time of call;
b) all relevant security checks are completed.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

10.3 Postal Payments

10.3.1 All post is to be opened centrally in the designated post room. Exceptions to
this include private and confidential post and where it is deemed that post
should not be opened.

10.3.2 Post must only be opened when two officers are present.

10.3.3 All income received through the post should be recorded immediately on to the
cash receipting system.

CONTACT: Head of Customer Service

10.4 Cashing-Up Procedures

10.4.1 At each payment point, the Chief Officer must ensure there are adequate daily
cashing-up procedures. The two stages should be carried out by two different
employees. The cashier should total the contents of the till and by deducting
the cash float, find out the day’s takings. A second officer should confirm the
actual cash takings with the total takings recorded on the receipts given out.
Signatures of both officers involved should be recorded on the paying in slip.
The local supervisor must immediately investigate any material discrepancies
and advise the Chief Officer, the Executive Director Corporate Services and the
Head of Internal Audit Services). All discrepancies must be recorded in a
cashiers overs/unders book, signed daily by the supervisor.

10.4.2 Small overs/unders balances up to £5 may be held locally, at the discretion of
the Chief Officer. Any balance over £5 should be banked.

Section C 80
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 114



| CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

10.5

Depositing Money

10.5.1 All money received must be banked direct. Employees must follow guidance

10.5.2

10.5.3

10.5.4

10.5.5

10.5.6

10.5.7

10.5.8

from the Executive Director Corporate Services on cash collection, control,
deposit and records.

Chief Officers/employees must ensure that all money received (other than
permitted over/unders balances) is deposited in full, without anything being
deducted. For example cash from a till must never be used to meet petty cash
expenses or to top-up petty cash.

If there is a need to depart from this rule, the Chief Officer must get the written
authorisation of the Executive Director Corporate Services.

Takings should be banked daily. Where this is not practicable Chief Officers
may agree an alternative arrangement with the Executive Director Corporate
Services, provided:

a) takings are banked at least weekly; and

b) maximum cash holdings specified by the Executive Director Corporate
Services (for insurance purposes) are not exceeded.

The cashier must prepare a daily cash summary/return and attach relevant till
readings or equivalent. The return must detail the amount of cash and the
amount in cheques. A supervising officer must verify this return.

Chief Officers must in any event ensure maximum cash holdings are not
exceeded.

The cashier must certify the paying in slip, which should be checked and
evidenced by a supervising officer.

Where banking bags are used, seals and the authority’s details should be
recorded in accordance with the collection company’s procedures.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

10.6
10.6.1

Money Laundering

Money laundering is the term used for a number of offences involving the
proceeds of crime and terrorist funds. The following acts constitute the act
of money laundering:

e Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring or removing criminal
property from England and Wales, or from Scotland, or from
Northern Ireland;

e Becoming concerned in an arrangement in which someone
knowingly or suspects facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or
control of criminal property by or on behalf of another person;

Section C 81
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 115



e Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property.

10.6.2 Although the term “money laundering” is generally used when describing
the activities of organised crime — for which the legislation and regulations
were first and foremost introduced — to most people who are likely to come
across it or be affected by it, it involves a suspicion that someone they
know, or know of, is benefiting financially from dishonest activities.

10.6.3 A likely indicator that money laundering may be taking place is the deposit
of large amounts of cash. The limit on a payment made by cash is
£54,000. Any large cash payments that raise concern below this amount
should be brought to the attention of the Solicitor to the SeuenilCouncil

however attempt to pay above this amount sheuld-be-reperted-tomust be
approved by the Solicitor to the Council.

10.6.4 The Council will do all it can to prevent, wherever possible, the
organisation and its staff from being exposed to money laundering to
identify potential areas where it may occur, and to comply with all legal and
regulatory requirements, especially with regard to the reporting of actual or
suspected cases. However, it is every member of staff's responsibility to
be vigilant.

10.6.5 The Solicitor to the Council is the nominated officer to act as the Council’s
Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

10.6.6 If a case of money laundering is suspected, the Solicitor to the Council
should be consulted immediately.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

10.7 Invoices, Debtors and Other Sums Due

10.7.1 It is the responsibility of each Service Unit to ensure that income for services
etc is received prior to the service being completed. Where payment in
advance is not possible, all necessary information in order to raise an account
should be obtained from the customer prior to the provision of the service,
except where statute dictates otherwise.

10.7.2 All Service Units must maintain a record of why the account has been raised.
All accounts must be accurately created either prior to the service being
delivered or, in the case of post-service charging, within 5 working days of the
delivery of the service. Where possible, debtor accounts should not be raised
for less than £100 in accordance with the Corporate Credit Policy.

10.7.3 It is essential that all accounts issued are timely; therefore, accounts raised
after the service has been completed should be raised within five working days.

10.7.4 Timescales for the recovery process are detailed in the Corporate Credit Policy.

10.7.5 At the start of each financial year, Chief Officers must promptly supply
information to the Executive Director Corporate Services on amounts due where
a debtors account has not yet been raised for the previous financial year within
the required deadlines.

Section C 82
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 116



Credit Policy

10.7.6 Cabinet on 25 April 2007 approved a new Corporate Credit Policy (see
Appendix). Chief Officers must ensure appropriate local guidance is in place
and employees must follow the Policy and the local guidance.

CONTACT: Head of Revenues

10.8 Debt Write-Off

10.8.1 Debts may only be written-off in line with the appropriate policy — e.g. the
Corporate Credit Policy.

10.8.2 Except where an approved policy dictates otherwise, the following authorisations
are needed to write-off debt:

Authority Limit

Chief Officer up to £5,000

(or authorised delegated officer)

Executive Director Corporate Services £5,001 - £10,000
Cabinet over £10,000

Note that these limits apply to each transaction.

All write-offs should be completed with adherence to the Accounts & Audit
Regulations 2011.

An annual report of write offs between £5,001 and £10,000 should be submitted
to Council for information.

| CONTACT: Head of Revenues

11. ASSETS AND EQUIPMENT

An up to date asset register is a pre requisite for proper fixed asset accounting
and sound asset management. Assets need to be valued in accordance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom:
(CIPFA/LASAAC based on International Financial Reporting Standards). Any
assets purchased with a value of over £10,000 should be notified in writing to the
Executive Director Corporate Services so that they can be added to the asset
register.

CONTACT: Director of Finace

11.1 Responsibilities

11.1.1 Each Chief Officer is responsible for the records, use and storage of all assets
and equipment within their control and/or used in their service delivery. Each

Section C 83
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 117



Chief Officer must ensure that a physical check of all significant assets and
equipment is undertaken on at least an annual basis to confirm their location and
condition and to ensure that inventory records are accurate. This check should
be evidenced.

11.1.2 Each Chief Officer must ensure that inventory records are maintained for all
assets and equipment in any format specified by the Executive Director
Corporate Services, to ensure the details shown below are included in each case
and that all appropriate items are clearly and securely marked.

Inventory details:

e Description

e Purchase date

e Purchase price

e Serial number (if applicable)
e Asset number (if applicable)
¢ Condition

e Date of disposal

11.1.3 Chief Officers should ensure that contingency plans for the security of assets
and continuity of service in the event of a disaster or system failure are in place.

11.1.4 In order to comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards,
managers are required to consult on any rentals, leases, use of assets to or
from the authority, prior to entering into an agreement with the Executive
Director Corporate Services, especially where financial/operating leases are
entered into as more advantageous financing could be sort.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

11.2 Scope

11.2.1 All furniture, fittings, equipment and plant and machinery with an original and
individual value of £50 or more should be included, with the sole exception of
Information Technology (I.T.) hardware and software, which must be recorded
by the Director, Technology & Corporate Programmes. Chief Officers should
consider whether it is appropriate to include other items of a portable and
desirable nature which may have a lower value.

11.2.2 Any change in the use or location of any |.T. hardware or software must be

completed by the Technology & Corporate Programmes Service who will
update their records accordingly.

11.3 Use

Section C 84
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 118



11.3.1 Items are only to be used on Council business and in line with accepted
procedures and manufacturers instructions, and must not be removed without
the specific approval of the Chief Officers.

11.4 Disposal

11.4.1 The disposal of all surplus items must be in line with the following guidelines
which should be applied by:

a) the Director Technology & Corporate Programmes for all IT equipment;
b) the Chief Officer for all other items;

c) the Executive Director Corporate Services for all other items with a value
in excess of £1,000.

11.4.2 Each Chief Officer must record the disposal details on the inventory records
and must maintain adequate records such as receipts and formal bids.
Disposals should be notified to the Executive Director Corporate Services to
ensure that appropriate accounting entries are made to remove the value of
disposed assets from the authority’s records and to include the sale proceeds if
appropriate.

Disposal Guidelines

11.4.3 A disposal policy is in place for the disposal of land and property (Asset
Disposal Policy). The Asset Disposal Policy must be followed in these
instances.

The disposal of any other surplus assets or equipment should be arranged in
the manner most useful to the Council, taking into account the value, condition
and usefulness of the item. Further guidance is appended.

11.4.5 AllIT equipment must be passed to the Technology & Corporate Programmes
Service for disposal to ensure that all information retained on disk drive is
deleted in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998.

11.4.6 Particular care must be taken to ensure the Council is not exposed to risk, for
example by passing an unsafe item to another body. Any internal sale must be
scrupulously fair and open. The guide to the disposal of assets (excluding land
and buildings) is appended to this guidance. Advice is available from the Head
of Internal Audit Services or Director Assets & Environment.

CONTACT: Director of Finance, Head of Internal Audit Services, Director Assets &
Environment

12. STOCKS AND STORES

12.1 Responsibilities

12.1.1 The aim of controls over stocks and stores is to ensure:

Section C 85
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 119



a) necessary materials are available when they are needed;
b) purchase costs are minimised;

c) stock holding costs are minimised;

d) waste and other loss is minimised

e) To achieve this Chief Officers must ensure:

a) the correct quantities are purchased at the correct times (to gain discounts
and avoid delivery and administration costs);

b) excessive levels are not held (taking account of shelf life, storage costs
and service needs);

c) stocks are held and handled securely;

d) adequate records are maintained including:
i) purchases and additions
i) issues
i)  write-offs.

12.1.3 The Executive Director Corporate Services can advise on these matters,
particularly on the financial records.

12.1.4 Chief Officers must also ensure that movements of stores are properly
authorised and documented and that the records note the employee(s) involved
in the process. The Head of Internal Audit Services can advise on these
aspects.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

12.2 Stocktaking

12.2.1 All stocks must be checked at least once a year at the end of the financial year
in order to compare actual levels to recorded levels and Chief Officers should
consider more frequent checks of valuable, desirable and portable items.
Large stores, such as those held at the depots, could achieve this by an agreed
process of rolling stocktakes. The Head of Internal Audit Services will advise if
necessary.

12.2.2 Stocktakes must be monitored and checked by employees who are
independent of the storekeeping roles. This checking role must include the
comparison of actual stocks to the recorded levels.

12.2.3 All discrepancies should be investigated by the line manager. Any material
discrepancies (over £100 or desirable commodities) should be reported to the
Executive Director Corporate Services who will advise on the appropriate
procedures to follow, and who may inform the Head of Internal Audit Services
of the facts.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

Section C 86
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 120



12.3 Obsolete and Unserviceable Stock

12.3.1 The disposal of stocks and stores should be in line with the guidance contained
in the section on Assets and Equipment.

12.3.2 Obsolete/damaged stock should be written off prior to year-end and should not
be included in year-end stock balances.

12.4 Intellectual Property

12.4.1 Intellectual property is a generic term that includes inventions and writing. If
these are created by the employee during the course of employment, then,
as a general rule, they belong to the employer, not the employee. Various
acts of Parliament cover different types of intellectual property.

12.4.2 Certain activities undertaken within the authority may give rise to items that
may be patentable, for example, software development. These items are
collectively known as intellectual property.

| 12.4.3 42.4.3Chief Officers must ensure that controls are in place to ensure that
staff do not carry out private work in council time and that staff are aware of
an employer’s rights with regard to intellectual property.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services, Director Technology & Corporate
Programmes

13 SECURITY

13.1  All staff must wear their ID pass at all times within Council establishments.
Identification should be requested for all visitors to council establishments.
Where applicable, visitors must sign the visitors book both on entry and exit of
the building. If appropriate, the visitor must be provided with an identification
badge which must be returned on departure. The person issuing the badge
should ensure that the badge is returned.

13.2 All temporary identification badges should be retained securely.

13.3 All building alarms should be linked to Homelink, the police station or directly to
the alarm company. Managers should ensure that these links are maintained.

13.4 The knowledge of alarm codes should be restricted to relevant staff. Each
member of staff must have their own ID for the alarm. If a member of staff
leaves the authority, their ID should be deleted from the system.

13.5 Alarm usage reports should be generated on a regular basis. These reports
should reviewed by management who must evidence this review.

13.6 All cash handling areas should be secured. All access to cash areas should be
locked and access restricted to authorised staff.

13.7 Safes should be located out of site of the public and should be locked at all
times. Access to safes must be restricted to authorised personnel. Each
member of staff needing access to the safe must be issued with a key. The

Section C 87
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 121



issue of safe keys should be documented detailing the date issued and the
holder. The holder must sign for the receipt of the key. Safe keys must not be
retained on the premises overnight. Retention of safe keys on unoccupied
premises renders the insurance invalid.

13.8 Any transfer of keys between staff should be recorded. On termination or
transfer of employment, all keys issued to that member of staff should be handed
back to the line manager. The key register should be updated to reflect the hand
over.

13.9 Managers are responsible for ensuring that the cash limit for the safe is not
exceeded.

13.10 Where a cash collection company is used, managers are responsible for
ensuring that the names and signatures of the cash collection staff are up to
date.

13.11 The guidance on physical and environmental security contained within the
Information Security Policy gives more guidance.

CONTACT:Director Assets & Environment

Section C 88
| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 122



14 DATA QUALITY

14.1 All employees have a responsibility for ensuring the information we process is
accurate and up to date. The Data Quality Policy addresses this.

14.2 The consequence of poor quality of data impacts not only the way the council
works, but also anyone who conducts their business with us.

14.3 Data Quality Standards possess six essential characteristics, these are:

Completeness — Data quality systems should have in place monitoring
to ensure that no data is missing, incomplete or invalid records
included.

Accurate — Data should be accurate for the purpose it is intended, and
to be captured as close to the source as possible.

Validity — Data should be compliant with requirements and within the
parameters laid down in any criteria.

Reliability — Data should be consistent across all collection points and
over time. Appropriate controls should be in place to check
outputs/inputs, sampling and is compliant with the criteria set out.
Timeliness — Data should be captured as soon as possible, and
available to recipients within the agreed timeframe.

Relevance — Data captured should be relevant to the purpose for
which it is used. Reviews need to take place to ensure the quality
reflects any changing needs.

| CONTACT: Corporate Information Security Manager

Section C

89

| Revised Sept2012Dec 2013 — Approved A & G 25/10/42

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Agenda Item 8

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
30th JANUARY 2014

Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT 2013/14 QUARTER 3
EXEMPT INFORMATION

None

PURPOSE

To report on the outcome of Internal Audit’s review of the internal control, risk
management and governance framework in the 3rd quarter of 2013/14 - to
provide members with assurance of the ongoing effective operation of an
internal audit function and enable any particularly significant issues to be
brought to the Committee’s attention.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee considers the attached quarterly report and raises any
issues it deems appropriate.

Executive Summary

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 (as amended) require each local
authority to publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with its Annual
Statement of Accounts. The AGS is required to reflect the various
arrangements within the Authority for providing assurance on the internal
control, risk management and governance framework within the organisation,
and their outcomes.

One of the sources of assurance featured in the AGS is the professional
opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the outcome of service reviews.
Professional good practice recommends that this opinion be given periodically
throughout the year to inform the “annual opinion statement”. This opinion is
given on a quarterly basis to the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Head of Internal Audit Services’ quarterly opinion statement for Oct — Dec
2013 (Qtr3) is set out in the attached document, and the opinion is
summarised below.

Based on the ongoing work carried out by and on behalf of Internal Audit and
other sources of information and assurance, my overall opinion of the control
environment for this quarter is that “some assurance” can be given. My
overall opinion of the control environment for the year to date is that
‘reasonable assurance” can be given. Where significant deficiencies in

Page 125



internal control have been formally identified by management, Internal Audit
or by external audit or other agencies, management have given assurances
that these have been or will be resolved in an appropriate manner. Such
cases will continue to be monitored. Internal Audit’s opinion is one of the
sources of assurance for the Annual Governance Statement which is
statutorily required to be presented with the annual Statement of Accounts.

Specific issues:

No specific issues have been highlighted through the work undertaken by
Internal Audit during 2013/14.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers, Head of Internal Audit Services

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Internal Audit Performance Reports 2013/14 Quarter 3.

Appendix 2 Percentage of Management Actions Agreed 2013/14 Quarter 3.

Appendix 3 Implementation of Agreed Management Actions 2013/14
Quarter 3.

Page 126



INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT/QUARTERLY REPORT — Q3 - 2013/14

1. INTRODUCTION

Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach
to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes. Every Local Authority is statutorily required to provide for an
adequate and effective internal audit function. The Internal Audit service provides this
function at this Authority.

This brief report aims to ensure that Committee members are kept aware of the
arrangements operated by the Internal Audit service to monitor the control
environment within the services and functions of the authority, and the outcome of
that monitoring. This is to contribute to corporate governance and assurance
arrangements and ensure compliance with statutory and professional duties, as
Internal Audit is required to provide periodic reports to “those charged with
governance”.

2, PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESSION AGAINST AUDIT PLAN

The Internal Audit service aims as one of its main Performance Indicators (PI's) to
complete work on at least 90% of applicable planned audits by the end of the
financial year, producing draft reports on these where possible/necessary.
Appendix 1 shows the progress at the end of quarter 3 of the work completed
against the plan and highlights the work completed in the third quarter. The original
audit plan identified 71 (originally 72 but 2 audits were merged together) areas of
work (including implementation reviews). At the end of quarter 3, additional work
completed includes an additional 23 implementation reviews and 7 audits for the
current financial year. In addition, 4 implementation reviews identified at the
beginning of the financial year have been cancelled. The report has been split to
distinguish between audits and implementation reviews. Internal Audit have
completed 65% of the revised total of audits and 69% of the revised implementation
reviews (taking into account the cancelled implementation reviews).

The service also reports quarterly on the percentage of draft reports issued within 15
working days of the completion of fieldwork. All (100%) of the 15 draft reports issued
in this quarter of the year were issued within this deadline.

3. AUDIT REVIEWS COMPLETED QUARTER 3 2013/14

The audits finalised in the third quarter of 2013/14 are shown in Appendix 2 and this
identifies the number of recommendations made. A total of 148 recommendations
were made in the third quarter with 146 (99%) being accepted by management. The
two audit recommendations not agreed were both highlighted in the Commercial and
Industrial Properties audit and were not deemed high priority.

The service revisits areas it has audited around 6 months after agreeing a final report
on the audit, to test and report to management on the extent to which agreed actions
have been taken. Three implementation reviews were completed during the 3rd
quarter of 2013/14. Appendix 3 details the implementation progress to date for
2013/14. Internal Audit is fairly satisfied with the progress made by management to
reduce the levels of risk through the year. However, there are still a number of high

Page 127



priority actions that have not been completed. Internal Audit will complete further
implementation reviews to ensure that these are implemented.

4, INDEPENDENCE OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY

Attribute Standards 1110 to 1130 in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
require that Internal Audit have organisational and individual independence and
specifically state that the Head of Internal Audit Services must confirm this to the
Audit & Governance Committee at least annually. As performance is reported
quarterly, this confirmation will be provided quarterly.

The Head of Internal Audit Services confirms that Internal Audit is operating
independently of management and is objective in the performance of internal audit
work.

5. OVERALL CURRENT INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION

Based on the ongoing work carried out by and on behalf of Internal Audit and other
sources of information and assurance, my overall opinion of the control environment
at this time is that “reasonable assurance” can be given. Where significant
deficiencies in internal control have been formally identified by management, Internal
Audit or by external audit or other agencies, management have given assurances
that these have been or will be resolved in an appropriate manner. Such cases will
continue to be monitored. Internal Audit’s opinion is one of the sources of assurance
for the Annual Governance Statement which is statutorily required to be presented
with the annual Statement of Accounts.

Specific issues:

There were no specific issues highlighted through the work of Internal Audit in the
third quarter of the 2013/14 financial year

Angela Struthers,
Head of Internal Audit Services

Page 128



\/
[9A3T 3JURINSSY 1IPNY

1 xipuaddy

uoluldQ 1pny pasiAey  uoluldQ |[B43AQ 314 UpNnY

‘91enbapeul sJe

9oe|d ul sjoJauod Jo ‘Ajjood
Hbuneaado 1nq ade|d ul aue
S$]041U0D Se A|9A1NDRY4D pue
AjaJes saAd3(qO S1I aAsIyde
[1IM AJiAnD®e Jo Sssadoud
‘wa3sAs ay3 1eyl usalb

9( UBD IDURINSSE PaAlILI|
Ajuo 110d3al 01 sAey 1pny

1Y) UJSDUOD SWOS YIIM SI 3| ABojouyda] uonew.lojul

(%59)
9g = HO

ssaiboud a4 ypny

9dA] ®dueINSSY MIpnyY

(%SE) 6T
= E._,___DEV._E_J_

0 000020SI 60dDY23L ¢ L€ L
ssa1boud 3|14 1pny 314 upny

Page 129

¢ 1931en() Je DUPWLIOJIdJ IPNY [euIdu]



[9A3T 3JURINSSY 1IPNY

"AjdADBY4e bunessdo

pue 2d>e|d Ul aJe $|0JIu0d
A3 1S0W 1N( SISSDUNEIM
[0J3U0D SWOS due

9491 J9ASMOY A|DA1NDR)4D
pue Ajajes saAndalqo

Sl 9A3IYDE pInoys AllAnDe
J0 Ssa20u4d ‘walSAS 3y}

18y UdAIB 9 Ued ddUBINSSE
9|qeuoseal 1iodau 0}

9|ge 3q 01 pases|d aJe 1pny

‘21enbapeul aue

9d¢e|d U] S]0J1u0d JO ‘Ajuood
bupesado 1nq 9de|d ul dJe
S]0J1U0D Se AJ]9ANDRY4D pue
Al2)es saAND3[qO S dAdIYde
[[Im AlIA1DD® JO ssadoud
‘w1sAs ay1 1eY) UBAID

9 U IdURINSSE PAYIWI|
Ajuo 110dau 01 sAeY 1PNy
1By UI3dU0D BWOS YIIM S| 1]

bul|re} sJe uo de|d uljou
9Je S|0JIU0D SB A[9AID3YYD
pue Ajajes saAndalqo

S} dA3IYDE ||IM AYIAIDE

10 ss920.4d ‘wI1SAS Y3

18yl UdAID 3q ued ddueINSSe
ou 110dau 01 sey 1pny

1eY1 UJ3DU0D dWOS YIM S ]|

uoluidQ Mpny pasiAgY  uoluldQ [[e43AQ 3|I4 MpNY

M3IAB paseq Xsiy @
MBIADI PASB(] WISAS @
MBIIASI Paseq WISAS @

9dA] ®dueINSSY JIpNyY ssa1b604d 914 1pny

A114nd3s
Buip|ing ¥1S0dDL ¥ L€ L

Page 130

1udWabeuep
dwodul [ INId'¥LEL

Bunuiid 90ddY29L v LEL
9|14 3pny



<

<

[9A3T 3JURINSSY 1IPNY

uoluldQ Mpny pasiAy

‘d)enbapeul aJe

9oe|d ul sjo.uod 4o ‘Ajiood
Hbuneaado 1nq ade|d ul aue
S]0J3U0D Se A|9A11D9443 pue
A|34eS S9A1123[QO S1I dA3IYdE
[[IM AllA13D® U0 SS3D0.4d
‘wa3sAs ay3 1eyl usalb

9¢ UBD IDUBINSSE pPallWl|
Ajuo 110d3al 01 sAey 1pny
1Byl UJ3DU0D BWOS YIM SI |

‘21enbapeul aue

9oe|d ul sjoauod Jo ‘Ajiood
Hbunesado 1ng ade|d ul aue
S]041U0D Se A|9Al1D9)48 pue
Ajages saAda[qo s11 aAsIyde
[I!M AliAnnD®e Jo ssadoud
‘w1sAs ay1 1eY) UBAID

9( UBD ddURINSSE PallWl|
Ajuo 110dau 01 sAeY 1PNy
1eY1 UJ3DU0D dWOS YIUM S ]|

‘eaJe

9Yl ulyum sysis isurebe
91ebniw 03 ade|d ul ind 3q
01 /9de|d ul Seunseaw syl
pue sysu |ennualod Ajnuspl
0] buisnoy paJa1|ays 404 1no
paliied usaq Ssey uolissas
9dA1 doysyaom sndoy v

uotuidQ [[eJdAQ 314 MIpNY

Adueljnsuo) [euonippy @
MBIARI PIsSe( WIISAS @
doys>Jom dIsiy @

9dA] ®dueINSSY JIpNyY ssa1b604d 914 1pny

ysed Aad 60dDL' ¥ LEL

Page 131

salniadoud
|erasnpuj/enJsawwo)
€03av'vLEL

BbuisnoH
paid1ays EOHH ¥ LEL

9|l4 11pny



[9A3T 3JURINSSY 1IPNY

uoluldQ Mpny pasiAy

‘9lenbapeul aJe

9oe|d ul sjos1uod Jo ‘Ajood
bunesado 1nqg ade|d Ul aue
S]0J1U0D Se A|9A11DR)49 pue
AlaJeS S9AI129[qO S1I dAdIYde
[IIM A1A1D®e Jo Sssadoud
‘wR1ISAS 9yl 1ey1 UsaAIb

9( Ued IdURINSSE PAYIWI|
Ajuo 110dau 01 sAey 1pny
1By UJ3DU0D 3WOS YIM S| 1|

"Ajlio1deysnes

bunesado pue ade|d ul aue
S]0J1U0D 1ey) pue A|aANDR))d
pue Ajajes saAndalqo

S} 9A3IYDe pnoys AlANRDe
10 ss9d04d ‘wI1SAS a3

18yl UdAID 3q ued ddueINSSE
[ennueisgns 1iodau 0}

9|qe 9q 01 pased|d aJe ypny

‘21enbapeul aue

9de|d U] S|0J1u0d JO ‘Ajuood
bunesado 1nqg ade|d ul aue
S]0J1U0D Se A|9A11DR)49 pue
Al2)es saAND3[qO S dAdIYde
[[IM AlIA1DD® JO ssadoud
‘wR1SAS ay1 1ey1 UsaAIb

9( Ued IdURINSSE PAYIWI|
Ajuo 110dau 01 sAeY 1PNy
1By UJ3dU0D BWOS YIIM S| 1|

uotuidQ [[eJdAQ 314 MIpNY

ainsiaT

MB3IADJ paseq dsiy @ Allunwwiod Y150ddDv L€ L

wia1ul
— WR1SAS [eIDURUL UIRI @
MBIIASI Paseq WISAS @
9dA] ®dueINSSY JIpNyY ssa1b604d 914 1pny

age 132

Z 11D 1wswabeud:
Ainseau] Z'ZONId P LEL

VdId 90DLIS' v LEL
9|4 Mpny



Page 133



aoe|d ul sjoaiu0d 1o ‘Ajjood

bupesado 1nq 9de|d ul aJe ‘9lenbapeul
S]0J1U0D Se A|9A11D9)43 pue aJe 9de|d Ul S|0JIUOD
A|34eS S9A1123[QO S1I dA3IYDE J0 ‘Ajpood bunesado
[[!M AyiAnoe Jo ssadoud 1nq 3de|d ul 3Je $|043U0d
‘wa3sAs ay3 eyl UsAlb se A|9A11D34)9 pue Aajes
9Q UBd ddUBINSSE PAWI| S9AID3[QO S11 dAIIYIE ||IM
1eys sl uoluldo 1pne pasiAad  AlAIIDE 10 SS9304d ‘wI1SAS
9yl SUonepuUIWWOI 9Y1 18yl UdAIb 3q ued S}NPY 9|qeJaU|nA
Awsond ybiy buipuelsino  ddueiInsse paiwi] Ajuo eyl 1 uaup|iyD buipaenbajes
Q € Q JO J3quwinu 3y) 03 ang Sem uoluido ypne [enul ayl MIIAY uoneIUBWI|dw| o WIS0DLIS T LEL
|9A97 @dUBINSSY 1PNy uoluidQ 3pny pasIAdy uoluidQ [[ed9AQ 9JI4 Mpny 9dA] ®dueINSSY MIpnyY ssa1b604d 914 1pny 914 ypny

4
m
—
(%3]
TE = AD %J
©
(Al
(%8Z) €T
= E!.uE.v__E_J_
(%t
T = M3y

ssaiboud a4 ypny

SMI1AY] uonejudwd[duy ¢ 19)ren() Je 310day dULWIOJIdJ JIPNY [euwIdju]



[9A3T 3JURINSSY 1IPNY

‘9lenbapeul aJe

9oe|d ul sjo.uod 4o ‘Ajiood
bunesado 1nq ade|d ul aue
S]0J1U0D SE A|9A1129)43 pue
A|3jes saA1129[qO S11 9AsIyde
[[IM AllA13D® 10 SS3D0.4d
‘W1SAS 9y eyl usAlb 3q
UBd 3DUBINSSE pPallWl| 1eyd
S| uoluldo 31pne pasiAal 3y}
woy3 o1 paubisse Ayond
9l pue suollepuaWWodal
9y1 Jo uonejusws|duwil

JO 32e| 3y 03 3anQg

"9lenbapeul

9Je 9de|d Ul S|0J3UOD IO
‘Aliood bBunyesado 1nqg sde|d
ul 9Je S|0J1U0D Se A|DAIDBYD
pue Ajajes saandafqo

S} 9A3IYDE ||IM AYIADR

10 $S920.4d ‘wI1SAS ay3

1Byl UdAID 3q ued IdueINSSE
paywi| Ajuo - uoluido

1ipne ay3 03 abueyd ou
u33q Ssey aJayl ‘yuswalinbal
9AIe|SIb3| B bulaqg

dUO ‘SuUOIEPUBWILIOII
buipueisino

& € @ 9y JO aJ4nieu syl 01 anQg

.wumj_uw_umc_ oJe

uoluldQ MpNY pasiAY

‘21enbapeul aue

9oe|d ul sjoauod Jo ‘Ajiood
Hbuneaado 1nq ade|d ul aue
S$]041U0D Se A|9A1NDR)4D pue
AlaJes saA3(qO S1I aAsIyde
[[IM AllA13D® U0 SS3d0.4d
‘Wo1SAS 9y 1ey) usAlb 3q
ued ddUBINSSE pallWl| 1Byl
sem uoluido 1ipne [eniul sy

"9lenbapeul

9Je 9de|d ul S|0J3U0D

10 ‘Ajpood bunessdo

1nqg 9@de|d ul aJe SjoJ1u0d

Se A[9A11D34)9 pue Ajsjes
S9A1123[O S AA3IYDE |[IM
AyIAD®R 10 Ssad04d ‘wisAs
91 1ey1 usAIb aq ued
9oueunsse payiwi| Ajuo 1eyl
sem uoluido iipne [enjul syl

uotuidQ [[eJdAQ 314 MIpNY

MBIAY uoneIusW|dw| @ VdId ¥190D11S'¥

LEL
Tp)
™
—
Q
o
@©
o

suoneJepaqg pue

MIIAY uoneIudW|dw| @ SpJepuels Y| LODLLIS ¥V LEL

9dA] ®dueINSSY JIpNyY ssa1b604d 914 1pny 914 ypny



pue paiuswa|dwi Ajjented

33 Jo Ayuonid pue Jsquinu

9yl 01 anp pabueyd 10u

sey uoluido 1pne syl MaIAd.

uoneyuswa|dwi Jayuny

93Ul woij uo buimojo4

‘91enbapeul aue

9oe|d ul sjo.uod 4o ‘Ajiood

Hbuneaado 1nq ade|d ul aue
S]041U0D Se A|9A1NDR)4D pue ‘bul|rey
A|34eS S9A1123[QO S1I dA3IYdE 9Je 10 ade|d ul J0u BJe
[[IM A1IAIDD® 4O SS9204d  S|0JIUOD SB A|9AIID34)9 pue
‘Wo1SAS 9yl eyl UsAIb 9q Ajajes S9A1DR(O S1I 9ASIYDe

ued ddUBINSSE P WI| Iey) [1IM A1AnD®e Jo ssadoud
SeM M3IADJ uoneIusw|duwil ‘wa1SsAs sy 1eyl usalb MIIADY co_uE:wEw_Q%
[entul syl buimoj|oy 9Q UBd ddUBJINSSE OU Jeyl MIINDY J3Yyuin4 e[[auolbed
A] € o ‘uoluldo 1ipne pasIAaL Ay Sem uoluldo yipne [ellul 8yl uonejudwl|dw| [euonippy @ 19 S01S3CSY YI4E 1AV ¥ L&D
‘9lenbapeul aJe m
9oe|d ul sjo.uod 4o ‘Ajsood AR
bunesado 1nq ade|d ul aue
S]0J1U0D Se A[9A11D3)49 pue 91enbaspeul
Al9JeS S9AI1D3[QO S1I dA3IYde 9Je 9de|d ul S|0JIU0D
[[IM AllA13D® U0 SS3D0.4d 10 ‘Ajpood bunessdo
‘w1sAs 3yl 1eY) UBAID 1ng 3de|d ul aJe S|0JIu0d
90 UBD 3dUBINSSE pPallwl| Se A[9A11094J9 pue Ajajes

Ajuo 1eys si uotuido 1pne S9AI123[QO S AA3IYDE |[IM
pasiAaJ 9yl panuswsajdwl  AllANDe J0 SSd04d ‘wWI1SAS

AjjenJed Jo pelusws|duwi 91 1ey1 usAIb aq ued
10U SUOBPUIWWODAS  ddUBINSSE PIWI| Ajuo 1eyl $]0J1U0D) [eIDUBUIH SDIAIDS
¢ € \¥ 7 93 JO 94nleu 9yl 01 3ng Sem uojuldo pne [eniul sy MBIADY uoneluswWwa|dw| @ [euonessdQ Y4z LAV Y LEL

[9AST 9DURINSSY 1PNy uoluidQ 1PNy PasIARY  uoluldQ [[eJ3AQ 3[i4 PNy adA] 9duRINSSY 1IpNY $s2160.4 3|14 1pny 3|14 1pny



[9A3T 3JURINSSY 1IPNY

‘9)enbapeul

9Je 9de|d U] S|0JIUOD IO
‘Aliood bBunesado 1nq de|d
Ul 3Je S|0J1U0D Se A|DAINDBYD
pue Ajajes saandsfqo

Sl 3A3IYDE ||IM AYIAIDE

10 ssa20u4d ‘walsAs 3y}

18y} UdAIb 9Qq ued ddUeINSSE
payiwi| Ajuo Jeyl - surewsu
uoluldo ypne snoiasud

9yl pamaiaal bulaq jou
13151694 S § B H 1eso0duod
ay1 pue parepdn Bulaq

10U J0 Bujpueisino sapdijod
"9°1 ‘suolyepuswwod3l
buipueisino

VYV €Y ay) JO aJnieu ay) 01 anQ

b4 &
‘suonepusWLWod3
buipueisino

uoluldQ Mpny pasiAy

‘9)enbapeul

9Je 9de|d Ul S|0J3UOD

10 ‘Ajpood bunessdo

1nqg ade|d ul aJe S|joJ1uod

Se A[9AI11D84)9 pue Ajajes
S2AND3[QO S11 9ABIYDE ||[IM
A11Anoe 1o ssod0ud ‘waisAs
91 1ey1 usAIb aq ued
9oueINnsse payiwi| Ajuo 1eyy
sem uoluido ipne |enjul syl

uotuidQ [[eJdAQ 314 MIpNY

MBIIADY uoneluswa|dw|

9dA] ®dueINSSY JIpNyY

@

ssa1b604d 914 1pny

Page 137

A1oJes
® UllesH ¥IZ0dDL'v LEL

9|l4 11pny



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



z xipuaddy

{966)
9+ T = pajdaxy e

Page 139

o (%T) €
= pajdaiay joy

2oueydaroy

€ J31iend I /102 poa4by suoildoy judwabeuep Jo abejuadiad



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



Pe00l

P00

Pe00l

| %58

| wse

| Gl

Pa00 )

Jeg ssau604d UOEPUBWIWIODRY HPNY

Ayiond ybiH
Avolid ybIH
Ayiond ybiH

Ayiond ybiH

Ayiond ybiH
Ayolid ybIH

Ayiond ybiH

AJ11014d UoEPUIWWOIY PNy

(9az)
T =58

(%5)

(%E)
Z =05

(%)
T =52

(%)
T=1Z

(9682)
8T =0

ssalbo.id

O00®

O RS RS

UO0D| SN1BIS UONEPUWWOIRY HPNY

! (9%65)
— |8z =001

92110e4d JO SBPOd pue
uoire|siba| A1ajes pue YyifeaH 12 S®H €121

SYSI1 A1ajes pue yyesH L[ S®H €121
SY23YD DI0AU| BZ'E TRV €121

BuLI0)IUOIA 12BIU0D 22 TRV €121

S1UQWISSaSSY
SIY e|jauoiba ez TRV €121

Burioyuon 10eNUOD Z°L TRV €121

PeUOD 'L TRV €121

9111 % 3p0D uollepuUlWWOIY 1Ipny

Page 141

¢ 19)1en() SUOIPY JudwaSeuey pa313y Jo uonjejuawajduuy



P00 |
Pe00l _
P00 |
| %(]
| %]
| %0
| %]
| %]
Pa00 1 _
| %]

_ 9557

Pe00l

Jeg ssau60.1d UONBPUBWIWOIRY HPNY

Ayiolid ybIH
Ayold ybiH
Ayold ybiH
Ayiolid ybIH
Ayold ybiH
Ayolid ybIH

Ayold ybiH

Ayold ybiH
Ayold ybiH
Ayiolid ybIH
Ayold ybiH
Ayiolid ybIH
Ayold ybiH
Aviolid ybIH
Aviolid ybIH
Ayold ybiH
Ayolid ybIH

Ayold ybiH

Ayold ybiH

A111011d UOnEPUBWIWODRY PNy

O 00000V TOGO® V000D OO

UO0D| SN1BIS UONEPUSWWOIRY HPNY

S24NsOdSIp
ddD JO [BMIURY €% VARDS €121

SHP/YD YD ¥ VARDS €1¢1

Ad110d J331UN|OA |t VARDS €121
walsAS WY¥D 9" L VARDS €121

XSDD §7L VARDS €1¢1

WdISAS INYD JO 3N ¥ L VARDS €121

1U9SUODI9N Z°L VARDS €1¢1
9duei1dadde
Adijod Buipaenbajes |°| VARDS €121

suoneIoNd L€ D4SO € RA,_.z

sdwalad - S198U0D) 2°Z D4SO € LTT

S1deuo) "¢ D4S0 € _va

Aauol 1oy anfep £°s s3H € LBk
sawweubold buluied] 9°G SRH €121
SUWLIOJ JUBPIDDY +°G SRH €121

sanss| A1ajes pue yiesH €S SPH €121
SyPayd 1uawdinba a4 2°G SPH €121
juswdo|aAsp Adijod MaN €°v SBH €121

Adljod Aiages pue yijesH |y S®H €121
SIUAWISSISSE
dsii Ayajes pue Yi[eaH '€ SPH €121

9111 % 3p0D uollepuUlWWOIY 1Ipny



| %(]
Pa00lL |

Pa00lL |
Pe00L _

N _

_ %05 |

| %0
| %(]
Pa00lL |
Pe001 _

Jeg ssau60.1d UONBPUBWIWOIRY HPNY

Al101Id WNIpa

Aioud wnipsp

Aioud wnipsp

Al101Id WNIpa

Alao1d wnips

Ayolid ybIH

Ayold ybiH

Ayiond ybiH

Ayold ybiH
Ayiolid ybIH
Ayiond ybiH

Aviolid ybIH

Ayold ybiH
Aviolid ybIH
Ayold ybiH
Ayolid ybIH

Ayiond ybiH

A111011d UOnEPUBWIWODRY PNy

O RS

00

O

OOOOO OO0OO © 6 ©

UO0D| SN1BIS UONEPUSWWOIRY HPNY

m__wco_mwn_ pue s01saqSsy €°¢ IRV €121

SluswWAed 9310AUI 4Z°€ TRV €121
1010843U0D
YlIM suolssnosiq Jeinbay [€ 19V €121

Bunsa] e[jauolba €7 1V €121
SIUQWISSISSY
1y B[1aU0163T q 2 TRV €121

uosJad juspuadapul
2yl Jo 1uswiuloddy eg z 29@IS ¥ LE L

uoneludWNI0Qg

40 UOIURIRY BZ'Z 29A%IS ¥ L BV
4

SUOIEBIBPDYY

Jagquidw MaN €71 29aRIS ¥ L KD
(=)

S1S9491U] JO uoNeJ RPN

Jo uona|dwo) Z 1 23amis ¥ _P
S9JON @duepind [ 29dRIS v LEL
[erodde Adijod '€ VdId v 1EL

Mljod 1€ VdIY ¥ LEL
SaAleIUSSaIdal
14N0D JO UONEDIJNUBP| Z°Z VdIY v LEL

Bulures] JdYO 2L VdIY L€ L
buluredl "1 VdI¥ ¥ L€ L
S1914B1S M3U J0J bulurel| €79 VARDS €121

$S9304d IU3WRINIDAY 'S VARDS €1¢1

9111 % 3p0D uollepuUlWWOIY 1Ipny



Pa00 _
| %(]
Pa00 _
Pan0lL _
P00 |

P00 |
Pe00l _
P00 |

P00
Pe00l

_ %7

Pa00 1

Pa00 1 _
Pa00 ) _

Jeg ssau60.1d UONBPUBWIWOIRY HPNY

Aioud wnipsp

Ayiold wnipsp
Ayiold wnipsp
Alao1d wnips
Ayiold wnipsp

Aaond wnips

Alaond wnips
Ayiond wnipajp

Aioud wnipsp

Ayiond wnipap
Alao1d wnips
Ayiond winipajy

Alao1d wnips

Alao1d wnips

Aioud wnipap

Alao1d wnips

A111011d UOnEPUBWIWODRY PNy

OO0 OO00OO ©

DN SRS

OO0 o

UO0D| SN1BIS UONEPUSWWOIRY HPNY

"SIapulwal
Al[eMdsoH % sYID gp' | 29aRIS v LEL
suoneJedap

AlendsoH 7 syID ey | 29QRIS P LEL
1OBJUOD SIDNWH L'Z Vdid P LEL

SpJoday bulurel] z°9 VARDIS €121
siuswalinbay bulureal 1°9 VARDIS €121

bulig £ L VARDS €121

$1921J0
VA®D uswedaq €| VABRDS €121

BuIpod €' D4S0O € _M

S9D10AU| BUISS3IPPY Z°| D4SO € T«..l—_

(O]
bundivd>TH

Spoon pue BuldPIO 'L D4SO € _%
bururei] 8° S®H €121

sdwwelboid uondY 'S SPH €121

Bujuted] 'S SPH €121

anss|

Adljod Arsyes pue yiesH ¢+ S®H €121
3|qe|ieAy

Ajipeay uonewJuojul §°€ IRV €121
oseqeled ¥'€ 1RV €11

Ad1104

9111 % 3p0D uollepuUlWWOIY 1Ipny



P00 |
Pe00l _
Pa00 ) _

Pe00l _

Jeg ssau60.1d UONBPUBWIWOIRY HPNY

Ayiond wnipajp
Alao1d wnips
Ayiond wnipajp

Alao1d wnipsy

Aioud wnipap

A111011d UOnEPUBWIWODRY PNy

Page 145

1S9J91Ul JO suonele|daq 2'< 29ad®IS ¥ LE 1
UONBWIOJUI DUSAIM '€ D9ARIS ¥ LE L

uondudsaQg 9|10y qE€°Z 29APIS v L€ L

0OO®

uonedo| 1uswWnNd0g qg g 2=d®IS v LEL

L 1L0Z 12V Wsi[ed0T
3Y1 Japun suoneba|je spJepuels Yyim
@ Buifesp 4o} syuswabuelly |°Z 29a®IS v L€ L

UO0D| SN1LIS UONEPUSWWODY IPNY 3111 % 9POD UONEPUBWIWIODY HPNY



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



Agenda Item 9

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
30 JANUARY 2014

REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING
OFFICER

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000

Purpose

The Council's Code of Practice for carrying out surveillance under the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) specifies that quarterly
reports will be taken to Audit & Governance Committee to demonstrate to
elected members that the Council is complying with its own Code of Practice
when using RIPA.

On 13 December 2012, the Council re-adopted the RIPA policy and agreed
that quarterly reports on the use of RIPA powers be submitted to Audit &
Governance Committee.

Recommendation

That Audit and Governance Committee endorse the quarterly RIPA
monitoring report.

Background Information

The RIPA Code of Practice produced by the Home Office in April 2010
introduced the requirement to produce quarterly reports to elected members
to demonstrate that the Council is using its RIPA powers appropriately and
complying with its own Code of Practice when carrying out covert
surveillance. This requirement relates to the use of directed surveillance and
covert human intelligence sources (CHIS).

The table below shows the Council's use of directed surveillance in the
current financial year to provide an indication of the level of use of covert
surveillance at the Council. There have been no applications under RIPA in
the period from 1 October 2013 to 31 December 2013.

The table outlines the number of times RIPA has been used for directed
surveillance, the month of use, the service authorising the surveillance and a
general description of the reasons for the surveillance. Where and
investigation is ongoing at the end of a quarterly period it will not be reported

Page 147



until the authorisation has been cancelled. At the end of the current quarterly
period there are no outstanding authorisations.

There have been no authorisations for the use of CHIS.

Steps are being undertaken to compile a list of all equipment in use by the
Council that could be used in surveillance. The list will ensure that equipment
is stored and used properly this avoiding any breaches of the Code of
Practice or legislation.

In January 2014 officers under went training in RIPA practice and procedure
and a workshop will be arranged for officers later in the year.

Financial year 2013/14

Month Service Reason

No applications

Background papers

None

“If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting
please contact Jane M Hackett Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer on Ext.258”

Page 148



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Grant Certification Report for 2012/13
	6 Audit Progress Report
	7 Financial Guidance
	Enc. 1 for Financial Guidance

	8 Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2013/14 Quarter 3
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2013/14 Quarter 3
	Enc. 2 for Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2013/14 Quarter 3
	Enc. 3 for Internal Audit Quarterly Report 2013/14 Quarter 3

	9 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

